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PROCEEDINGS    906

 1  P R O C E E D I N G S  

 2 APRIL 20, 2012                                    7 :30 a.m.  

 3  

 4 (Proceedings held in open court, outside 

 5  the presence and hearing of the jury.) 

 6 THE COURT:  Good morning.  Welcome back, please be

 7 seated.

 8 You lawyers are staying in good health.  Usually by

 9 now somebody is got the flu.  So far so good for you all, huh?

10 So let's pick up with the -- I'd like to get your

11 input on the sheet of paper I gave you yesterday.

12 MR. JACOBS:   Your Honor, I've got to confess.  I

13 violated your order in literal terms, but I hope I met the

14 spirit of it.  I declined to give you a handwritt en markup

15 because I didn't want to inflict my handwriting o n the Court.

16 (Whereupon, document was tendered 

17  to the Court.) 

18 MR. BABER:   Your Honor, I'm happy to say we did abide

19 by your order, but we have both a handwritten and  a typed one

20 in case my handwriting is not as decipherable as it could be.

21 (Whereupon, document was tendered 

22  to the Court.) 

23 THE COURT:  Thank you.

24 MR. JACOBS:   Just so it's clear on the record, I've

25 given you a mark to show changes.
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PROCEEDINGS    907

 1 THE COURT:  Okay.  You gave me two things.

 2 MR. JACOBS:   I gave you two copies, your Honor.

 3 THE COURT:  Oh, it's the same thing.  

 4 And the one you gave me a has got the handwritten

 5 things.

 6 MR. BABER:   And we can provide one, like Oracle has,

 7 showing the changes in the typed one if you would  like.

 8 THE COURT:  No, no.  This is fine.  We're going to

 9 have a discussion about this in due course, but I  think it's

10 better if I read your write-up.

11 Now we go to...  I had a list of things to take u p.

12 Here we go.

13 I have this question.  And I need to be precise s o if

14 you want me to repeat this question, I will.  But  when you use

15 the term "class libraries," "class libraries," do  you mean only

16 the already compiled object code or do you mean t he already

17 compiled object code and the source code?  And th is is when you

18 use the term "class libraries."

19 So who wants to go first?

20 MR. JACOBS:   Your Honor, given the precision of the

21 question, I'd like to check with the folks at -- that are the

22 key person of this vocabulary and make sure we ge t it exactly

23 right.  

24 THE COURT:  All right.

25 MR. BABER:   Your Honor, Brucer Baber for Google.
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PROCEEDINGS    908

 1 When we've used the term "class libraries," we ar e

 2 referring to both when it's in source code form, as you would

 3 get it from Google, if you download it from the, web for

 4 example.  That's in source code.  And when we are  referring to

 5 our -- the programs or the functions, the code fo r the

 6 functions, that is in the implementations of the APIs, the part

 7 that actually does the work, the actual computer code, which

 8 starts out in source code format when you first g et it and then

 9 it is compiled into -- it's not object code, but it's compiled

10 code, bytecode.  So it might appear in that other  form either

11 in a development environment, on a handset, et ce tera.  But

12 it's the same code, basically just in two differe nt forms.

13 So when we talk about the libraries we are referr ing

14 to the code.

15 THE COURT:  No, no, not libraries.  Class libraries.

16 MR. BABER:   And I was going to also say, "class

17 libraries," I think we have used that interchange ably;

18 libraries, class libraries, core libraries.  We h ave used the

19 word "libraries" to really refer to that body of code that

20 performs the functions as opposed to just the nam e of the API

21 or the English language description of the API.  The libraries

22 are the parts that are in there that actually do the work when

23 you call it.

24 THE COURT:  All right.  So does that mean the

25 implementation?
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PROCEEDINGS    909

 1 MR. BABER:   Yes.

 2 THE COURT:  When you use the use the term "class

 3 libraries," does that have any different meaning than

 4 "implementation"?

 5 MR. BABER:   No, your Honor.  If I go back to Dr.

 6 Bloch's chart from yesterday.

 7 Everything here in his orange box (indicating) wh ere

 8 it says implementation, which is actually the cod e that

 9 performs the function once you give it the right input, and

10 there's lots of also blocks of this prewritten co de that appear

11 in this very large computer file, those are the l ibraries that

12 we're referring to.

13 THE COURT:  All right.  So let me give Mr. Jacobs

14 another shot at it.

15 You're free to comment now, if you wish, or if yo u

16 want to address this after you huddle with your c lients, that's

17 fine, too.

18 MR. JACOBS:   Yes, your Honor, I think that would be

19 best.  There's probably a place that one can go t o get a formal

20 definition of these terms and given -- again, giv en the

21 precision of the question, I would like to make s ure we get it

22 right.

23 THE COURT:  Sure.

24 All right.  Now, next question is -- I think I as ked

25 this yesterday and I think I know the answer.  Th is is a
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PROCEEDINGS    910

 1 question to Google.

 2 Does Google admit to factually copying the SSO an d

 3 declarations of Java API elements from the Java d ocumentation

 4 or from the Java implementations?

 5 MR. VAN NEST:   Could I have that question again, your

 6 Honor, please?

 7 THE COURT:  Yes.  And let me also -- I'll explain, at

 8 least in part, why it matters so you'll have that .

 9 Does Google admit to factually copying the SSO an d

10 declarations of the Java API elements?  Let's say , from just

11 the Java documentation.  I'll leave it there for now.

12 One of the reasons this matters is in doing the j ury

13 instructions, if you admit to having used that to  copy from,

14 then we don't have to get into substantial simila rity.  The

15 test becomes more simple.

16 And, also, I'll point out yesterday I think you s aid

17 that when the -- in the clean room, Google engine ers, in fact,

18 did have the documentation and, in fact, the whol e point was to

19 copy the declarations and the SSO.  So that's wha t I'm trying

20 to get at.

21 MR. VAN NEST:   I'm going to let Mr. Baber address

22 that.

23 MR. BABER:   Your Honor, if I may.

24 I believe the premise -- I'll answer your questio n

25 and, also, I want to talk about the premise of it  because there
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PROCEEDINGS    911

 1 are lots of cases that say even some copying is n ot the end of

 2 the day in a copyright case.  There still must be  substantial

 3 similarity between the works -- or virtual identi ty between the

 4 works as a whole, as a whole, as to protectable e lements.  So

 5 some copying is not, in fact, the end of the day in terms of

 6 the infringement question.

 7 In response to your first question, I would say n o.

 8 Google did not copy the specifications or -- the SSO or the

 9 declarations.  What Google -- what Google used we re the API

10 specifications, the names that have been chosen f or the APIs --

11 which, of course, the name tells you what package  it's in, what

12 class it's in, et cetera -- and the specific meth od signatures

13 that are part of the specifications.

14 So the word "declarations" has been kicked around  a

15 fair amount --

16 THE COURT:  Then using the chart over there, show me

17 which part you did copy and which part you did no t copy.

18 MR. BABER:   Your Honor, the first -- the three parts

19 that Dr. Bloch identified as being part of the na me.  Basically

20 everything above the implementation (indicating).   In other

21 words, the package it's in, the full method signa ture of the

22 method, including it's, quote, declaration.

23 THE COURT:  Well, but if that was copied -- I thought

24 you said you did not -- I asked you if you copied  the

25 declaration, and you said, "No."  Now you're sayi ng, "Yes."

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document967   Filed04/24/12   Page8 of 230



PROCEEDINGS    912

 1 MR. BABER:   I apologize, your Honor, if I wasn't

 2 clear.

 3 Yes.  The declarations and the actual names of ea ch

 4 of the methods in the class libraries, that's inf ormation that

 5 dealt with Apache, from Sun, from books, from lot s of other

 6 places.  Yes, we used, because we had to use -- a s Dr. Bloch

 7 explained yesterday, we had to use those names ju st as they

 8 have always been used because that's what defines  the API as a

 9 functional matter.

10 So, yes, these elements we all used.  They are th e

11 same ones that had always been used.

12 THE COURT:  Let me come to the point that you were

13 making which -- the work as a whole.  What do you  say was the

14 work as a whole?

15 MR. BABER:   Your Honor, I think it's -- for purposes

16 of this trial there are two works as a whole on t he plaintiff's

17 side.  They have accused us of infringing their c opyright in

18 the Java Platforms Standard Edition Version 1.4 a nd Version

19 5.0.  Those are the two different works they have  pleaded in

20 their complaint and they have said, "Google, you infringe our

21 copyrights in these two works."  

22 So that's it on the plaintiff's side.

23 THE COURT:  All right.  So you fall back on the

24 pleadings and say they are stuck with the pleadin gs.

25 MR. BABER:   Absolutely, your Honor.  We believe they
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PROCEEDINGS    913

 1 are stuck with the copyright registrations and th e works that

 2 they asserted in their complaint, just like they are stuck with

 3 the same group of patents they asserted.

 4 THE COURT:  Didn't I rule on summary judgment that

 5 they were not stuck with -- what did I say on  --  you raised

 6 this point on summary judgment and I did not gran t your motion,

 7 but I'm fuzzy on why.

 8 MR. BABER:   You did, your Honor.  It came up in the

 9 summary judgment motion on the diminimus argument , whether or

10 not the nine lines in rangeCheck, for example, yo u compare --

11 what work do you compare it to when you decide it 's diminimus?

12 And there was a dispute as to what was the releva nt work, but

13 for purposes of infringement analysis, we believe  it's pretty

14 clear.

15 There have been some cases that talked about, wel l,

16 what is a work for purposes of registration?  Oka y?  But the

17 Court -- the cases have always started with, it's  the

18 plaintiff's job to do two things:  To identify it s copyrighted

19 work and to show that it's ridge time period.

20 So in this case, just for example, they have not put

21 anywhere in discovery or anywhere else any regist ration for

22 just the 37 APIs, or just the file in which range Check appears,

23 or just the files that they say were copied from the source

24 code.  There are no separate registrations for th ose works.

25 The works they chose to register -- and they coul d
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PROCEEDINGS    914

 1 have gotten if they wanted to.  They could have t ried to get

 2 separate registrations for each of those files cl aiming each

 3 one was a separate work, but there are some cases  -- and we can

 4 brief it further, if your Honor wants.

 5 There are some cases that say, well, if you want to

 6 try and even take the approach that those are sep arate works,

 7 you've got to show they have independent merit or  value, if you

 8 will.  So for purposes of summary judgment you sa id, Well, what

 9 Oracle relies on doesn't really control.  That's a registration

10 process and it doesn't control here.  So I'm goin g to reserve

11 on that question as to what are the works for pur poses of

12 applying diminimus analysis.

13 But it's the same question on --

14 THE COURT:  All right.  So hold that thought.

15 Is it the same work for purposes of substantial

16 similarity, fair use and diminimus copying?

17 MR. BABER:   Yes, your Honor, I believe so.

18 THE COURT:  All of those?

19 MR. BABER:   Has to be.

20 THE COURT:  Whatever the work is you don't have to

21 have three different or two different.  We have t he comparison

22 work is one item, whatever that item is.

23 MR. BABER:   That's correct, your Honor.

24 THE COURT:  Do you agree with that?

25 MR. BABER:   Yes.
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PROCEEDINGS    915

 1 THE COURT:  Let me pause on that.

 2 Mr. Jacobs, do you also agree with that?

 3 MR. JACOBS:   The last piece of it or the starting

 4 point?

 5 THE COURT:  The last piece.  Whatever the work as a

 6 whole is, that we should tell the jury to compare  against or --

 7 whatever the -- let me start over.

 8 Whatever the work as a whole is, it's the same fo r

 9 substantial similarity purposes, fair use purpose s and

10 diminimus copying purposes.

11 MR. JACOBS:   I would like to consider that question,

12 your Honor.

13 Where I am able to -- where I'm able to agree wit h

14 Mr. Baber is that I think we have to define somet hing that has

15 some independent significance.  We have to define  an "it."

16 Where I disagree with him is that the relevant st arting point

17 is exclusively that which was registered.

18 In this particular case we have class libraries.  We

19 have a code, each -- that has a beginning and end  and a

20 copyright notice at the top of it.  And we all kn ow what the

21 beginning and end is.  We have seen it illustrate d by Mr.

22 Bloch's chart, for example.

23 So I think we can compare class library to class

24 library reserving on the technical question what we mean by

25 that specific technical concept.
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PROCEEDINGS    916

 1 Moreover, in looking at all three of the question s --

 2 and this is why I can't give you a "yes" or "no" answer right

 3 away -- there's lots of law that says you don't e scape

 4 copyright infringement by what you add.  You look  at that which

 5 was taken.  And so if it's a couple hundred lines  in a memoir

 6 or a biography of Gerald Ford, even in a lengthy article, you

 7 look at those couple hundred lines and you say:  Does that have

 8 -- is that protected expression?  Is it taken?  I s it

 9 infringing?

10 So we have to mediate between -- as we figure out  how

11 to analyze that expression, we have to mediate be tween that

12 which was registered, that which was a copyright notice on it,

13 that which was a clear beginning and an end, and these

14 doctrines that say you don't escape infringement -- a

15 plagiarist does not escape infringement by what h e adds.

16 THE COURT:  I think that must be correct.  I'm

17 willing to accept that you -- if you steal somebo dy's work and

18 add a lot more to it, that doesn't take away from  the fact that

19 you stole their work to begin with.

20 I don't think, though, that anyone is arguing --

21 you're not disagreeing with that, are you?

22 MR. BABER:   No, your Honor.

23 THE COURT:  I think this contest here comes down to

24 how many lines of code are there in these 37, 15 million?

25 MR. BABER:   Well, that's the other issue, is what is
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PROCEEDINGS    917

 1 the accused work?  The thing is, they accuse Andr oid.  Android

 2 is 15 million lines of code.

 3 THE COURT:  About how many lines of code are in the

 4 37 APIs?

 5 MR. BABER:   Your Honor, I'm not sure.  They provided

 6 a count last week of 100,000 lines, something lik e that, out of

 7 15 million.

 8 THE COURT:  So let's go with that.  So you've got

 9 100,000 lines and if you counted up the number of  lines of

10 declarations, it would probably be 37, but maybe it's -- let's

11 say it's three or four times that many.  It's sti ll going to be

12 a tiny percentage of 100,000.

13 So, but the comparison that I'm trying to get at is,

14 what is the work as a whole?  Is it the 37 APIs?  Is it -- here

15 is the part that -- here is the part that is a li ttle strange

16 about this.  Is this for the judge to decide or t he jury to

17 decide?

18 MR. BABER:   I believe the question of what is the

19 work at issue is the question for the Court, beca use otherwise

20 you can't instruct the jury.

21 And I want to go back, because I want to make cle ar

22 what I said earlier.  We believe absolutely that for purposes

23 of infringement, for purposes of fair use, the tw o works that

24 are being compared have to be the same.

25 Now, but if, for example -- it sounds like Mr. Ja cobs
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 1 may make an argument that, well, okay, each of th ese 12 files,

 2 these individual 12 little files that have someth ing that they

 3 say is copied, well, each of those is a separate work.

 4 He's going to try and convince you that, okay, fo r

 5 infringement purposes you have lots of different works that the

 6 jury has to consider.  You have to consider the c opyright in

 7 arrays.java where the rangeCheck code appears.  Y ou have to

 8 consider a separate -- but none of those copyrigh ts exist.

 9 That's why we have a copyright registration syste m,

10 is that so when the Court is doing this kind of a nalysis in an

11 infringement case, it's very easy to see.  What i s the

12 plaintiff's work?  The plaintiff's work is what t he plaintiff

13 decides to take to the copyright office and regis ter the

14 copyright in, because otherwise can they at trial  pick and

15 choose and say, well, 37 APIs or all the APIs?

16 THE COURT:  Didn't I reject that argument?

17 MR. BABER:   No, your Honor.  You rejected that

18 argument and said the question was an open questi on.

19 THE COURT:  Okay.  It seems a little hard on the

20 judge that the complaint could say -- what did it  say again?

21 That was the work --

22 MR. BABER:   The complaint said, we have lots and lots

23 of copyrights on Java.  The two that you infringe  are attached.

24 They are Version 1.4 of the platform and Version 5.0 of the

25 platform.
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 1 THE COURT:  It seems strange that we would get all

 2 the way to the end of the trial and the day comes  where I have

 3 to instruct the jury and that's the point at whic h I have to

 4 decide.  That could be a complicated analysis.  

 5 Was there a point in the case where an interrogat ory

 6 was answered where they said, "What do you conten d is the work"

 7 -- you know, "What are we going to be fighting at  trial," or do

 8 we have to default all the way back to the compla int?

 9 MR. BABER:   Your Honor, there were never -- we never

10 served interrogatories about legal questions like  that, but the

11 issue did come up.  I mean, it came up in the --

12 Well, I don't know if your Honor will recall, ear ly

13 on we filed the motion to dismiss the copyright c laim on the

14 grounds that it hadn't been sufficiently pleaded.   And they

15 came back and said, "Well, sure it is.  We've ide ntified the

16 relevant copyrights in the amended complaint, and  here are some

17 exhibits that show what we think is some of the c opying."  So

18 that issue went away, but they clearly were relyi ng on the two

19 copyrights that they had asserted.

20 Then at discovery they started saying, "Well, we have

21 got a whole bunch of other copyrights."  And we h ad some

22 correspondence back and forth.  I wrote a letter to Mr. Jacobs

23 and I said, Michael, I want to make it very clear .  As far as

24 we are concerned, the works for purposes of this case -- we are

25 on an expedited discovery calendar.  The works ar e the two
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 1 you've pleaded.  If you want to rely on anything else and claim

 2 anything else is infringed, you should have amend ed your

 3 complaint back when you had time to do so.  And a s far as we

 4 are concerned, those are the works.  That was you r choice.  And

 5 that was confirmed in the early case management o rder.

 6 THE COURT:  All right.  Here is -- it's time to bring

 7 the jury in, but I want to give Mr. Jacobs a chan ce to have a

 8 verbal -- take a minute and make your point in re sponse to what

 9 I just heard.

10 MR. JACOBS:   I think we're mixing two issues.  There

11 is the question of what release of Java was at is sue.  And we

12 attached to our complaint the registrations, I be lieve, for 1.4

13 and 5.0.  That was the best information we had ab out which

14 particular versions of Java were copied when the copying took

15 place.  So was it 1.7?  1.8?  We attached 1.4 and  .5.

16 What they were driving at in that back-and-forth is,

17 well, you're abandoning any rights to intermediat e or later

18 versions, which is just wrong.  That was just tec hnically

19 legally wrong.  You know, you're not limited to t he specific

20 registrations you attach to the complaint.

21 That is not the relevant question here, which is what

22 really -- driving to the bottom line:  What will we tell the

23 jury they should be comparing?  What is the A to the B?  I

24 think we should brief that to your Honor and give  you something

25 more focused and helpful.
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 1 THE COURT:  I agree you should.  I've already given

 2 you one briefing assignment due Sunday at 3:00 o' clock.  This

 3 is a separate one, also due Sunday at 3:00 o'cloc k.

 4 MR. JACOBS:   Thank you, your Honor.

 5 THE COURT:  I want you to understand some of the

 6 points that are on my mind.

 7 One is:  Is it the same standard for substantial

 8 similarity, fair use and diminimus copying?  That  is, is the

 9 same body of work, a work as a whole, is it the s ame for all

10 purposes?  And in even -- when you were comparing  the nine

11 lines of code out of 15 million, is it nine versu s 15 or is it

12 nine versus something else?

13 There is a different -- a different problem that' s

14 lurking here, and it's a procedural one, and that  is:  Should

15 the plaintiff be held to what it pleaded in the c omplaint

16 and/or what the copyrights are on?  In other word s, what is the

17 copyrighted work?  And that -- and if you want to  get into what

18 the give-and-take was in your correspondence, fin e, but I -- I

19 find it strange that we would have -- you know, l ike on the

20 patent side, we have these rules where you specif y what it is

21 that's being infringed so that the -- it's clearl y on the table

22 what's infringed, what's not.

23 Now, on the copyright side, we don't have rules l ike

24 that.  I would have just thought you'd default to  look at the

25 complaint and the complaint would tell us.  But I  don't know
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 1 the answer to that and I need the help of the law yers.

 2 It seems strange that I would have to go through an

 3 entire trial and only then would it -- would the scales fall

 4 from my eyes and I would see clearly what the wor k as a whole

 5 is.  I don't know.  You lawyers are great.  You'l l figure this

 6 out for me.

 7 Yes, Mr. Van Nest.  As soon as I said Sunday at 3 :00

 8 o'clock, I saw you jump up over there.

 9 MR. VAN NEST:   I was just going to ask your Honor if

10 we could have 10 pages on that one as well.

11 THE COURT:  Yes.

12 MR. VAN NEST:   You'll see --

13 THE COURT:  And you can have as many -- please don't

14 give me -- you know, I know you'll use good commo n sense.  The

15 larger and bigger your binders that you submit, y our exhibits,

16 the more harder it is.

17 But you can have -- in addition to the 10 page, y ou

18 can have your backup correspondence and whatever you think I

19 need to see, but, please, minimize rather than ma ximize.

20 I think by the end of next week we'll be very clo se

21 to the end of the evidence on this phase.  We pro bably won't

22 finish it by the end of next week, but we will be  very close to

23 it.  And I want to have a good set of draft instr uctions to

24 give you so that -- that's the timeline that I'm working

25 against.
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 1 MR. VAN NEST:   Okay.  That makes a lot of sense.  I

 2 think that's right, your Honor.

 3 THE COURT:  Okay.  I have a few minutes, if you have

 4 issues to bring up with me.

 5 MR. JACOBS:   We have some exhibits that we have

 6 agreed on, your Honor.

 7 THE COURT:  All right.  Let me get my list.

 8 MR. JACOBS:   So Google had stipulated to the

 9 admission of the following trial exhibits.  And I 'll do it like

10 I did yesterday.  I'll stop at about every eight or nine or so.

11 748, 749 --

12 MR. VAN NEST:   Give me a moment, your Honor, please.

13 THE COURT:  Sure.

14 (Brief pause.) 

15 MR. VAN NEST:   I'm ready, your Honor.

16 THE COURT:  Go ahead.

17 MR. JACOBS:   751, 7- --

18 THE COURT:  748.  Start with 748 again.

19 MR. JACOBS:   748, 749, 751, 752, 753, 2800, 2801,

20 2802, 3341, 3342, 3343, 3344, 3345, 3346, 3347, 3 348, 3349.

21 MR. VAN NEST:   No objection, your Honor.

22 THE COURT:  All received.

23 (Trial Exhibits 748, 749, 751, 752, 753, 2800, 28 01, 

24 2802, 3341, 3342, 3343, 3344, 3345, 3346, 3347, 3 348, 

25 3349 received in evidence) 
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 1 MR. JACOBS:   45.1, 45.2, 45.3, 46.20, 46.21, 46.22,

 2 46.23, 46.24, 46.25, 46.26, 46.27, 46.28.

 3 THE COURT:  Agreed?

 4 MR. VAN NEST:   No objection.

 5 THE COURT:  All of those are received in evidence.

 6 (Trial Exhibits 45.1, 45.2, 45.3, 46.20, 46.21, 

 7 46.22, 46.23, 46.24, 46.25, 46.26, 46.27, 46.28  

 8 received in evidence) 

 9 MR. JACOBS:   741, 767, 770, 771, 773, 862.

10 MR. VAN NEST:   No objection.

11 THE COURT:  All received.

12 (Trial Exhibits 741, 767, 770, 771, 773, 862 rece ived 

13 in evidence) 

14 MR. JACOBS:   1030, 1031, 1032, 1033, 1034, 1035,

15 1036, 1037, 1038, 1039, 1040.

16 MR. VAN NEST:   No objection, your Honor.

17 THE COURT:  Okay.  In.

18 (Trial Exhibits 1030, 1031, 1032, 1033, 1034, 103 5, 

19 1036, 1037, 1038, 1039, 1040 received 

20  in evidence) 

21 THE COURT:  More?

22 MR. JACOBS:   We have some deposition designations in

23 the form of Trial Exhibit 1064 that will be playe d.

24 (Whereupon, document was tendered 

25  to the Clerk.) 
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 1 THE COURT:  Is that all teed up?  Is there any ruling

 2 needed by me?

 3 MR. JACOBS:   No, your Honor.

 4 THE COURT:  All right.  Great.  Thank you.

 5 Anything more?

 6 MR. JACOBS:   That's it from us, your Honor.  Thank

 7 you.

 8 THE COURT:  Mr. Van Nest?

 9 MR. VAN NEST:   I don't think we have any issues, your

10 Honor.

11 THE COURT:  Did you all do the -- didn't I ask for

12 one page that has the names of the lawyers?  Did I do that?

13 MR. JACOBS:   Names of the lawyers.

14 THE COURT:  Yes, because I -- where is Mr. Boies

15 today?  They don't know how to spell that.  And, you know,

16 they'll like girls and boys.  They will get it wr ong.

17 I want the lawyers -- I want them to understand h ow

18 the names are spelled of the lawyers.

19 MR. VAN NEST:   You hadn't asked us for that, but

20 we'll do it.

21 THE COURT:  Okay.  I'm wrong, but --

22 MR. VAN NEST:   You asked us for Who's Who of

23 witnesses.

24 THE COURT:  Yes, that's right.  Okay.  So add this to

25 it.
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 1 I have another list, so they can have the names

 2 straight of all the lawyers who are performing in  court.  I

 3 just think it's a courtesy to you and, but it's a lso a courtesy

 4 to the jury so they will not write down the wrong  name.

 5 MR. VAN NEST:   You want pictures on there, your

 6 Honor?

 7 THE COURT:  You can do a little baseball card, you

 8 know.

 9 (Laughter.) 

10 THE COURT:  145 trials.

11 MR. VAN NEST:   My average?  I'm not sure --

12 THE COURT:  Your batting average, yeah.

13 MR. VAN NEST:   My average.

14 Your Honor, are we going to begin the morning wit h

15 summaries or with our witnesses and do the summar ies at the end

16 of the day?  What did you have in mind on that?

17 THE COURT:  Well, I'd like to do it at some point.

18 What do you all think?  Do you want to do it now?

19 MR. JACOBS:   The advantage of doing it now, your

20 Honor, is that we're -- last night we worked with  the state of

21 the record as we had it.  Whereas, the state of t he record will

22 change during the day.

23 THE COURT:  Let's take -- you've got 10 minutes per

24 side.  How is that?

25 MR. VAN NEST:   That's fine, your Honor.
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 1 THE COURT:  Are we done with the last witness?

 2 MR. JACOBS:   Yes.

 3 THE COURT:  All right.  This will be a good point to

 4 do that.

 5 I want to come back to one thing.  There is a dan ger

 6 whenever you have these exhibits come in automati cally.  I want

 7 you to be clear on this.  Yesterday you gave me a  good example

 8 of this.

 9 It was the downloading of some website.  The fact

10 that something is stipulated into evidence does n ot necessarily

11 stipulate as to when it was available.  So if the  website comes

12 in -- is that one of these items here?

13 MR. JACOBS:   Yes, your Honor.

14 THE COURT:  All right.  That's not proof as to

15 when -- unless it says on the website when it was .  If it says

16 on the website, then, okay, I guess there's some proof as to

17 when it was.

18 But the fact that a -- say, a picture or a photog raph

19 or some item is stipulated into evidence does not  necessarily

20 say as of the -- the jury would just have to gues s at when it

21 was taken.

22 So you all need to be aware that stipulating

23 something into evidence does not necessarily stip ulate to

24 something that's outside the four corners of that  exhibit.

25 MR. JACOBS:   Understood, your Honor.  We anticipate
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 1 that it's in the -- within the four corners, but we will double

 2 check.

 3 THE COURT:  All right, thank you.

 4 Okay.  Let's bring in the jury.

 5 (Jury enters courtroom at 8:02 a.m.) 

 6 THE COURT:  Welcome back.  Be seated.  Everyone still

 7 over there in great health?

 8 (Jury nodding affirmatively.) 

 9 THE COURT:  Good.

10 I see you're smiling because you know it's Friday .

11 (Laughter.) 

12 Okay.  We're going to do something that I think i s

13 designed to be of extra assistance to you, the ju ry, and that

14 is in about 20 minutes we're going to go to our n ext witness.

15 I'm guessing we're a third of the way through the

16 first phase of the evidence, something like that,  maybe a

17 little more than that, but we're making good prog ress.  I

18 promise you that.  The lawyers are working hard t o streamline,

19 the case as best as possible, and I we have excel lent lawyers

20 in this case.  I'm sure you've recognized that al ready.

21 Now, what we're going to do for the next 20 minut es

22 is I'm letting the lawyers each have 10 minutes t o summarize

23 for you what they think has been proven or not pr oven so far,

24 or to look forward to the rest of this phase and to say what is

25 about to come or will be coming soon, or to say a nything which
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 1 they think will help put what you've heard so far  or about to

 2 be heard here into its overall context of the iss ues that you

 3 will be having to decide.

 4 This is sort of just like a time-out, a little

 5 time-out to give you a heads-up.  Okay?  See what  we're doing?

 6 Now, remember what I've said so many times?  Is

 7 anything that a lawyer ever says evidence?  No.  You know that.

 8 But nonetheless, this is a very useful exercise a nd I ask you

 9 to give --

10 Mr. Jacobs, you get to go first.  He gets 10 minu tes

11 to address you.  Please go ahead.

12 SUMMARY 

13 MR. JACOBS:   Thank you, your Honor.

14 Well, we're already deeply steeped into the world  of

15 Java.  I'm sure when Google puts on its case, you 'll hear a lot

16 of Android.  You will know more about this techno logy than you

17 ever imagined you would when you came in for jury  service

18 perhaps thinking this might be some murder trial.   It's not

19 that dramatic, but I think you get a sense for th e drama.

20 You've seen the CEOs of both companies.  You've s een

21 the commitment of the Oracle representatives to t his matter

22 and, of course, our total commitment to just tryi ng to make

23 this as clear for you as we possibly can so that at the end

24 when we ask you to render a verdict, you'll have the

25 information you need to do that properly.
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 1 We have seen early on in the case the basic Java

 2 licensing model and the fact that Java is widely licensed by

 3 companies across the United States and across the  world.  And

 4 it's licensed in a variety of ways for a variety of purposes.  

 5 You've heard that there are these commercial lice nses

 6 and you've heard that there are these specificati on and TCK

 7 licenses that enable, in the first case, people j ust to take

 8 Java code from Oracle; in the second case, for th em to make

 9 their own implementations from the specification so they can

10 write their own detailed code.  But with this who le structure

11 in place, the consistency of Java is maintained a cross vendors

12 and across computers and across computing devices .

13 There are different kinds of Java for different

14 classes of computing devices and Google wants to argue that

15 that is fragmentation.  But, of course, none of u s expect to

16 take a credit card out and run big databases on i t.  We expect

17 on a credit card to be able to stick it into a ma chine.  And

18 when we take a cell phone out, we don't expect to  run very

19 large programs.  We expect to run cell phone appl ications.

20 So Java has kind of grades of Java, but across th e

21 vendors and across the computers the consistency is maintained

22 because companies follow the rules.  And those ar e technical

23 rules and those are legal rules in the Java licen sing system.

24 And those rules are backed up by intellectual

25 property rights.  The way the licenses and the co nsistency gets
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 1 enforced is that Sun, now Oracle, has intellectua l property

 2 rights as a backstop.  And that's why this is an intellectual

 3 property case.  That's why this is a copyright ca se, because

 4 one important backstop is copyright rights.

 5 And you will see copyright notices.  You will see ,

 6 when you go back in the jury room, we had admitte d into

 7 evidence copyright registration certificates like  476, all of

 8 which go to show two things.

 9 (Document displayed) 

10 One, that Oracle did what was needed to confirm i ts

11 intellectual property rights; and, secondly, how seriously

12 Oracle and Sun took copyright protection by regul arly and

13 repeatedly registering their copyrights with the copyright

14 office.

15 And you have heard that Google is an outlier; tha t

16 Google is the only company today that is using Ja va APIs

17 created by Oracle or Sun that is not in the licen sing model,

18 that has not taken one of these licenses.  And yo u heard this

19 not only from Larry Ellison.  You heard this from  Larry Page,

20 who said he could not name a single company that has done what

21 Google has done.

22 And so, what's this?  What's going on here?  Why

23 should Google be the exception?  Why Google alone , among all

24 the Java licensees or potential licensees, do the y play by

25 their own set of rules?
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 1 As we have now proven with evidence that is admit ted,

 2 for example Trial Exhibit 1, they knew they neede d a license

 3 back in 1995.  "Must take license from Sun."  And  that

 4 specifically there was a licensing mechanism that  Google had in

 5 mind.  They were going to take the license and th e TCK.

 6 Now, they wanted to use it in a way that Sun wasn 't

 7 comfortable with.  Sun had business interests to protect, too.

 8 But Google knew they needed a license.

 9 And Larry Page understood this.  The CEO of Googl e

10 was repeatedly advised about the importance of ge tting a

11 license from Sun.  And this is what he testified.

12 "You understood that Mr. Rubin was proposing

13 that the Google Java Virtual Machine passed

14 the TCK certification.  That's part of that

15 licensing structure."

16 And you've now seen by another admitted exhibit,

17 Trial Exhibit 7, that Google understood that they  had two

18 options:  Go down a path of independent developme nt using

19 technology that had nothing to do with Java, or i f Sun wouldn't

20 grant a license, make enemies along the way.

21 I'll say this in closing, I'll say it now.  We do n't

22 want to really be suing Google over this.  We wan t them to be

23 part of the Java community playing by the same se t of rules.

24 But when Andy Rubin writes, "We may make enemies along the

25 way," I'm sorry, Oracle has to defend it's intell ectual
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 1 property rights.

 2 And what Google took, these API designs, this is not

 3 trivial stuff.  They are going to try and say, "A ndroid, it's

 4 huge.  These API designs are small and trivial."  But you've

 5 seen how creatively significant they are and how commercially

 6 significant they are.

 7 So person after person steeped in Java has explai ned

 8 to you how creative the process is of designing A PIs.  You

 9 heard from Mr. Screven about API design being a v ery creative

10 process with insight and thought, and compared to  other

11 programming tasks, compared to writing that detai led code

12 underneath the boxes from yesterday's sketch, it' s the API part

13 that is the creative design part.

14 And then you heard from Dr. Reinhold, who has bee n

15 doing this for many years.  He is the Java API gu y.  And he

16 told you how creative the design process was for APIs.

17 And then, of course, you saw Mr. Bloch's presenta tion

18 in which he told the world over and over again --  doing this

19 from Google, mind you.  Mr. Bloch is at Google, s aying that API

20 design is a noble and rewarding craft.  And then in his

21 testimony:

22 "QUESTION: API design is tough.

23 "ANSWER: Yes, designing a good API is tough.

24 "QUESTION: Like any work of craftmanship?

25 "ANSWER: I agree with that.
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 1 "QUESTION: Creating a beautiful painting is

 2 tough.

 3 "ANSWER: I'm not sure if that's

 4 craftsmanship or art, but I guess that's a

 5 fine distinction.

 6 "QUESTION: And an API design you said, I

 7 believe, is a noble and rewarding craft;

 8 correct, sir?

 9 "ANSWER: Yes, I certainly believe that."

10 And then he even acknowledged that there are

11 aesthetic matters in API design.  "An API that di splays good

12 aesthetics will be easy to use."

13 And then you heard -- and this is, for something

14 that's not very, not a big deal just a little bit  of copying,

15 Google will say.  You heard from Dr. Reinhold tha t the java.nio

16 package took two years to develop.  The APIs took  two years to

17 design.

18 Now, you've learned a lot more than you ever imag ine,

19 more than you could possibly know about how the A PI and the

20 code and documentation are all related.  And crit ically you now

21 understand that when we talk about this documenta tion and the

22 specification, we're talking about something that  has its

23 origins in the actual source code file, and that what goes into

24 the documentation by this Documentation Extractor , is a mix of

25 narrative that the programmer wrote with an idea that that
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 1 would be narrative in the documentation and actua l programming

 2 statements that are captured by the Documentation  Extractor and

 3 placed into the paper.

 4 And so when we talk about an Application Programm ing

 5 Interface, we're talking about the design of the program and

 6 those statements above Dr. Bloch's line, right he re

 7 (indicating), getting into the specification.  Th is is a

 8 programming language statement that becomes part of the

 9 Application Program Interface specification.

10 And you will see...

11 THE COURT:  Down to about one more minute to go.

12 MR. JACOBS:   ...detailed evidence in the coming hours

13 of what the copying actually looks like in Androi d.

14 Now, you also saw yesterday the line-by-line copy ing

15 that occurred and that Mr. Bloch apologized for.  You'll see

16 more of that.

17 And you will -- you're getting a better understan ding

18 of the problem that Google's particular form of c opying has

19 caused because they have fragmented Java.  They h ave broken the

20 consistency of the Java model, and Andy Rubin and  Larry Page

21 understood how important avoiding fragmentation w as to Sun and

22 they understand how important avoiding fragmentat ion is to

23 Oracle.

24 And, you know, you've seen this graphic and now y ou

25 understand what the worry is, what the concern is  that Google
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 1 will fracture and create a Tower of Babel instead  of a

 2 consistent Java programming language.

 3 They say they are in the Java Community Process.

 4 They took offense.  You heard from Google's couns el in his

 5 opening that we didn't include them in the list o f companies

 6 that participate.  Well, are they in or are they out?  Are they

 7 helping Java or are they fragmenting Java?  Are t hey voting yes

 8 or are they voting no?  

 9 You heard from Mr. Bloch yesterday, Google passed  the

10 only commercial "no" vote against the next releas e of Java.

11 There's a slide show about the programming langua ge, the APIs.

12 You've seen the testimony that backs up this slid e showing the

13 dramatic difference between the size of language and the little

14 bit of overlap between what's in the language man ual and what's

15 in the Application Programming Interfaces.

16 There's questions about Apache Harmony.  It's a

17 complicated subject, but the bottom line is Apach e Harmony did

18 not have a license.  They never got a license.  W ere they mad

19 about it?  Absolutely.  But they didn't get permi ssion to build

20 and ship commercially their class libraries, and that's what

21 Google has taken in Android.

22 And every document you have seen from Google in t his

23 case, including now Trial Exhibit 326, all the wa y through 2009

24 and 2010, no one will say -- there is no document  that will

25 say, "We're okay, because we took from Apache."  There is no

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document967   Filed04/24/12   Page33 of 230



SUMMARY / JACOBS        937

 1 such evidence.

 2 THE COURT:  All right.  You're a minute or so over

 3 already.

 4 Thank you, Mr. Jacobs.

 5 All right.  You may have an extra minute as well,

 6 Mr. Van Nest.

 7 MR. VAN NEST:   Thank you, your Honor.

 8 SUMMARY 

 9 MR. VAN NEST:   Good morning, everyone.  

10 I want to start by saying thank you.  We have bee n

11 paying attention to the fact that you're paying a ttention.  So,

12 you guys have been very attentive and we know it' s been a long

13 week and we really appreciate it.  And I'm not su re who is

14 happier that it's Friday, you guys or us over her e.

15 And I want to thank Judge Alsup.  It's unusual to  get

16 a chance to address the jury before you even star t your

17 evidence in your case, but that's the position I' m in.  So I

18 appreciate that.  And I'll try to be helpful and sort of

19 summarize where we are on the key evidence points .

20 Now, I want to start with what's in dispute now t hat

21 we have had about a week of testimony.

22 Not in dispute, Java programming language free fo r

23 everybody to use.  That's not in dispute.  You've  seen

24 testimony on that.  Judge Alsup gave you a little  summary on

25 Wednesday.  Anybody can use the Java programming language.
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 1 The names of all these class files and method nam es

 2 and so on, they are all free to use.  You got a s ummary from

 3 Judge Alsup on that as well.

 4 The source code, the so-called implementation cod e

 5 that Dr. Bloch talked about yesterday, that's the  code in the

 6 libraries that does the work.  That wasn't -- the re's no claim

 7 that that is copied.  That is all original Google  work done by

 8 Google engineers and taken from Open Source proje cts like

 9 Apache.

10 So what we're really down to, the big issue in th e

11 case, is whether or not the Structure, Selection and

12 Organization of the APIs.  That's what they are c laiming is --

13 has been infringed in this case, and the fact of the matter is

14 that that API structure was in the public domain,  used by years

15 along with the language.  Sun was aware that othe rs were using

16 it, like Apache, GNU and others and didn't do a t hing.  

17 And Google's Android system does the same thing w ith

18 those APIs that GNU did, that Apache did, that Su n was fully

19 aware of and, as you'll see next week, that Dr. S chwartz,

20 Jonathan Schwartz said was a rocket on Java.

21 So let's put the theme board up.

22 (Document displayed)                                     

23 These are the four things I said we'd prove, and I

24 just want to give a quick recap of where we are o n those.

25 Sun gave the Java language to the public.  
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 1 Can I have the next slide please?  

 2 Mr. Ellison was their first witness.  He moved ar ound

 3 on this issue, but this is a party admission from  Mr. Ellison.

 4 "QUESTION: You understand that nobody owns

 5 the Java programming language?

 6 "ANSWER: That's right.

 7 "QUESTION: Anybody can use it without any

 8 royalty at all?

 9 "ANSWER: That's right."

10 That's established, as you heard, from Judge Alsu p on

11 Wednesday.  So the programming language is out th ere and folks

12 can use it.

13 Next.  So what's left?  Let's go back just a minu te.

14 The other part of that first bullet point is that  the APIs have

15 been used for years as part of the language.  You 've heard some

16 very important testimony about the fact that with out the APIs,

17 the language isn't much use.

18 So they are saying the language is free, you can use

19 it, but you can't use the APIs.  As I said, that' s like saying

20 you can use English, but don't use the nouns and verbs.  

21 Let's have our next slide, please.

22 There were two pieces of testimony on that so far .

23 There will be a lot more.  Dr. Bloch, who was her e yesterday:  

24 "QUESTION: If you didn't have any APIs,

25 could you do anything with the language?
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 1 "ANSWER: You could waste time with it, and

 2 that's pretty much it.

 3 "QUESTION: If there were no APIs, the Java

 4 programming language wouldn't be much use."  

 5 That's Dr. Reinhold said near the very end of his

 6 testimony; no APIs, couldn't do much with it.

 7 That's item one, and you'll hear a bit more about

 8 that.

 9 Item two.  Dr. Bloch said yesterday GNU Classpath ,

10 which I mentioned in the opening, we actually hel ped them get

11 going.  GNU was a separate implementation of the same Java

12 libraries and the same APIs that we're talking ab out here.  

13 GNU was out there Open Source.  Dr. Bloch, as a S un employee,

14 was helping them get that done.  So that's a seco nd piece of

15 importance evidence.

16 Third piece of importance evidence, you know now

17 Apache was out there using these APIs, the same S tructure,

18 Selection and Organization they are claiming now,  and they have

19 been out there for years.

20 Next slide, please.

21 This was, again, their witness.  Dr. Kurian.

22 "So in '05, '06, '07, '08, Apache was using

23 the same libraries and the same APIs we're

24 talking about without a license from Sun."

25 Apache was out there selling -- now, there's an
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 1 Apache license that Apache gives.  When Mr. Rubin  is here next

 2 week, you'll hear that Google is distributing And roid under the

 3 Apache license, which allows you to use all the A PIs, some of

 4 the APIs, none of the APIs.  The Apache license i s what Google

 5 has been distributing under.

 6 But the key point of Apache is not its license.  The

 7 key point is, Sun was fully aware that here is so mebody out

 8 there making these libraries and APIs available a nd they didn't

 9 do anything about it.  Apache was there.  Mr. Sch wartz is going

10 to say, they were free to ship as long as they di dn't call

11 their product Java.  If they didn't call it Java,  they were

12 free to ship.

13 Last piece of evidence important on this issue, t he

14 APIs, is what Mr. Lindholm said.  He testified.  Remember, he

15 was at Sun.  He was our last witness last night.  He was at

16 Sun.  Then he's at Google.  At Sun his understand ing was:  

17 "The organization of software APIs are free

18 for use by other people."  

19 You'll hear a lot more of that, too, but all thes e

20 engineers believe you can use an API, and they ha ve been using

21 them, and no one has been complaining about that because that's

22 what you need.  It's a system of organization in order to use

23 the language.  If you're going to build these lib raries, you've

24 got to have a way to access those.

25 Now, my second bullet point was that Google built
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 1 Android using Google technology and Open Source.  You haven't

 2 learned a lot about that because the Google witne sses haven't

 3 been here.  We'll touch on that next week.

 4 But you know from Mr. Kurian that he believed tha t

 5 Google was using Apache technology, and that's ex actly right.

 6 That's exactly right.  A lot of the libraries wer e built from

 7 Apache technology, and you'll hear about that.

 8 My third bullet point was that when Android was

 9 released, Sun approved it.  And Sun said, you're a rocket.  Now

10 we have had a little bit of evidence on that.  Yo u saw the

11 videotape of Mr. Ellison at JavaOne.  Mr. Ellison  got up at

12 JavaOne in front of all these developers and said , "We are

13 flattered that Android is using Java" -- flattere d -- "and we

14 expect to see more of it from our friends at Goog le."

15 Now, you'll hear a lot more about that next week when

16 Mr. Schwartz is here, but even Mr. Ellison, when he acquired

17 the company, got up and the first thing he said t o the Java

18 community was, "We like Android.  We know we're c hoosing Java.

19 We're flattered by it and we expect to see a lot more of that

20 in the future.  You will hear from Mr. Schwartz n ext week on

21 that subject."  You'll hear from Mr. Schwartz nex t week on that

22 subject.

23 The last point on my set of slides was that Googl e's

24 use of the Structure, Selection and Organizations  of these APIs

25 was absolutely fair.  They transformed Java from something that
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 1 wouldn't work on a smart phone to something that works great on

 2 a smart phone.  That's transformation.  They made  a fair use of

 3 this Structure, Selection and Organization and yo u know that

 4 now, two really key pieces of evidence.  Mr. Elli son told you

 5 that he learned when he bought the company that S un had tried

 6 and failed to build a smart phone.  They hadn't b een able to

 7 fund it.  They bought some technology to try to d o it.  They

 8 had an effort to do it.  They couldn't do it.

 9 You also know that Mr. Ellison tried to do it.

10 Next slide.

11 Mr. Ellison had Project -- no, let's go back.

12 Project Java Phone.  Now, there's two key points

13 about this evidence.  One is, Oracle tried and fa iled.  They

14 couldn't turn Java into a smart phone using the J ava SE

15 Platform.  They also were trying to build on top of Android.

16 Target Android handset manufacturers.  Target sin gle operating

17 system Android.  Run Java ME on Android.

18 If Android was a fragment or Android was hurting

19 Java, why in the world with Mr. Ellison and Oracl e try to build

20 a product on top of Java?  That's exactly what th ey were trying

21 to do.

22 And you heard him say when this failed they

23 considered buying technology to get into the smar t phone market

24 from RIM and from Palm.  RIM makes Blackberry.  P alm makes the

25 Treo.
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 1 When that didn't work you heard him say, "I talke d to

 2 Google.  I made a business proposal to Google, to  work with

 3 Google."  "When that didn't work," I asked him, " what was the

 4 next thing that happened?"  "This lawsuit."

 5 This lawsuit is not about fragmentation.  It's no t

 6 about their I.P.  Oracle wants to participate in the smart

 7 phone market without doing any work.  They want m oney from

 8 Android based on Google's work, not their work.

 9 Now, we've heard all this holy talk about, you kn ow,

10 the Holy Grail of fragmentation.  That's baloney and you know

11 it from what Dr. Reinhold said yesterday.  There are how many

12 flavors of Java we now heard?  In the opening it was "write

13 once, run anywhere".  Anywhere.

14 Now, we heard yesterday from Dr. Reinhold.  There  is

15 an SE platform, an EE platform, an ME platform an d a Card.  And

16 if you write for one of those platforms, your pro gram won't run

17 on any other program.  It's not "write once, run anywhere".

18 Dr. Reinhold admitted that.  He finally backed of f.

19 Can I have the last slide, please?

20 THE COURT:  This will have to be your next point

21 because you're on the 11 minutes.

22 MR. VAN NEST:   Thank you, your Honor.

23 "Write once, run anywhere" was never a promise th at

24 if you wrote code for one Java Platform, it would  magically

25 work on another.
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 1 And you know from his testimony yesterday that ev en

 2 from the ME platform, one platform, there are mul tiple flavors

 3 of that.  There is ME, and MIDP, and CLC, and CDL C.  And he

 4 said yesterday, none of knows platforms worked to gether.  It

 5 got so bad they had to have a project called One Java.  They

 6 created a project to fix their own fragmentation,  and Oracle

 7 killed that when they bought the company.

 8 So this case is not about their intellectual

 9 property.  It is about getting a claim on the sma rt phone

10 market.

11 So I very much look forward to getting back here next

12 week with our witnesses and giving you the story of what was

13 done, why we did what we did, why Android is base d on Google

14 technology and Open Source technology, and why I' ll be asking

15 you in closing for a finding that there is absolu tely no

16 infringement here based on the evidence you will have heard by

17 then.

18 Thank you.

19 THE COURT:  Thank you.

20 MR. VAN NEST:   Thank you, your Honor.

21 THE COURT:  Next witness.

22 MR. NORTON:  We call Brian Swetland.

23 THE COURT:  All right.  Very well.  Let's bring him

24 forward.

25
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 1 BRIAN SWETLAND,  

 2 called as a witness for the Plaintiff herein, hav ing been first 

 3 duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows :   

 4 THE WITNESS:  I do.

 5 THE CLERK:   Thank you.

 6 THE COURT:  Thank you.  Welcome again.

 7 See how my microphone -- you've got to be this cl ose.

 8 THE WITNESS:  Like that?

 9 THE COURT:  It will move around to make it easier for

10 you, but that's about right.

11 Why don't you say your name?

12 THE WITNESS:  Brian Swetland.

13 THE COURT:  Everybody hear okay?

14 Say it again.

15 THE WITNESS:  Brian Swetland.

16 THE COURT:  Great.  

17 Go ahead, counsel.

18 MR. NORTON:  Thank you, your Honor.

19 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

20 BY MR. NORTON:  

21 Q. Good morning, Mr. Swetland.

22 A. Good morning.

23 Q. We've not met.  My name is Fred Norton.

24 You currently are employed at Google, is that

25 correct?
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 1 A. That is correct.

 2 Q. And you are a senior staff software engineer?

 3 A. This is correct.

 4 Q. And you work on Android?

 5 A. Yes.

 6 Q. And you've worked on Android since Google acquired Android

 7 in 2005, is that right?

 8 A. That is correct.

 9 Q. And you were employed at Android even before Google

10 acquired Android, is that correct?

11 A. That is correct.

12 Q. Before you worked at Android, you worked at a compa ny

13 called Danger, Incorporated?

14 A. That is correct.

15 Q. And you were there from 2000 to the fall of 2004?

16 A. That is correct.

17 Q. Andy Rubin was one of the founders of Danger, is th at

18 right?

19 A. This is right.

20 Q. He was there at the same time that you were?

21 A. He left a year, year-and-a-half prior to me, I beli eve.

22 Q. Around 2003?

23 A. I think so.

24 Q. Now, while you were at Danger, Danger developed a m obile

25 phone called Hiptop, is that right?
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 1 A. That is right.

 2 Q. Sometimes called the Sidekick?

 3 A. Yes.

 4 Q. And that Sidekick was released in the fall of 2002?

 5 A. That sounds correct.

 6 Q. And the programming language for applications on th e

 7 Hiptop was Java, right?

 8 A. That is correct.

 9 Q. And the Hiptop or Sidekick, it had a virtual machin e,

10 right?

11 A. Yes.  

12 Q. Now, at the time the Hiptop was released, it had an

13 incompatible -- that is not compatible -- impleme ntation of the

14 Java specification, correct?

15 MS. ANDERSON:  Objection.  Lacks foundation.

16 THE COURT:  Well, do you know the answer to that

17 question or not?

18 THE WITNESS:  Umm, yes.  I think.

19 THE COURT:  All right.  Objection overruled.  Please

20 answer.

21 A. Umm, the virtual machine on the Hiptop was not a Ja va

22 Virtual Machine.  So it was not compatible with J ava.

23 BY MR. NORTON:  

24 Q. Now, while you were at Danger, you say you never ca me into

25 contact with Sun's source code, is that right?
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 1 A. Umm, to the best of my knowledge, no.  I have not s een

 2 Sun's source code while I was at Danger.

 3 Q. All right.  And you contend that Danger developed i ts

 4 incompatible Java implementation in a clean and i ndependent

 5 way, right?

 6 A. All the work I did on the Danger virtual machine wa s, you

 7 know, done in a clean room fashion.

 8 Q. Just to sum up here.  Danger had a mobile phone, ri ght?

 9 A. Correct.

10 Q. That used Java as the application programming langu age,

11 right?

12 A. Correct.

13 Q. It was incompatible with Java, with the Java

14 specification?

15 A. Do you mean the Java language specification or the virtual

16 machine specification?

17 Q. Virtual machine specification.

18 A. Because it was not a Java virtual machine.

19 Q. The answer is it was incompatible with the Java vir tual

20 machine specification?

21 A. The Danger virtual machine not being a Java virtual

22 machine, yes, it's not compatible with the Java v irtual machine

23 specification.

24 Q. And that implementation was developed in what you b elieve

25 was a clean and independent way?
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 1 A. Yes.

 2 Q. All right.  And yet Danger took a license from Sun,

 3 correct?

 4 A. That is my understanding.

 5 Q. And Danger took a license from Sun to the TCK, is t hat

 6 correct?

 7 A. I believe so, but, you know, I was not present as p art of

 8 the license negotiation.

 9 Q. Had.  But you understood that danger had taken a li cense

10 from Sun and used the TCK?

11 A. I believe that was the case.

12 Q. And once Danger took the TCK, it worked to make its

13 implementation compatible with the Java specifica tion, correct?

14 A. I think that was the case.  I was not involved with  that

15 part of the project at that point.

16 Q. Now, one of the people you met with during discussi ons

17 between Sun and Danger was Tim Lindholm, wasn't i t?

18 A. I believe he was at a meeting, yes.

19 Q. And at that time Mr. Lindholm was representing Sun,

20 correct?

21 A. I believe so, yes.

22 Q. And he was representing Sun in discussions between Sun and

23 Danger about Danger's Sidekick mobile device, cor rect?

24 A. I believe so.

25 Q. And Mr. Lindholm was one of the people from Sun tel ling
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 1 Danger that Danger needed to take a license from Sun for the

 2 Sidekick, correct?

 3 A. I really wasn't involved in the license side of

 4 discussions, just, you know, their technical issu es.

 5 Q. But you did know that it was Sun's position that th e

 6 specification itself was copyrighted, correct?

 7 A. Umm, I was not aware of that.

 8 Q. You were aware at that time that Sun's position was  that

 9 the method signatures, the specifications, method  signatures

10 were copyrighted, correct?

11 A. I do recall mention that Sun claimed copyright on t he

12 method signatures.

13 MR. NORTON:  So may I approach the witness?

14 THE COURT:  Yes.

15  (Whereupon, document was tendered  

16   to the witness.) 

17 BY MR. NORTON:  

18 Q. I've handed the witness Exhibit 149.

19 (Document displayed) 

20 Q. Mr. Swetland, do you recognize that email?

21 A. I do.

22 Q. That's an email that you sent on May 1st -- I'm sor ry,

23 May 31st, 2006?

24 A. Yes.

25 Q. And you sent it to Mr. Rubin, is that right?
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 1 A. That is correct.

 2 Q. And you sent it to another person whose email addre ss is

 3 danfuzz@google?

 4 A. Yes.

 5 Q. And that's Dan Bornstein, right?

 6 A. Yes.

 7 Q. And Mr. Bornstein, he also worked at Danger before he

 8 worked at Android, right?

 9 A. That is correct.

10 MR. NORTON:  I move the admission of Exhibit 149.

11 MS. ANDERSON:  No objection, your Honor.

12 THE COURT:  149 received in evidence.

13 (Trial Exhibit 149 received 

14  in evidence)  

15 BY MR. NORTON:  

16 Q. Now, you wrote to Mr. Rubin and to Mr. Bornstein ab out

17 Sun.  

18 "Whatever happened to their 'we own copyright

19 on the method signatures' bullshit argument."  

20 Right?

21 A. That is correct.

22 Q. On May 31, 2006 you knew that Sun still claimed a

23 copyright on the method signatures of the specifi cation, right?

24 A. I don't know if they still claimed it.  I knew that  at one

25 time they made such a claim while I was at Danger .
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 1 Q. On May 31st, 2006 you didn't know any differently,

 2 correct?

 3 A. That is correct.

 4 Q. Nothing had changed between the time you were at Da nger

 5 and the time you were at Android, correct?

 6 A. Nothing about since -- very, very broad.

 7 Q. Your knowledge about what Sun claimed about it's co pyright

 8 and the method signature had not changed?

 9 A. That is correct.

10 Q. And you did nothing to investigate whether Sun had a valid

11 claim that they owned the copyright on the method  signature?

12 A. Correct.  I was not involved in such an investigati on, no.

13 Q. But whether you were involved in such an investigat ion or

14 not, you took no steps to determine whether or no t that claim

15 was valid?  

16 A. No.

17 Q. That was just somebody else's job, right?

18 A. Not my role as an engineer to do that, no.

19 Q. Now, you worked at Danger and now you work at Andro id,

20 correct?

21 A. That is correct.

22 Q. Mr. Bornstein, also at Danger, now an Android -- or , then

23 an Android engineer, correct?

24 A. Correct.

25 Q. And was an Android engineer until sometime in 2011,
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 1 correct?

 2 A. I believe that's correct.

 3 Q. Mr. Rubin was at Danger, now Android, correct?

 4 A. That is correct.

 5 Q. Hiroshi Lockheimer was at Danger, now at Google, an d works

 6 on Android, correct?

 7 A. That is correct.

 8 MR. NORTON:  May I approach?

 9  (Whereupon, document was tendered  

10   to the witness.) 

11 BY MR. NORTON:  

12 Q. I've handed the witness Exhibit 13.

13 Is this an email from you to Mathias Agopian?

14 A. It is.

15 Q. And you sent this email on January 3rd, 2006, is th at

16 right?  

17 A. That appears to be correct.

18 Q. And you sent this to Mr. Rubin, amongst others, is that

19 correct?

20 A. That is correct.

21 MR. NORTON:  I move the admission of Exhibit 13.

22 MS. ANDERSON:  No objection, your Honor.

23 THE COURT:  13 received.

24 (Trial Exhibit 13 received 

25  in evidence) 
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 1 MR. NORTON:  Thank you, your Honor.  

 2 (Document displayed)                                     

 3 BY MR. NORTON:  

 4 Q. Now, if we go down, there is an email that says, "O n

 5 January 2, 2006 Brian Swetland wrote"?

 6 A. Yes.

 7 Q. And below that there is a lot of text, but I want t o focus

 8 on, "Reasons to shift to a primarily Java API."

 9 A. This appears to be some other document though.

10 Q. I just want you to focus on the words, "Reasons to shift

11 to a primarily Java API."  

12 Do you see those words?

13 A. I see those words.

14 Q. And as you pointed out, there are lots of words und erneath

15 that, right?

16 A. I believe you pointed that out.

17 Q. And you think that's some other document?

18 A. I believe this entire double indented section is so me

19 other email or document that I quoted in the sing le indented

20 section, is what it looks like to me.

21 Q. All right.  Very good.

22 So then if we can go up, you responded to this em ail,

23 correct?

24 A. To Mathias' question?

25 Q. Yes.
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 1 A. And Mathias' question was in response to, "Reasons to

 2 shift to a primarily Java API."  

 3 Mr. Agopian wrote:  

 4 "Has this decision been taken already or are

 5 we talking/arguing about it?"

 6 A. Yes.

 7 Q. And you responded to that?

 8 A. I did.

 9 Q. And your response was:  

10 "I think we're pretty set on it, but are

11 still working on addressing issues people may

12 have with it."

13 Correct?

14 A. Correct.

15 Q. And the reason to shift to a primarily Java API, yo u said,

16 you were pretty set on it as of January 2006?

17 A. That's in the email, yes.

18 MR. NORTON:  May I approach?

19 THE COURT:  You may.

20  (Whereupon, document was tendered  

21   to the witness.) 

22 BY MR. NORTON:  

23 Q. I've handed the witness Trial Exhibit 23.

24 And this, once again, this is an email from you t o

25 three other people who work at Google, correct?
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 1 A. Correct.

 2 Q. And can you identify those three people by names ot her

 3 than email addresses?

 4 A. You want their given names?

 5 Q. Yes, their names.  The email addresses are fadden@

 6 Google.com, ficus@google.com and CJD@google.com.

 7 A. That would be Andy McFadden; Ficus, Kirk Patrick an d Chris

 8 DeSalvo.

 9 Q. And did all those people work on Android?

10 A. They did at this time.

11 MR. NORTON:  I offer Exhibit 23.

12 MS. ANDERSON:  No objection, your Honor.

13 THE COURT:  23 received.

14 (Trial Exhibit 23 received 

15  in evidence) 

16 MR. NORTON:  And may I approach?

17 THE COURT:  You may.

18  (Whereupon, document was tendered  

19   to the witness.)  

20 BY MR. NORTON:  

21 Q. Mr. Swetland, you have Exhibit 314.  And this is an  email

22 from Robert Griesemer to you, is that correct?

23 A. That is correct.

24 Q. And it was an email sent on August 5, 2005, is that  right?

25 A. That is correct.
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 1 Q. And the title of that email is "Re: Java VM for And roid,"

 2 is that right?

 3 A. That is the title.

 4 MR. NORTON:  I move the admission of Exhibit 314.

 5 MS. ANDERSON:  No objection, your Honor.

 6 THE COURT:  Received.

 7 (Trial Exhibit 314 received 

 8  in evidence) 

 9 MR. NORTON:  No further questions.

10 THE COURT:  Cross-examination.

11 CROSS EXAMINATION 

12 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

13 Q. Good morning, Mr. Swetland.

14 A. Good morning.

15 THE COURT:  One second.  Mr. Rutherford, would you

16 like a cough drop?

17 JUROR RUTHERFORD:  Yes.

18 THE COURT:  Dawn, would you take this over to

19 Mr. Rutherford.

20 How about some water?  Would you like some water.

21 JUROR RUTHERFORD:  No.

22 THE COURT:  Are you okay?  

23 JUROR RUTHERFORD:  Yes.

24 THE COURT:  Okay.

25 Thank you.  You may continue.
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 1 MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you, your Honor.

 2 I'll wait for a minute while the witness pours a

 3 little water for himself as well.  

 4 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

 5 Q. Mr. Swetland, before we begin talking about some of  these

 6 documents, please tell the jury where you live?

 7 A. Palo Alto, California.

 8 Q. And how long have you lived in northern California?

 9 A. I've lived in the Bay Area for about 14 years now.

10 Q. What is your educational background?

11 A. I studied computer engineering at the University of

12 Illinois at Urbana Champaign.

13 Q. And can you tell the jury briefly in order where yo u've

14 worked over the years, your main places of employ ment over the

15 years?

16 A. Back in the beginning, a lot of small companies; bu t when

17 I moved to the Bay Area in 1998, I worked for a c ompany in

18 Menlo Park called Be, Incorporated that operating  systems for

19 desktop computers.  Spent two years there.

20 And in spring of 2000, I joined a very small star t-up

21 called Danger, Inc. that was building a next gene ration smart

22 phone; voice and data communication device.  I wo rked there for

23 roughly four-and-a-half years.

24 And in the -- in late 2004 I left Danger to join

25 another very small start-up called Android that w as looking to
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 1 build a next generation phone operating system.  That start-up

 2 was purchased by Google in July of 2005.  

 3 Since then I have been the systems software archi tect

 4 and lead on the Android project at Google.

 5 Q. And during the bulk of your time at Google, what as pect of

 6 the Android Platform has been your focus?

 7 A. My primary focus has been on the kernel and device

 8 drivers, the lowest level software that interacts  with the

 9 actual hardware that makes the phone work.

10 Q. Now, in the course of the years that you've worked in the

11 computer industry, have you had occasion to learn  about the

12 Java programming language?

13 A. Yes, I have.

14 Q. When did you first learn about Java?

15 A. I think I first encountered Java possibly mid to la te

16 2005 -- 1995 not 2005.  That wouldn't make any se nse.  In 1995

17 when I was at the University of Illinois.

18 Q. And did there come a time when you started to actua lly use

19 the Java programming language in your work?

20 A. Umm, before I had moved to California in 1997 and ' 98, I

21 had worked for a company that did web technology servers and

22 such called Neoglyphics and I did some Java progr amming for

23 them.

24 Q. And, again, what years was that approximately?

25 A. 1997 to early 1998.  
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 1 Q. And did you have occasion to use Java programming l anguage

 2 in your work at Danger?

 3 A. Umm, I wrote some of the Danger library code and a little

 4 bit of application code in Java.

 5 Q. How did you actually learn how to program in Java?

 6 A. Umm, I think my first encounter with Java again was  in

 7 1995 when the language was first released by Sun.

 8 It was interesting at the time because it was thi s

 9 new programming language.  And I think I mostly l earned by, you

10 know, just tinkering with the compiler, writing l ittle programs

11 and reading some tutorials that had been posted o nline about

12 the language.

13 Q. Did you ever read any books about Java to help lear n how

14 to program in the language?

15 A. I think at one point I borrowed or purchased a copy  of the

16 Java Programming Language, which was an introductory book in

17 Java.

18 Q. All right.  And did those materials you reviewed to  learn

19 how to program in Java include discussion of Java  APIs?

20 MR. NORTON:  Objection, leading.

21 THE COURT:  What extent, if at all.  Remember magic

22 words.

23 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

24 Q. To what extent, if at all, did the materials you re viewed

25 include discussion of Java APIs?
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 1 A. Pretty much all examples of how to write programs i n the

 2 language involved use of sort of standard Java li braries and

 3 APIs.

 4 Q. As a programmer in Java over the years, have you ha d an

 5 understanding as to whether or not the language i s free for

 6 use?

 7 A. My understanding like all, you know, other similarl y --

 8 and, actually, I'm not aware of programming langu ages that

 9 aren't free for use.

10 Q. And how about Java APIs?  Have you had an understan ding

11 over the years as a Java programmer as to whether  Java APIs

12 were free for use?

13 A. My understanding is they would be.  Otherwise, how could

14 you write meaningful programs without, you know.. .

15 Q. You were asked some questions earlier about the tim e you

16 spent working at the company called Danger relate d to

17 development of the Hiptop; do you recall generall y those

18 questions?

19 A. I do recall.

20 Q. You also testified that you had learned that Danger  took a

21 license from Sun eventually, is that right?

22 A. That was my understanding, yes.

23 Q. Did you have an understanding as a Danger employee as to

24 why it took that license?

25 A. My understanding was that we felt that the company --
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 1 MR. NORTON:  Objection.

 2 THE COURT:  Any question that uses the word

 3 "understanding" almost automatically calls for he arsay.  I

 4 don't like that form of question.  Both sides hav e used it.

 5 I'm not being critical of you.  The other side ha s used it,

 6 too, but a question that calls for understanding -- and the

 7 Oracle lawyers will now remember this, because it 's your

 8 objection.  I don't like that question.  It calls  for hearsay.

 9 Sustained.

10 MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you, your Honor.

11 THE COURT:  And I'm going to remind the Oracle

12 lawyers of the same ruling if there is an objecti on going the

13 other way.

14 Any question -- except for experts, of course.  I

15 guess experts can.  But fact witnesses, anything that calls for

16 "what was your understanding," that's a hearsay q uestion.

17 So sustained.

18 MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you, your Honor.

19 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

20 Q. During your time, your years at Google, Mr. Swetlan d, I

21 believe you testified you always worked on the An droid team, is

22 that right?

23 A. I have always worked on Android, yes.

24 Q. All right.  Throughout all the years that you have worked

25 on Android, has Tim Lindholm ever been a member o f the Android

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document967   Filed04/24/12   Page60 of 230



SWETLAND - CROSS EXAMINATION /  ANDERSON    964

 1 team at Google, to your knowledge?

 2 A. No, he was not.  

 3 Q. Have you ever known Mr. Lindholm to contribute any code

 4 whatsoever to the Android project?

 5 A. I do not believe there is any code from Tim in the

 6 project.

 7 Q. Do you have any understanding as to what connection , if

 8 any, Mr. Lindholm ever had with regard to Android ?

 9 A. I think he may have been consulted by executive man agement

10 on sort of business development-type issues.

11 Q. Thank you.

12 I'd like to turn your attention to Exhibit 149, w hich

13 you discussed earlier.  Just put that before you,  please.

14 A. Okay.

15 Q. All right.  In this e-mail you sent along a link th at you

16 printed in this particular correspondence.  What is that a link

17 to?

18 A. I believe this is the home page of the Google Web T oolkit

19 project.

20 Q. What is that?

21 A. The Google Web Toolkit was a technology created by a team

22 at Google that allows you to write programs in th e Java

23 programming language, and then convert them into JavaScript,

24 which, while the names appear similar, is actuall y a very

25 different language that runs in Web browsers to a llow you to
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 1 write programs in the Java language, but allow th em to run in a

 2 standard web browser without Java VM attached or included.

 3 Q. And in your e-mail you were asked a question about the

 4 last sentence of the e-mail, which starts with th e word

 5 "whatever."  And in it you're asking about what h appened to a

 6 particular argument from Sun.  Do you see that?

 7 A. I see that.

 8 Q. What did you mean by that?

 9 A. Uhm, as mentioned previously, Sun advanced this arg ument

10 when approaching Danger about licensing.  And it seemed

11 surprising to me that if they had such concern ab out this

12 copyright on method signatures that, you know, th ere were a

13 number of projects that Google Web Toolkit is onl y one, but

14 most recent, that supported those APIs, and did n ot appear to

15 be drawing any reaction or, you know, backlash fr om Sun.

16 Q. What other projects are you referring to?

17 A. Well, there's been a whole number of small Java VMs

18 written by Google.  The common, like, sort of com puter science

19 student project.  But there's been a lot of small , medium, and

20 large Java, you know, VM language implementations  over the

21 years.

22 There's been some fairly high-profile ones, like the

23 GNU Compiler project, GCJ, which is a GNU compile r for Java,

24 that compiles the Java language to native code, l ike x86 PC.

25 And the GNU Classpath project, which was a comple te
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 1 implementation of all of these standard Java APIs  to enable

 2 that, as well as things like the Apache Harmony p roject, which

 3 was another open source, you know, project that p rovided a Java

 4 virtual machine and the standard libraries.

 5 None of these projects seemed to fall afoul of, y ou

 6 know, this concern that had been expressed about these APIs.

 7 Q. Thank you.

 8 Would you turn now to Exhibit 13, which I believe  is

 9 before you.

10 A. Okay.

11 Q. And you were asked a few questions about this earli er by

12 Oracle's counsel, but I want to draw your attenti on to the

13 section of this document that has the double carr ots, the

14 double indents indicated on it.  Do you see it st arts about

15 one-third of the way down the page and continues on?

16 A. I see that.

17 Q. And if I remember correctly, you testified that thi s is a

18 portion that you do not believe you personally wr ote; is that

19 correct?

20 A. That's correct.

21 Q. All right.  Drawing your attention to the fifth par agraph

22 of that section, that starts with the word "the n egotiations

23 with Sun."

24 A. I see that.

25 MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  Ben, could we have that
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 1 highlighted, please?  Thank you.

 2 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

 3 Q. There's a reference in here to the word, "Brian."  Do you

 4 see that in this paragraph?

 5 A. I do.

 6 Q. What, if anything, did that indicate to you about w hether

 7 or not you wrote this section?

 8 A. It seems unlikely it was authored by me, given the way it

 9 refers to me in the third-party.  It's just kind of a strange

10 way to talk about yourself.

11 Q. And with regard to a reference to someone named Bri an

12 being perhaps scarred by a Danger experience, do you see that

13 reference?

14 A. I see that.

15 Q. Is there anything about that that rings true?  Were  you in

16 any way scarred by your Danger experience?

17 A. That, you know, I believe is a reference to my unha ppiness

18 that Danger ended up taking this Sun license afte r spending all

19 the time building a clean room implementation, yo u know, based

20 on an argument that did not seem, you know, valid .

21 Q. Do you have knowledge as to why you believe Danger took

22 that license?

23 A. My recollection --

24 (Mr. Norton stands up from counsel table.)

25 THE COURT:  Is this going to be hearsay, or something
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 1 you know of your own firsthand knowledge?

 2 THE WITNESS:  Uhm, I guess it would be hearsay

 3 because it's --

 4 THE COURT:  Hearsay means somebody told it to you.

 5 THE WITNESS:  Yes.

 6 THE COURT:  Firsthand is you were there and made the

 7 decision yourself, or you were in the room when t he decision

 8 was made.

 9 THE WITNESS:  I did not make the decision in this

10 case.

11 THE COURT:  I don't think he knows the answer to that

12 question.

13 MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you, Your Honor.

14 THE COURT:  Is that your objection?

15 MR. NORTON:  Yes, Your Honor.

16 THE COURT:  Sustained.

17 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

18 Q. Before we move on, do you have Exhibit 314 before y ou,

19 sir?  I just want to make sure if you have it or not.

20 A. I do.

21 Q. You do.  Okay.  Could you please pull that out.

22 A. All right.

23 Q. I don't believe you asked many, if any, questions a bout

24 this particular document, so I had a few for you.

25 First of all, is this an e-mail exchange,
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 1 Mr. Swetland, that you participated in back in Au gust 2005?

 2 A. It is.

 3 Q. And drawing your attention to the very top e-mail, the one

 4 that's addressed to you directly, do you see that ?

 5 A. I see.

 6 Q. All right.  It starts with, "I can't really comment  on

 7 your project."  Do you see that?

 8 A. I do.

 9 Q. All right.  So in this particular e-mail there's a

10 reference to a number of people.  And I won't be able to

11 pronounce all these names correctly, but starting  with Urs

12 Hölzle, Srdjan Mitrovic.  And then moving down th e paragraph a

13 little more, Todd Turnidge, David Stoutamire, and  Ben Gomes.  

14 Do you see those names?

15 A. I do.

16 Q. And down a little more, Tim Lindholm and Frank Yell in.  Do

17 you see that?

18 A. I do.

19 Q. Did any of those individuals work on the Android pr oject,

20 to your knowledge?

21 A. To my knowledge, none of these people worked on And roid.

22 Q. Thank you.  

23 And, again, I just want to make sure you have the

24 right folders before you.  Do you have the folder  of Exhibit

25 200 before you, sir?
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 1 A. 200 which?

 2 Q. 200.  Do you have 200 before you?

 3 A. I do not see that exhibit here.

 4 Q. I didn't think you had that one.  Okay.  Thank you.

 5 And how about Exhibit 419, do you have that one

 6 before you?

 7 A. I am not seeing that either.

 8 Q. Okay.  Thank you.

 9 All right.  And my last question to you,

10 Mr. Swetland, is whether you have Exhibit 33 befo re you?

11 A. Exhibit what?

12 Q. 33.  I just want to make sure we've covered --

13 A. I don't appear to have a 33 either.

14 MS. ANDERSON:  I have no further questions.  Thank

15 you, Mr. Swetland.

16 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

17 THE COURT:  Anything more?

18 MR. NORTON:  Yes, Your Honor.

19                       REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

20 BY MR. NORTON:  

21 Q. Mr. Swetland, whether you were scarred by the exper ience

22 or not, you did know that Danger took a license f rom Sun after

23 all the work that you had done on Danger's clean room

24 implementation, correct?

25 A. Correct.
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 1 Q. And you knew that the reason that Sun gave for why Danger

 2 was required to take a license was that Sun held a license on

 3 the method signatures, a copyright on the method signatures,

 4 correct?

 5 A. Well, I heard that from Andy -- again, my understan ding,

 6 this hearsay thing --

 7 THE COURT:  If you get into hearsay, I'm going to let

 8 Ms. Anderson come back and put her hearsay part i n, too, to

 9 explain why.  It would only be fair to do that.

10 MR. NORTON:  I am seeking the information solely for

11 the purpose of establishing his knowledge.

12 THE COURT:  All right.  You can ask the question.

13 Ms. Anderson, on recross I'm going to let you ask  the

14 question that I didn't allow you to.

15 MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you, Your Honor.

16 THE COURT:  Go ahead.

17 BY MR. NORTON:  

18 Q. Now, Android uses those Java API method signatures;

19 doesn't it?

20 A. That is my understanding.

21 Q. You made reference to what you called high-profile

22 implementations of the Java virtual machine, in r esponse to

23 questions from Ms. Anderson.  Do you recall that?

24 A. I do.

25 Q. You don't know what discussions or agreements there  were
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 1 between any of those companies and Sun; do you?

 2 A. I do not.

 3 Q. You don't know if those companies took licenses; do  you?

 4 A. I do not.

 5 Q. You don't know if Sun told them to cease and desist  what

 6 they were doing; do you?

 7 A. I do not.

 8 Q. With respect to GNU Classpath, you testified that w as a

 9 complete implementation of the specification?

10 A. That was my understanding.

11 Q. Have you examined it to see if it was a complete

12 implementation?

13 A. I have not.

14 Q. And so you don't know whether it's a complete

15 implementation?

16 A. Not with certainty, no.

17 Q. Apache Harmony, is that a complete implementation?

18 A. I guess by the same terms, I don't know.

19 Q. Android is not a complete implementation of the Jav a

20 specification; is it?

21 A. I don't know.

22 Q. It's your testimony, sir, that you do not know whet her

23 Android is a complete implementation of the Java specification?

24 A. Based on your assertion that without examining it a nd --

25 which I haven't done, I don't see how I could ans wer that

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document967   Filed04/24/12   Page69 of 230



SWETLAND - REDIRECT EXAMINATION / NORTON    973

 1 question.

 2 Q. Do you have Exhibit 314 in front of you?

 3 A. I do.

 4 Q. I just want to clarify one thing.  If we go down to  the

 5 bottom part of the page.  

 6 (Document displayed.)

 7 MR. NORTON:  Thank you.

 8 THE WITNESS:  The first page?

 9 BY MR. NORTON:  

10 Q. Yes, sir.  This e-mail states, "On 8/5/2005 Brian S wetland

11 wrote," and then there is a series of paragraphs.   One of them

12 begins "license choice"?

13 A. Yes.

14 Q. You wrote that paragraph, correct?

15 A. I did.  This appears to be an e-mail quoted from me .

16 MR. NORTON:  Nothing further.

17 THE COURT:  Ms. Anderson, you may ask that question.

18 MS. ANDERSON:  Yes, Your Honor.  That one question.

19                        RECROSS EXAMINATION 

20 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

21 Q. Mr. Swetland, why do you understand Danger took a l icense?

22 A. My understanding was that as a small startup about to ship

23 our first product, being approached by a large co mpany with far

24 more resources, that we did not want to deal with  the potential

25 expense of litigation around this issue when we w ere, you know,
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 1 focused entirely on trying to get our first produ ct into the

 2 market.

 3 MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you.  No further questions, Your

 4 Honor.

 5 THE COURT:  Anything, Mr. Norton, on that last

 6 question?

 7 MR. NORTON:  Yes, Your Honor.  One moment, please.

 8 Nothing further.

 9 THE COURT:  May this witness be excused, not subject

10 to recall?

11 Please, you have to answer.  May I excuse the

12 witness, not subject to recall?

13 MS. ANDERSON:  Certainly, in our case, Your Honor, I

14 don't know if there may be a later phase the witn ess may be

15 needed.  Certainly not this one.  We're releasing  him.  He is

16 our employee.

17 THE COURT:  Do you want him on recall or not?

18 MR. NORTON:  No, Your Honor.

19 THE COURT:  You are free to go.  You are not subject

20 to recall.  Thank you, Mr. Swetland.

21 THE WITNESS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

22 THE COURT:  Please leave behind our exhibits.  The

23 lawyers will take care of it.  You have a great d ay.  Thank

24 you.

25 THE WITNESS:  I will.
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 1 THE COURT:  Okay.

 2 (Witness excused) 

 3 THE COURT:  All right.  Next witness.  We're going to

 4 start with the next witness, and go until about 9 :20, 9:30.

 5 Members of the jury, are all of you okay with goi ng a

 6 while longer?  Good.  Let's call the next witness .

 7 MR. JACOBS:   Your Honor, we call Bob Lee.  But before

 8 Mr. Lee actually takes the stand, we would like y ou to read one

 9 of the deemed admitted.

10 THE COURT:  Have a seat just, for a second.  We'll

11 swear you in.

12 Now, let me -- do you have it handy, or do I need  to

13 fish it out somewhere?

14 MR. JACOBS:   Yes, Your Honor.

15 THE COURT:  Hand it up to me.

16 MR. JACOBS:   Circled the items we would like you to

17 read.

18 THE COURT:  Okay.  There are two, right?

19 MR. JACOBS:   Correct.

20 THE COURT:  Okay.  As I told you in the past, over

21 there in the jury box, before the case comes to t rial there is

22 a lot of investigation and what we call discovery .  The

23 depositions, the documents are exchanged, and so forth.

24 In addition, there are what we call pleadings, wh ich

25 are more formal documents that state the accusati ons and
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 1 defenses, and so forth, of the respective parties .

 2 And sometimes in the trial something that was

 3 admitted in one of these documents becomes import ant or -- it's

 4 up to the jury to decide what's important, but on e side or the

 5 other wants to remind everyone that the party mad e that

 6 statement in their prior pleading.

 7 Let's just take a different case.  Let's say you had

 8 a case involving a traffic accident, and at one p oint in a

 9 pleading one side said that the light was red.  O kay.  And then

10 by the time they get to trial, they want to say, well, we're

11 not sure the light was red.  Maybe it was almost red.

12 And so they -- the judge may say to the jury in a

13 case like that, well, in the pleadings the partic ular party in

14 question actually said that the light was red and  admitted

15 that.  Okay.

16 So in this case, we're going -- both sides have

17 identified some things in the pleadings and other  proceedings

18 that came before the trial that they would like m e to remind --

19 not remind, but say to you, the jury, that the ot her side made

20 the following statement.  Okay.

21 And right now I'm only going to focus on two.  Th ere

22 are only a handful of these, but two of them I'm going to read

23 to you.  These are ones that Oracle wishes to hav e admitted

24 against Google.  And so I'm going to read those.

25 And these are statements that have been made in t he
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 1 pleadings in this case by Google.  And you may co nsider it as

 2 evidence.  It's not conclusive.  You can consider  it along with

 3 all the other evidence in the case.  But it is a point that

 4 will count as evidence in the case, and you may g ive it such

 5 weight as you think it deserves.

 6 I will read the first one, and I will do this slo wly.

 7 This is the only time you're going to hear this u nless it's

 8 brought up in the closing arguments.

 9 Google has made the following statement prior to

10 trial:

11 "Sun released the specifications for Sun's

12 Java platform, including Sun's Java virtual

13 machine, under a free-of-charge license that

14 allowed developers to create clean room

15 implementations of Sun's Java specifications.

16 If these implementations demonstrate

17 compatibility with the Java specification,

18 then Sun would provide a license for any of

19 its intellectual property needed to practice

20 the specification, including patent rights

21 and copyrights.

22 "The only way to demonstrate compatibility

23 with the Java specification is by meeting all

24 of the requirements of Sun's Technology

25 Compatibility Kit, TCK, for a particular
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 1 edition of Sun's Java.

 2 "Importantly, however, TCKs were

 3 available" -- sorry -- "were only available

 4 from Sun; initially were not available as

 5 open source; were provided solely at Sun's

 6 discretion; and included several

 7 restrictions, such as additional licensing

 8 terms and fees.

 9 "In essence, although developers were free to

10 develop a competing Java virtual machine,

11 they could not openly obtain an important

12 component needed to freely benefit from Sun's

13 purported open sourcing of Java."

14 So that's statement number one.  That statement w as

15 made by Google before trial.

16 Now, here is the next statement.  It's a little

17 shorter.  Quote:  

18 "Although Sun eventually offered to open

19 source the TCK for Java SE, Sun included

20 field of use restrictions that limited the

21 circumstances under which Apache Harmony

22 users could use the software that Apache

23 Software Foundation created, such as

24 preventing the TCK from being executed on

25 mobile devices."
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 1 Close quote.  That's the second statement.

 2 Again, these statements may be considered by you as

 3 evidence.  It's not conclusive.  It must be -- it  should be

 4 considered by you in connection with all of the e vidence in the

 5 case, and it's up to you to decide how much weigh t, if any, to

 6 give to these particular items of evidence.

 7 All right.  That's done.  There will be two or th ree

 8 more like this before the trial is over.  And Goo gle, for its

 9 part, has some it wishes to use against Oracle, b ut, right now,

10 Oracle has the floor.

11 Now, thank you for that.  And our witness will no w

12 please stand and raise his right hand.

13 BOB LEE,  

14 called as a witness for the Plaintiff herein, hav ing been first 

15 duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows :   

16 THE WITNESS:  I do.

17 THE CLERK:   Thank you.

18 THE COURT:  All right.  Welcome, again.  Please sit

19 about this close.  You see how close I am?

20 THE WITNESS:  Yeah.

21 THE COURT:  You are too far.  So you need to move it.

22 No, this will move.

23 THE WITNESS:  Oh.

24 THE COURT:  There.  Say your name.

25 THE WITNESS:  My name is Bob Lee.
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 1 THE COURT:  L-e-e?

 2 THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

 3 THE COURT:  Thank you.  Welcome, again.

 4 Counsel, please go ahead.

 5 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

 6 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

 7 BY MR. JACOBS:   

 8 Q. Good morning, Mr. Lee.  I'm Mike Jacobs.

 9 A. Good morning.  Nice to meet you.

10 Q. You worked at Google from October 2004 to January 2 010?

11 A. Yes, sir.

12 Q. And now you work at another company?

13 A. Yes, sir, Square.

14 Q. You joined the Android team early on, when there we re only

15 about a dozen people in the project, correct?

16 A. Yes, sir.

17 Q. And while you were on the Android team, were you th e core

18 library lead --

19 A. For the majority of the time, yes.

20 Q. Approximately September 2007, until you left Google ,

21 correct?

22 A. Uhm, October 2007.  It might have been earlier than  that,

23 but I'm not sure.  I think I joined probably -- I  had to guess,

24 it would be around more like 2006 or early 2007.  And, yes,

25 until I left Google.

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document967   Filed04/24/12   Page77 of 230



LEE - DIRECT EXAMINATION / JACOBS    981

 1 Q. I want to get the period in which you were the core

 2 library lead.

 3 A. I joined the Android team in 2006, I believe.  And I

 4 became the core library lead shortly after.  I me an, we're

 5 talking like six years ago, so I don't remember e xactly how

 6 long after.

 7 Q. The Android core libraries are the core libraries t hat

 8 include libraries in the Java namespace, like jav a.security,

 9 java.io, java.lang, et cetera, correct?

10 A. Those are the names of the packages, yes.

11 Q. And there are also libraries in the core libraries that

12 are in the javax namespace, correct?

13 A. Yes.

14 Q. And such as the package javax.sql?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. And there are lots of libraries in the Android syst em with

17 the word "Java" in them, correct?

18 A. Yes, with the word "Java" in their names, yes.

19 Q. And Android implements part of the Java SE library APIs,

20 and not other parts, correct?

21 A. Yes.

22 Q. And the Java APIs Android supports are good stuff f rom

23 Java?

24 A. Can you elaborate on that?  Good stuff -- this came  up in

25 the deposition.  Good stuff is kind of a vague te rm.
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 1 THE COURT:  This sounds like you, in your own

 2 deposition, used that phrase.

 3 MR. JACOBS:   That's absolutely right.

 4 THE COURT:  You didn't use that phrase?

 5 THE WITNESS:  I think that was used -- someone else

 6 used it in an instant message conversation, and t hen they asked

 7 me --

 8 THE COURT:  I see.  Is that the way it came up?

 9 THE WITNESS:  Yes.

10 THE COURT:  Then you're going to have to do it the

11 hard way, Mr. Jacobs.  Sorry.  I didn't guess rig ht.  Okay.

12 MR. JACOBS:   We'll see, Your Honor.

13 THE COURT:  Ask a fresh question.

14 MR. JACOBS:   I bet you did guess right.

15 Could we play from Mr. Lee's transcript, at 487,

16 line -- page 48, line 7 to 16.  Clip 8.

17 (Video deposition clip played in open court; not 

18 reported.) 

19 BY MR. JACOBS:   

20 Q. And you stand by that testimony; correct, sir?

21 A. I do like the Java APIs, yes.

22 Q. And you're quite familiar with the Java API

23 specifications?

24 A. Very.

25 Q. You consulted the Java API specifications to make s ure
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 1 that the Android code for the corresponding core libraries

 2 would be consistent with those specifications, co rrect?

 3 A. Yes.

 4 Q. The Java API specifications that you consulted were

 5 available on Sun's website, correct?

 6 A. Yes.

 7 Q. And you consulted those Java API specifications whi le you

 8 were doing work for Google on Android, correct?

 9 A. Yes.

10 Q. You saw that there were copyright notices on the Ja va API

11 specifications when you consulted them, correct?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. You're familiar with the TCK, the Technology Compat ibility

14 Kit, correct?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. In fact, you wanted Android to be able to run again st the

17 TCK, at one point, correct.

18 A. Yes.

19 Q. And you understood --

20 A. A TCK.  Which TCK would you specify?

21 Q. Well, it would be a Sun TCK, correct?

22 A. Yes.  So Java has various platforms, but to kind of

23 simplify, you know, there's, like, the Java SE pl atform, which

24 is aimed at desktops.  Then there's the Java ME p latform, which

25 is another set of APIs aimed at mobiles.  But whe n I say
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 1 "mobiles" in that case it's aimed at, like, tiny feature

 2 phones.  Like Nokia -- 

 3           (Reporter interrupts) 

 4 THE COURT:  You're talking so fast it's impossible to

 5 follow you.

 6 THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry.

 7 A. So Java ME is aimed at feature phones, which have - -

 8 you'll remember, I don't know if you've had one l ike maybe a

 9 Motorola Razor or a Nokia phone with a small scre en and big

10 buttons.  As you know, like the apps on those pho nes aren't

11 very sophisticated compared to an iPhone or an An droid phone,

12 for example.

13 So if Android were to, I guess, adhere to a Java

14 platform, it would be more likely some future pla tform that

15 would be maybe similar to Java SE but aimed at mo biles.

16 So my ultimate goal, because I work a lot on thes e

17 what I thought were open Java standards, would ha ve been to

18 create a mobile platform that Android could have implemented

19 and other similar mobile devices could have also supported.

20 Like the iPhone could have supported it, theoreti cally.

21 BY MR. JACOBS:   

22 Q. And Android has never passed a TCK, to the best of your

23 knowledge; correct, sir?

24 A. No.  We've never tried to run against one.

25 Q. Now, you worked with an outside company called Nose r, to
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 1 implement core libraries according to the Java AP Is, correct?

 2 A. Yes, sir.

 3 Q. Noser was an outside contractor hired by Google to

 4 implement core libraries according to the Java AP I

 5 specifications, correct?

 6 A. Yes.

 7 Q. And the Noser statement of work, in fact, includes a list

 8 of Java libraries that Noser was to develop for A ndroid?

 9 A. So, what was it, again?  I'm sorry.

10 Q. The Noser statement of work includes a list of Java

11 libraries that Noser was engaged to develop for A ndroid?

12 A. I think I recall seeing that during the deposition,  yes.

13 Q. And, in fact, the Java class libraries that are inc luded

14 in that statement of work, the statement of work between Google

15 and Noser, were implemented in Android and suppor ted by Android

16 in the very first version of Android, with very f ew exceptions,

17 correct?

18 A. Yes.

19 Q. Show you Exhibit 405, please.

20 MR. JACOBS:   May I approach, Your Honor?

21 THE COURT:  You may.

22 BY MR. JACOBS:   

23 Q. Exhibit 405 is an e-mail exchange between you and E ric

24 Schmidt, dated May 30, 2008, correct?

25 A. Yes.
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 1 MR. JACOBS:   Offer 405 in evidence, Your Honor.

 2 MR. BABER:   No objection.

 3 THE COURT:  Did you say 2405?

 4 MR. JACOBS:   Sorry.  405.

 5 THE COURT:  405 is received.  Go ahead.

 6 (Trial Exhibit 405 received in evidence.) 

 7 BY MR. JACOBS:   

 8 Q. Now, Eric Schmidt was one of the three top executiv es at

 9 Google in 2008, correct?

10 A. Yes, he was the CEO.

11 Q. And you wrote to him on May 30, 2008, about Apache Harmony

12 correct?

13 A. Yes.

14 Q. And the jury has heard about this disagreement betw een

15 Apache Harmony and Sun, so I want to just focus o n a portion of

16 this in my questioning of you.

17 And if you go to the middle of the "I hope"

18 paragraph.  And we'll start with, "Sun puts field  of use

19 restrictions."

20 Do you see that there?  It's being highlighted on  the

21 screen, if that would aid your examination.

22 A. Yes, I do.

23 Q. And so you wrote to Eric Schmidt, the CEO of the co mpany:  

24 "Sun puts field of use restrictions in the

25 Java SE TCK licenses which prohibit Java SE
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 1 implementations from running on anything but

 2 a desktop or server."

 3 A. Yes.

 4 Q. And you went on:  

 5 "These restrictions prevent Apache Harmony

 6 from independently implementing Java SE.

 7 Harmony can't put those restrictions on their

 8 own users and still Apache license the code."

 9 Do you see that?

10 A. Yes.

11 Q. And then you went on to say:  

12 "Not to mention Android (though that's water

13 under the bridge at this point)."

14 Do you see that?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. So you were advising Eric Schmidt of this issue bet ween

17 the members of the Java community and Sun over th ese field of

18 use restrictions, correct?

19 A. Yes.  I think it's important to note here, also --

20 Q. I'm on the clock, as I've said a few times.  So if the

21 answer is "yes," let me move on to the next quest ion.

22 A. Okay.

23 Q. And Google's counsel can ask you for more explanati on.

24 So by "this e-mail" you were informing Eric Schmi dt

25 that there was no TCK available for using Apache Harmony in
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 1 Android and running it on machines other than the  desktops or

 2 servers, correct?

 3 A. No TCK available for using Apache Harmony in Androi d?

 4 No, I would say no to that.  What I was going to say

 5 before was that Java SE is a very specific thing.   To say that

 6 I'm a Java SE implementation, now you're using ki nd of a brand

 7 name.  For example, to give analogy --

 8 Q. Mr. Lee, I'm sorry.

 9 A. I was saying that you could not create an implement ation

10 that's called Java SE because you would have to h ave permission

11 to use a brand like that.  It's like I couldn't m ake a soda

12 that has the exact same ingredients as Coca-Cola and call mine

13 Coca-Cola.

14 Q. Well, Mr. Lee, that's a very interesting point; isn 't it?  

15 As of May 30, 2008 were you planning on calling

16 Android Java?

17 A. I don't think so.

18 Q. And when you said it's "water under the bridge at t his

19 point," you meant you already made the decision t o adopt the

20 Apache core libraries into Android under your sup ervision;

21 correct, sir?

22 A. To -- well, we adopted -- those were actually adopt ed

23 before I became the core library lead.

24 Q. So that's what "water under the bridge" meant; didn 't it,

25 sir?
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 1 A. I don't exactly recall what -- let me read it again .

 2 Android.  Yes.  I would -- well, I would say that  it meant that

 3 we could not call Android Java.

 4 Q. You don't say that anywhere, do you, in this e-mail ; do

 5 you, sir?

 6 A. Uhm, no, I guess --

 7 Q. What you say is that:  

 8 "These restrictions prevent Apache Harmony

 9 from independently implementing Java SE, not

10 to mention Android."

11 Don't you, sir?

12 A. Java SE, as in, yeah, like a Java SE compatible

13 implementation, yes.

14 Q. I would like to show you Exhibit 281.

15 MR. JACOBS:   May I, Your Honor?

16 THE COURT:  Yes, you may.  How much longer do you

17 have?

18 MR. JACOBS:   I have about ten minutes.

19 THE COURT:  All right.  Please continue.

20 BY MR. JACOBS:   

21 Q. Exhibit 281 is an e-mail to you, from one of your g roup

22 members, Hiroshi Lockheimer.

23 And then on -- sorry.  It's an e-mail exchange, b ut

24 in the middle there's an e-mail to you from Hiros hi Lockheimer.

25 And at the top is a response from you, correct?
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 1 A. Yes.

 2 Q. And in this --

 3 MR. JACOBS:   I offer this into evidence, Your Honor,

 4 281.

 5 MR. BABER:   No objection.

 6 THE COURT:  Received.

 7 (Trial Exhibit 281 received in evidence.) 

 8 THE COURT:  You may publish it.

 9 (Document displayed.) 

10 BY MR. JACOBS:   

11 Q. I would like to focus on the message to you from Hi roshi

12 Lockheimer.  Hiroshi Lockheimer was somebody you had worked

13 with for some years; isn't that true?

14 A. Yes.  

15 Q. At both Danger and at Google, correct?

16 A. I never worked at Danger.

17 Q. I'm sorry.  I confused you.

18 How long had you worked with Hiroshi Lockheimer?

19 A. Just the -- I think he was on the Android project t he

20 whole time.  Maybe he joined -- no, he joined sho rtly after the

21 Android project.  I'm not sure exactly when, but he did

22 eventually become the director of the Android pro ject, which is

23 a type of manager.

24 Q. And he said to you: 

25 "I'm a little nervous about signing Noser up
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 1 to do any more work for us - but that's from

 2 a purely business perspective.  Those guys,

 3 their management team are super shady."

 4 Do you see that?

 5 A. Yes, I do.

 6 Q. Now, in implementing the core libraries that suppor t the

 7 Java API specifications in Android, one of the th ings that

 8 your -- that you and your colleagues had to do wa s write

 9 comments in the core library code that would even tually find

10 its way in the API documentation for Android, cor rect?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. And is it your testimony, sir, that that was done i n a

13 clean room?

14 A. That the comments were written in a clean room?

15 Q. Yes.

16 A. Uhm, that would be without looking at the other

17 specifications?

18 Q. Yes.

19 A. No, I would not say that.

20 Q. So when writing the comments, the comment writers o n the

21 Android team were looking at the comments in the Java

22 documentation, correct?

23 A. Yes.

24 Q. And what instructions were they given about how to avoid

25 copyright infringement comment to comment?
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 1 A. Uhm, I guess this would be equivalent to paraphrasi ng a

 2 book or an article, or something like that.  So, obviously, you

 3 don't copy it word for word.

 4 Q. And you don't paraphrase either; correct, sir?

 5 A. Uhm, well, I believe they did paraphrase.

 6 Q. That your developers did --

 7 A. Paraphrase -- my understanding of the word "paraphr ase" is

 8 to take something and put it into your own words.

 9 Q. As opposed to taking something from someone else an d

10 changing a word here or there to make it look lik e you put it

11 in your own words but not; correct, sir?

12 A. Uhm, I'm not an expert on that.

13 Q. Well, let's take a look at what your developers did .

14 What I'm going to ask you is if you think this is

15 their own words, in your expression, or whether i t is, in my

16 expression, taking somebody else's language and c hanging a word

17 here or there in order to make it look like it's in your own

18 words.

19 A. Right.

20 Q. So let's take a look, first of all, at Trial Exhibi t 610.2

21 on the left, and Trial Exhibit 767 on the right.  And we're

22 looking at the documentation from Java on the lef t and the

23 Android on the right.  And we're looking for the documentation

24 for javax.crypto.CipherInputStream.  Both of thes e exhibits

25 have been admitted.
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 1 MR. BABER:   Your Honor, I would like to object.

 2 THE COURT:  What's the objection?

 3 MR. BABER:   These documents were never provided to us

 4 before Mr. Lee's examination.  Last night, late, they

 5 identified to us very large files without any ide ntification

 6 which parts of them they might use with this witn ess.

 7 THE COURT:  Time for a break.  Fifteen minutes.

 8 Remember the admonition.

 9 THE CLERK:   All rise.

10 (Jury exits courtroom at 9:29 a.m.)  

11 THE COURT:  Thank you.  Mr. Lee, you can step

12 outside.  You don't need to be here for this.

13 THE WITNESS:  Here?

14 THE COURT:  No, that way.

15 (Laughter) 

16 THE COURT:  All right.  Be seated.

17 Mr. Baber, what's the issue?

18 MR. BABER:   Your Honor, as you know, under your

19 procedures they are required to identify the exhi bits they will

20 use on direct.

21 This is a third-party witness on the stand.  They

22 identified documents for Mr. Lee a week ago, or s o.  Last

23 night, at 10:00 o'clock or so, for the first time  they

24 identified two very large source code files, giga ntic files.

25 They didn't identify whatever it is he is now goi ng
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 1 to show the witness.  They didn't identify what p arts of these

 2 very large files he intended to show the witness.   And, as I

 3 say, they didn't identify this to us until 10 o'c lock last

 4 night, after we had already gone through the proc ess of them

 5 identifying experts -- identifying documents.  We

 6 counter-designated where appropriate, et cetera.

 7 And we've given them a lot of slack on lots of la te

 8 identifications of things, but this is a whole no ther kind of

 9 exhibit that they never before, until 10 o'clock last night,

10 indicated they were going to try to use with this  third-party

11 witness.

12 THE COURT:  Is that true?

13 MR. JACOBS:   It is true as factually as Mr. Baber

14 recounts, with this exception.  We have identifie d these

15 exhibits along the way for possible use with witn esses.  It

16 became clear to us that as the core library lead,  Mr. Lee is

17 the right person to ask about the creation of the  documentation

18 from the core libraries.

19 THE COURT:  Don't the guidelines require more than

20 that?

21 MR. JACOBS:   They do, Your Honor.

22 THE COURT:  All right.  We're going to do the

23 following.  How many days' notice -- here's what we'll do.

24 We'll postpone this witness, bring him back on Mo nday.  And

25 we'll go to somebody else.  We'll pick it up righ t there on
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 1 Monday.

 2 Look, Mr. Baber, I'm not going to say to the

 3 plaintiff that they cannot get into this ever.  I f that's

 4 your --

 5 MR. BABER:   Absolutely not, Your Honor.

 6 THE COURT:  If you just want an extension until

 7 Monday, that's okay.  The jury will -- it's easy to explain to

 8 the jury, and we'll move on.

 9 MR. BABER:   And, Your Honor, might I ask, since these

10 are massive files, whatever parts he wants to sho w the witness

11 if he's got little side-by-sides, or whatever, I think those

12 are the documents we should get.

13 THE COURT:  That's a reasonable request.  You ought

14 to do that by the end of today.

15 MR. JACOBS:   Understood, Your Honor.  Thank you.

16 MR. BABER:   Thank you, Your Honor.  

17 I'm sorry, Your Honor.  Since this happened last

18 night, the witness is now on the stand.  Obviousl y, I haven't

19 had a chance to talk to Mr. Lee about these docum ents.  That

20 was the whole point of getting advance notice.

21 How do we want to handle that, given Your Honor's

22 rule about speaking with the witness once he's be gun

23 cross-examination?

24 MR. JACOBS:   I think it's only fair that he be given

25 a chance to review these documents with the witne ss, Your
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 1 Honor.

 2 THE COURT:  All right.  We'll do that.

 3 MR. BABER:   Thank you, Your Honor.

 4 THE COURT:  Okay.  We're going to take a short,

 5 15-minute break ourselves.

 6 Do you have your next witness ready to go?

 7 MR. NORTON:  Mr. Morrill.  Is he here?  We'll make

 8 sure, Your Honor.

 9 THE COURT:  All right.  Fifteen minutes.  Thank you.

10 MR. VAN NEST:   Excuse me, Your Honor.  Should we

11 bring Mr. Lee back in so you can excuse him?  How  do you want

12 to deal with that?  I think we need to tell the j ury something.

13 THE COURT:  Well, if you promise me that he will be

14 here Monday morning, then he can -- you can just tell him he's

15 excused for now, but he's got to be back at 7:30 on Monday

16 morning.

17 MR. VAN NEST:   I don't know that.  He's under

18 subpoena from -- he's not an employee.

19 THE COURT:  Is that okay?  Can we handle it that way,

20 or do you want me to order him back?

21 MR. JACOBS:   We'll take his assurance, Your Honor.

22 The only point I would make is that in the

23 conversation with Mr. Lee, because he is on cross -examination,

24 the only subject that they should discuss with hi m are the

25 exhibits we're going to send over.
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 1 THE COURT:  That's understood.

 2 Okay.  All right.  Can you assure me he'll be bac k on

 3 Monday morning?

 4 MR. VAN NEST:   We're going to find out.

 5 THE COURT:  If he won't, then you bring him back in

 6 and I'll order him to come back.  All right.  Tha t's the way it

 7 would normally be done.

 8 Okay.  So you all have a good 15-minute break.  S ee

 9 you in a few minutes.

10 (Recess taken from 9:33 a.m. to 9:55 a.m.) 

11 THE COURT:  All right.  Let's go back to work.  Sorry

12 for the short delay.

13 My law clerk is going to give you a draft order.

14 It's not final.  Please, be seated.  Give you a d raft order.

15 And this goes to -- you'll see.

16 Before I finalize it, I want to give you a chance  to

17 tell me if you have heartburn over any aspect of it.  I don't

18 think you will.  This is sort of routine in cases  where there

19 are things the judge has got to find.  But I want  to give you

20 your shot at trying to suggest modifications.  Yo u don't have

21 to do that today.  Maybe by Monday you can do tha t, or maybe --

22 on Sunday, at the same time, you submit another l ittle comment

23 on this, will be fine.

24 Okay.  Let's --

25 MR. VAN NEST:   Your Honor, would it be possible to
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 1 give us until Monday on this one?  We have the tw o other

 2 briefs.

 3 THE COURT:  Sure.  Take until Monday at 7:00.

 4 MR. JACOBS:   I'm sorry, Your Honor.  Just to be

 5 clear, the task for us is to comment on this form  of order

 6 rather --

 7 THE COURT:  Yeah.  I could just send that out and say

 8 you're stuck with it and too bad for you.  And I don't think

 9 you would even complain about it, because I think  it's routine.

10 But if it does give you heartburn in some respect , there's time

11 for you to fly spec it and tell me how you would like to change

12 it.

13 MR. JACOBS:   Thank you, Your Honor.

14 THE COURT:  All right.  Now, I don't have my jury

15 here.  Are you ready with your next witness?

16 MR. NORTON:  Yes, Your Honor.

17 THE COURT:  All right.  Hang on a second.

18 THE CLERK:   All rise.

19 (Jury enters the courtroom at 9:57 a.m.) 

20 THE COURT:  All right.  Please be seated.  And let me

21 say, I apologize for the slight delay.  It's my f ault.

22 The lawyers have done a good thing.  They have ag reed

23 that the witness on the stand, Mr. Bob Lee, will be delayed

24 slightly in order for us to take up another witne ss and give

25 counsel an opportunity to review some documents t hat were
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 1 provided a little later than they should have bee n.  Sometimes

 2 this happens in the trial.

 3 But, Mr. Lee will be back.  We're just going to p ick

 4 it up Monday morning with Mr. Lee, right where we  left it off.

 5 So don't -- don't put him out of your mind.  But he'll come

 6 back.

 7 Meanwhile, we're going to go to the next witness.

 8 And that witness will be?

 9 MR. NORTON:  Daniel Morrill.

10 THE COURT:  All right.  Let's bring him forward.

11 State your name.

12 THE WITNESS:  Dan Morrill.

13 THE COURT:  Spell that for me.

14 MR. NORTON:  Yes, Dan Morrill.  M-o-r-r-i-l-l.  

15 THE COURT:  Like in the Morrill Act, 1962.  A famous

16 Act.

17 All right.  Welcome, sir.  Are you okay?

18 THE WITNESS:  (Nods head.)

19 THE COURT:  Great.  Why don't you stand right there

20 and raise your right hand.  You need to raise you r right hand.

21 DANIEL  MORRILL,  

22 called as a witness for the Plaintiff herein, hav ing been first 

23 duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows :   

24 THE WITNESS:  I do.

25 THE CLERK:   Thank you.
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 1 THE COURT:  Great.  Now, do you see the microphone?

 2 You need to be this close, and it will move aroun d.  Make it

 3 easier on you.  So if you want to pull it closer --

 4 THE WITNESS:  Okay.

 5 THE COURT:  It needs to be this close, though.  Why

 6 don't you say your name into the mic.

 7 THE WITNESS:  Okay.  Is that acceptable?

 8 THE COURT:  Good, yes.  Say your name.

 9 THE WITNESS:  My name is Daniel Lawrence Morrill.

10 THE COURT:  Wonderful.  Go ahead.

11 MR. NORTON:  Thank you, Your Honor.

12                        DIRECT EXAMINATION 

13 BY MR. NORTON:  

14 Q. Good morning, Mr. Morrill.

15 A. Good morning.

16 Q. We have not met before, but my name is Fred Norton.   I'm

17 counsel for Oracle.

18 MR. NORTON:  Your Honor, there are still some

19 exhibits from the prior witness on the stand.  Ma y I take

20 those?

21 THE COURT:  Please, take them away.

22 BY MR. NORTON:  

23 Q. Mr. Morrill, you are employed by Google; is that ri ght?

24 A. That's correct.

25 Q. And you've been at Google since 2006?
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 1 A. Since 2006, yes.

 2 Q. And you joined the Android team in around middle of  2009?

 3 A. Uhm, formally, yes.  I was working closely with the m

 4 since, probably, about mid 2007.

 5 Q. All right.  And what did you do beginning mid-2007,  with

 6 respect to Android?

 7 A. Uhm, excuse me.  In -- starting in about mid-2007, I was

 8 on the developer relations team, and eventually b ecame the lead

 9 of that team.

10 Q. Beginning in mid 2009, you became the technical pro gram

11 manager for Android compatibility; is that correc t?

12 A. That's correct.

13 Q. And in that role, one of the things that you did wa s you

14 were manager of the team that maintains the Compa tibility Test

15 Suite; correct?

16 A. Yes, that was one of my responsibilities.

17 Q. And you also oversaw and were the editor for a docu ment

18 called the Compatibility Definition Document; is that also

19 correct?

20 A. Also correct.

21 Q. Is it fair to say that the purpose of -- I'm sorry,  the --

22 your role as technical manager for compatibility was, among

23 other things, to make sure that compatible Androi d devices are

24 capable of running third-party software correctly ?

25 A. Uhm, I guess I would say that my role was to define  the
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 1 criteria that, you know-- to define the criteria of a device

 2 which can run the applications compatibly.

 3 Q. So we are clear, there are devices in the world tha t run

 4 the Android platform, right?

 5 A. Yes, that's correct.

 6 Q. Those are smart phones, right?

 7 And those -- you have to say yes or no, just so o ur

 8 record is clear.

 9 A. Yes.

10 Q. And those smart phones are manufactured by companie s other

11 than Google, correct?

12 A. That's correct.

13 Q. And Google itself has manufactured an Android smart  phone,

14 correct?

15 A. No, not to my understanding.

16 Q. Google released a phone called the Nexus, correct?

17 A. There have been a variety of phones that have Nexus  in the

18 name, that have been built by other companies tha t Google had

19 like a co-branding arrangement with.

20 Q. By Google having "a co-branding arrangement with,"

21 Google's name was put on the phone along with the

22 manufacturers' name, correct?

23 A. That's correct.

24 Q. And part of your job as the technical program manag er was

25 to make sure that the version of Android that was  on those
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 1 other companies' Android phones was compatible wi th the Android

 2 software that Google had helped to develop, corre ct?

 3 A. No.  The reason -- the distinction that I'm making is

 4 simply that there was another team that worked wi th OEMs

 5 directly, and they made sure that individual devi ces were

 6 compatible.  My job was just to define the techni cal criteria

 7 for that, so that's the distinction I make there.

 8 Q. So you would define the technical criteria that wou ld

 9 establish whether or not a third-party's phone wa s compatible?

10 A. Yes.  I would describe myself as like sort of the e ditor

11 of that, yes.

12 Q. And by those "technical criteria" we're talking abo ut

13 requirements, requirements to be considered compa tible,

14 correct?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. Now, you are familiar with the Java class libraries ;

17 aren't you?

18 A. Yes, I'm familiar with the Java class libraries.

19 Q. In fact, you use them, right?

20 A. I do not myself write code on a routine basis anymo re, but

21 I have in the past, yes.

22 MR. NORTON:  May I approach the witness?

23 THE COURT:  Yes.

24 BY MR. NORTON:  

25 Q. Mr. Morrill, if you would take a look, I've handed you
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 1 Exhibit 51.  And you recognize Exhibit 51 as the Android API

 2 packages, correct?

 3 A. Yes.  This appears to be a listing of the APIs that  are

 4 included in Android 2.1.

 5 Q. And Google publishes that list on a website, the An droid

 6 Developers website, correct?

 7 A. Yes, that's correct.

 8 MR. NORTON:  I offer Exhibit 51 -- I'm sorry, Exhibit

 9 51 is already in evidence.  It's published.  Than k you.

10 (Document displayed.) 

11 BY MR. NORTON:  

12 Q. All right.  If you could please turn to page 4 of t he

13 document.

14 A. Okay.

15 Q. And you'll see in the left-hand column there's a se ries of

16 names, correct?

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. And just a little bit more than a quarter of the wa y down

19 the page, we see java.awt.font?

20 A. Yes, I see those.

21 Q. And as we continue down, there are still more packa ges

22 that begin with the name "java," right?

23 A. Yes, that's correct.

24 Q. And if you look at the fifth page, there are still more

25 names that begin with "java" and then "javax," co rrect?
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 1 A. Yeah.

 2 Q. And then if we go all the way to the sixth page, th ere are

 3 still more packages that begin with "javax," corr ect?

 4 A. Yes.

 5 Q. Now, all of those packages that begin with "java" o r

 6 "javax," those are all in Android, correct?

 7 A. Uhm, I would say that, yes, they're available on An droid

 8 devices.

 9 Q. And all of those, pursuant to the requirements, the

10 compatibility criteria, all of those packages mus t be

11 implemented by Android devices to be considered c ompatible,

12 correct?

13 A. That's correct.

14 Q. Now, Android ships an implementation of the Java AP Is --

15 ships an implementation of the APIs that includes

16 implementations of those Java class libraries, ri ght?

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. That implementation includes the names of each of t hese

19 Java class libraries, correct?

20 A. Yes, that's correct.

21 Q. And each of these -- if we were looking at this on

22 Internet, we could click on each of these names a nd see

23 subclasses, correct?

24 A. Yes, that's correct.

25 Q. And those names are the same names as those that ap pear in
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 1 the Java class libraries, correct?

 2 A. I'm sorry, could you repeat that.

 3 Q. Sure.  The names that are in the implementation, in

 4 Android's implementation of the Java class librar ies, those are

 5 the same names as used by Java, right?

 6 A. Yes.

 7 Q. All right.  And not just the names -- do you need s ome

 8 water, Mr. Morrill?

 9 A. Yeah.  It actually is empty.  I would appreciate it  if

10 some is available.

11 MR. NORTON:  Thank you, Mr. -- oh, may I approach?

12 THE COURT:  You may.

13 BY MR. NORTON:  

14 Q. Let me know when you're ready.

15 So not only does the Android implementation of th ese

16 Java APIs, not only does it use the names but it also uses the

17 form/organization of those APIs in the same way t hat Java does,

18 right?

19 A. I don't -- I don't understand what you mean by "for m" or

20 "organization" in this context.  Can you elaborat e.

21 MR. NORTON:  Can we play, as a party admission,

22 Mr. Morrill's deposition transcript, page 56, lin e 24, through

23 57, line 12.  That's line 3.

24 (Video deposition clip played in open court; not 

25 reported.) 
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 1 BY MR. NORTON:  

 2 Q. Now, you're familiar with the term "Java SE," right ?

 3 A. Yeah, the Standard Edition.

 4 Q. And you know it's also sometimes called J2SE, corre ct?

 5 A. Uh-huh.

 6 Q. Now, the Java packages that are in Android, those a re a

 7 subset of the packages that are actually in J2SE,  correct?

 8 A. Yes, that's correct.

 9 Q. So Android includes some but not all of the Java pa ckages

10 that are in J2SE, correct?

11 A. That's correct.

12 Q. And what we see on Exhibit 51 is precisely what tha t

13 subset is, correct?

14 A. Yes, that's correct.

15 MR. NORTON:  Can we play, as a party admission,

16 Mr. Morrill's deposition, page 151, lines 1 throu gh 9.

17 (Video deposition clip played in open court; not 

18 reported.) 

19 BY MR. NORTON:  

20 Q. Now, so we're clear --

21 MR. KWUN:  Your Honor, we don't object to the playing

22 of the deposition excerpt, but we do object to it s admission as

23 a party admission.  Mr. Morrill is not a director  or managing

24 agent of the company.

25 MR. NORTON:  Under Rule 801, it's a party admission,
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 1 Your Honor.

 2 THE COURT:  Under which rule?

 3 MR. NORTON:  It is a party -- it would satisfy the

 4 hearsay exception under 801.  It is a party admis sion.  He need

 5 not be a managing director.  It need only be with in the scope

 6 of his agency.  And he has already testified as t o what his job

 7 is.

 8 I'll develop it further, if I need.

 9 THE COURT:  Well, let's be clear.  When we say party

10 admission, I'm usually thinking of it in terms of  Rule 32, and

11 whether or not it can be played to the jury for a ny purpose.

12 There's also the party admission exception to hea rsay

13 rule.  And that's a different -- that's a differe nt animal.

14 You're not objecting over there to it being playe d for the

15 jury, are you?

16 MR. KWUN:  No, Your Honor.

17 THE COURT:  All right.  So let's just be clear to the

18 jury that when something comes in as evidence and  Mr. Norton

19 says it's being played as a party admission, it i s not being

20 played as some sort of locked in stone, concrete,  it can't be

21 disputed, is forever binding on Google.  No.  If that's what

22 you meant, no.

23 This is just one more item of information that's

24 available to the jury to be weighed in connection  with all of

25 the rest of the evidence in the case.  And it sho uld not be
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 1 taken as some sort of evidence with extra value o r conclusive

 2 value.  I don't think that's what Mr. Norton mean t.  I think

 3 what he was referring to, rules of evidence and s o forth.

 4 But the jury should not be -- both sides have use d

 5 that phrase.  I want to be clear.  There is no ex tra weight to

 6 be given.  It's up to you to decide how much weig ht to give to

 7 something.  But there's no extra weight to be giv en to

 8 something once it comes into evidence.  You consi der it along

 9 with all of the other evidence in the case, and d ecide how much

10 weight to give to it.

11 So since there is no objection to it coming into

12 evidence at all -- right?  Correct?

13 MR. KWUN:  Correct, Your Honor.

14 THE COURT:  Then it's just going to be one more item

15 in the overall mix for the jury to consider.

16 Thank you.  Please proceed.

17 MR. NORTON:  Thank you, Your Honor.

18 BY MR. NORTON:  

19 Q. I want to be clear about compatibility.  What you t est in

20 your job or -- I apologize.  What you define the requirements

21 for in your job is whether Android devices will b e compatible

22 with Android, correct?

23 A. Uhm, that seems like kind of a insufficiently preci se way

24 to put it.

25 Q. Tell me the precise way that you would put it.
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MORRILL - DIRECT EXAMINATION  / NORTON   1010

 1 A. What I would say that we do is, the compatibility p rogram,

 2 in general, is intended to make sure that compati ble Android

 3 devices can run applications written to the Andro id SDK.

 4 Q. Now, android does not support Java applications, co rrect?

 5 A. That is correct.

 6 Q. And so Android is not Java compatible, correct?

 7 A. That's correct.

 8 Q. Now, one -- you testified already that one of the

 9 documents that Google publishes is -- or that you  prepare is

10 the Compatibility Definition Document, correct?

11 A. That's correct.

12 Q. And the Compatibility Definition Document that is, in

13 turn, published by Google, correct?

14 A. That's correct.

15 MR. NORTON:  May I approach the witness?

16 THE COURT:  You may.

17 BY MR. NORTON:  

18 Q. Mr. Morrill, you have Trial Exhibit 749 in front of  you.

19 And that document is the Compatibility Definition  Document, is

20 it not?

21 A. It is the Compatibility Definition Document for Ver sion

22 2.2.

23 Q. And you were the editor of that document, correct?

24 A. Yes, that's correct.

25 Q. And that document defines the requirements for a de vice to
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MORRILL - DIRECT EXAMINATION  / NORTON   1011

 1 be considered compatible, right?

 2 A. Some of the terms are optional, but, yes, in genera l it

 3 defines the requirements.

 4 Q. And the terms that are in the CDD, those are the on es that

 5 are defined as requirements; those are binding re quirements

 6 because that's what compatible means, right?

 7 A. That's right.

 8 Q. Google not only publishes requirements for what it takes

 9 to be compatible, but it discourages OEMs, phone manufacturers,

10 from even changing the code in Android, correct?

11 A. We discourage them from making changes to the code that

12 would introduce bugs.  But there's no requirement  that they not

13 change the code.

14 Q. But there are requirements that they cannot change certain

15 things, in order to be compatible, correct?

16 A. Uhm --

17 Q. That was poorly phrased.

18 A. That they comply with certain clauses, yes.  I don' t know

19 what you mean here by "certain things."

20 Q. Fair enough.  If you turn to Exhibit 749, to page 4  --

21 A. Uh-huh.

22 Q. There's a Section 3.1.

23 A. Yes, I see it.

24 Q. "Manage API Compatibility," correct?

25 A. Yes.
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 1 Q. And this is one of the requirements, correct?

 2 A. Yes, this is one of the requirements.

 3 Q. And what the document states is, "Device

 4 implementations" -- and device implementations me ans the

 5 version of Android that is installed on the OEM's  phone,

 6 correct?

 7 A. That's right.

 8 Q. (As read)

 9 "Device implementations must not omit any

10 managed APIs, alter API interfaces or

11 signatures, deviate from the documented

12 behavior, or provide no-ops, except where

13 specifically allowed by this compatibility

14 definition."

15 Is that right?

16 A. That's right.

17 Q. That is a requirement, right?

18 A. That is a requirement.

19 Q. So to be a compatible Android device, that device m ust

20 satisfy this section -- requirement of Section 3. 1?

21 A. That's correct.

22 Q. If you'd turn, please, to Section 3.6, which is on page 8.

23 All right.  And starting with the second sentence , it

24 says, "To ensure."

25 "To ensure compatibility with third-party
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MORRILL - DIRECT EXAMINATION  / NORTON   1013

 1 applications, device implementers" -- 

 2 Now, device implementers, those are the OEMs, aga in

 3 correct?

 4 A. That's correct.

 5 Q. (As read) 

 6 "Device implementers MUST NOT make any

 7 prohibited modifications - see below - to

 8 these package namespaces."

 9 So this is a requirement, again, right? 

10 A. That's correct.

11 Q. "Must not" is all in capital letters; isn't it?

12 A. (Nods head.)

13 Q. And the package namespaces, that cannot be changed include

14 "java" and "javax," correct?

15 A. Yes, those are included.

16 Q. All right.  And then the prohibited modifications i nclude:  

17 "Device implementations must not modify the

18 publicly-exposed APIs on the Android platform

19 by changing any method or class signatures,

20 or by removing classes or class fields."

21 Correct?

22 A. That's also correct.

23 Q. That's also a requirement to be compatible, correct ?

24 A. That is also a requirement.

25 Q. Now, Google not only has these specified requiremen ts,
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 1 Google also has the compatibility test suite, cor rect?

 2 A. That's correct.

 3 Q. And so Google not only tells device manufacturers t hat you

 4 must comply with the requirements in the Compatib ility

 5 Definition Document, it also has its own test to ensure that

 6 OEMs are actually following those requirements; i s that right?

 7 A. Uhm, not all requirements are testable in that mann er,

 8 but, yes, the CTS tests as many of them as possib le.

 9 Q. So we have two levels then.  We have a set of

10 requirements, and we have a test that covers as m any as

11 possible of the requirements in the Compatibility  Definition

12 Document, correct?

13 A. Yes, that's correct.

14 Q. And the test, that's the Compatibility Test Suite, right?

15 A. Yes, that's correct.

16 Q. And one of the things that the compatibility test s uite

17 tests is the presence of the APIs; is that right?

18 A. The presence of the listed APIs, yes.

19 Q. The list of APIs are the ones on Trial Exhibit 51, that we

20 discussed near the start of your testimony.  Is t hat right?

21 A. Yes, that's correct.

22 Q. Now, Google has something called the Android Market ; is

23 that right?

24 A. That's correct.

25 Q. And the Android Market -- well, why don't you just tell
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 1 us, what is the Android Market?

 2 A. Uhm, the Android Market, which is now known as Goog le Play

 3 relatively recently, but the Android Market is a store

 4 application available on an Android device, that allows users

 5 to get applications to run on their Android devic es.

 6 Q. Now, if an OEM wants the phone that they put out in  the

 7 world to be able to access that Android market, t hey must be

 8 certified compatible, correct?

 9 A. Uhm, I'm not entirely sure on the business side of this,

10 but what I know is that a device must be compatib le as a

11 prerequisite to request access to Android Market.

12 Q. So in order to request access to Android Market, th e

13 device first must be compatible?

14 A. That's correct.

15 Q. And so in order for an OEM to be able to tell peopl e who

16 buy this phone that you will be able to get the a pplications

17 available through the Android Market, first they must be

18 certified compatible?

19 A. We don't have a certification program but, yes, the y must

20 comply with the Compatibility Definition Document .

21 Q. In order to use the Android brand, they must pass t he

22 Compatibility Test Suite and satisfy the definiti ons, the

23 requirements in the Compatibility Definition Docu ment, correct?

24 A. My understanding is that the trademark is handled t he same

25 way as access to Android Market is.
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 1 Q. All right.  And Google actually prevents incompatib le

 2 implementations of Android from getting access to  the Android

 3 Market, correct?

 4 A. That, I actually don't know.  I'm not sure if we've  ever

 5 made exceptions to that.

 6 Q. Now, there are a number of large companies that mak e

 7 Android phones; is that right?

 8 A. Uhm, there's a number of companies.  I don't know i f you

 9 call it "large" but, yeah.

10 Q. Well, Motorola is one of those companies, correct?

11 A. Motorola is one.

12 Q. And Motorola makes Android-compliant smart phones?

13 A. They make Android-compatible smart phones, yeah.

14 Q. And Samsung makes Android-compatible smart phones,

15 correct?

16 A. That's correct.

17 Q. And HTC makes Android-compatible smart phones, corr ect?

18 A. Also correct.

19 Q. And LG makes Android-compatible smart phones, corre ct?

20 A. Also correct.

21 Q. And each of those Android-compatible smart phones f rom

22 Motorola, from Samsung, from HTC, and from LG, th ose all have

23 the Android brand, correct?

24 A. Yeah.  My understanding is that at least one does f rom

25 each, yeah.
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 1 Q. Are you aware of any incompatible devices offered b y any

 2 of those manufacturers?

 3 A. No, I'm not specifically aware of any.

 4 Q. And do you know the number of Android activations,

 5 compatible Android activations, how many devices are activated

 6 each day?

 7 A. It's been some time since I've looked at the statis tics

 8 for that, but I believe it's something on the ord er of -- the

 9 last I looked as of about a month or two ago -- s omething --

10 about 750,000 per day, on average.

11 Q. 750,000 Android-compatible devices every single day ?

12 A. The last time that I checked stats, yes.

13 Q. Since every one of those devices is Android compati ble,

14 every one of those devices has the Java APIs that  are listed on

15 Exhibit 51, correct?

16 A. It has implementations of those APIs, yes.

17 MR. NORTON:  Nothing further.

18 THE COURT:  All right.  Cross-examination.

19 Remind the jury your name.

20 MR. KWUN:  Michael Kwun for Google.

21 THE COURT:  Great.  The floor is yours.

22                        CROSS EXAMINATION 

23 BY MR. KWUN:   

24 Q. Mr. Morrill, can you tell the jury a little bit abo ut your

25 educational background.
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 1 A. Sure.  I have a bachelor's degree in physics and co mputer

 2 science from Clarkson University.  And I have a m aster's degree

 3 in computer science from Western Polytechnic Inst itute.

 4 Q. And are you familiar with the Java programming lang uage?

 5 A. Yeah.

 6 Q. When did you first learn to program in the Java lan guage?

 7 A. First learned as an undergraduate, I believe in the  -- my

 8 last two years of college, which I think would ha ve been

 9 '97-'98.

10 Q. How did you learn to program in the Java language?

11 A. I found a online tutorial like a web page that kind  of

12 taught you how to program.  So I sort of self-tau ght myself

13 from a website.

14 Q. And did that tutorial include any instruction about  the

15 Java APIs?

16 A. Yeah, definitely.

17 Q. And in your experience -- so how many years have yo u been

18 programming in Java?

19 A. Off and on, probably about 10 to 12, I guess.

20 Q. And in your 10 to 12 years of programming in the Ja va

21 programming language, have you ever written a Jav a program that

22 didn't use the Java APIs?

23 A. Uhm, no.

24 Q. You testified a little bit about compatibility and in

25 particular about the Compatibility Definition Doc ument and the
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 1 Compatibility Test Suite.

 2 If somebody wants to use the Android code, are th ey

 3 required to be -- to pass a Compatibility Test Su ite?

 4 A. Certainly not.

 5 Q. Are they required to comply with the Compatibility

 6 Definition Document?

 7 A. No.

 8 Q. So they can use the Android code without doing eith er of

 9 those things?

10 A. That's right.  They can use the Android code whatev er they

11 want.

12 Q. So why then do people comply with the Compatibility

13 Definition Document?

14 A. Because it's to everyone's advantage to have, you k now,

15 what we would call in the industry is like a thri ving

16 ecosystem.

17 Q. And are you aware of companies that use the Android  code

18 without having passed the Compatibility Test Suit e or complying

19 with the Compatibility Definition Document?

20 A. I am.

21 Q. Can you give us some examples?

22 A. Yeah I can think of two.  Barnes & Noble has a prod uct

23 called a Nook, which at least one model runs the Android

24 software.  And Amazon has a product called the Ki ndle Fire,

25 which also runs a version of the Android software .
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 1 Q. And for the jury's benefit, what is the Nook?

 2 A. The Nook is an E-book reader.  It's about this big

 3 (indicating) and you can pick books on it and rea d books on it.

 4 Q. And what is the Kindle Fire?

 5 A. A Kindle Fire is also an E-book reader but is also a

 6 tablet computer.

 7 Q. So if somebody passes the CTS -- well, first of all , you

 8 said that Google doesn't have a certification pro gram.  What

 9 did you mean by that?

10 A. I just mean that it's possible for an OEM to achiev e

11 compatibility regardless of whether they get any kind of

12 official rubber stamp or anything like that from Google.

13 Q. And when they pass the CTS, is that something they do,

14 that they test for, or something that Google test s for?

15 A. It's something that the OEMs run on their own devic es.

16 Q. So they self-report certification -- or self-report

17 compatibility, I should say?

18 A. Yes, exactly.

19 Q. Okay.  And if a partner passed the CTS, based on th at do

20 you know whether or not the partner has changed a ny Android

21 code? 

22 A. You could usually or at least frequently tell, but you

23 can't necessarily be sure.

24 Q. So you can usually tell that they have changed the code or

25 haven't changed the code?
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 1 A. You can usually tell that they have altered the cod e.

 2 Q. Is there any way, based on the results of the CTS, that

 3 you could determine that they haven't changed the  code?

 4 A. Is there a -- just make sure I understand the quest ion

 5 you're asking.  Is there a way to make sure that -- can the CTS

 6 be used to determine if they have not changed the  code?

 7 Q. Correct.

 8 A. No.  

 9 Q. Okay.  So, and then -- but you said you can only te ll that

10 they have changed the code?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. How can you tell that?

13 A. Like, I think two ways.  If you pick up a phone for  many

14 OEMs, many of us like to customize the user inter face.  We'll

15 make it look different, change colors and so on.  To do that,

16 that requires that they have made customizations to the Android

17 source code.

18 So if you pick up a device and it doesn't look li ke

19 what we call the stock or, you know, original ver sion of

20 Android, you know that they must have made some k ind of a code

21 change to it.  

22 Similarly, occasionally we will see an OEM ship a

23 device on a new, you know, CPU chip or something like that that

24 Google has never interacted with or seen before a nd when that

25 happens they, obviously, had to do changes to the  code in order
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 1 to make their -- the software run on this new kin d of hardware.

 2 Q. And you testified a moment ago that Android does no t

 3 support Java applications.  So does Android suppo rt

 4 applications that are written in the Java languag e?

 5 A. Yes, that's correct.

 6 Q. So what did you mean when you said it does not supp ort

 7 Java applications?  

 8 A. "Java" is kind of a big and almost vague term in a way.

 9 As an engineer, it's one of those things that it means

10 something to us in kind of a subtle way.  And it' s sort of like

11 if you go outside and look at a car, everybody kn ows what a car

12 looks like.  You know, it might have, you know, s ome wheels are

13 bigger than others or, you know, some might have a steering

14 while on the right-hand side if you are in the UK , but it's

15 still a car and you know a car when you see it.

16 In a way that's sort of how engineers think of Ja va.

17 You know, it's the whole laundry list of things.  Like, does it

18 run Java virtual machine?  Does it run Java bytec ode?  There's,

19 like, a whole list of things.

20 Q. So, again, what language do people typically use wh en they

21 write programs for the Android, for the -- for An droid, the

22 Android platform?

23 A. They typically use the Java programming language.

24 MR. KWUN:  May I approach the witness, your Honor?

25 THE COURT:  You may.
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 1  (Whereupon, document was tendered  

 2   to the witness.) 

 3 BY MR. KWUN:  

 4 Q. I have handed you what's been marked as Trial Exhib it

 5 2301.  And do you recognize this document?

 6 A. Yes.  This appears to be a printout of a particular  page

 7 on our source.entry.com website.

 8 MR. KWUN:  Offer into evidence, your Honor.

 9 MR. NORTON:  No objection.

10 THE COURT:  2301 is received.

11 (Trial Exhibit 2301 received 

12  in evidence) 

13 BY MR. KWUN:  

14 Q. Mr. Morrill, can you could turn to Page 4 of Exhibi t 2301?

15 You see there is a heading in there that says "Co mpatibility.

16 What does 'compatibility' mean?"

17 A. I see that.

18 Q. Okay.  And then a little further down you see -- ju st a

19 second.

20 Actually, if you turn to Page 5.

21 A. Five, okay.

22 Q. You see where it says right at the top:  "Is compat ibility

23 mandatory?"

24 A. Yes, I do see that.

25 Q. Can you read the paragraph underneath that?
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 1 A. Sure.  Quote:  

 2 "No.  The Android compatibility program is

 3 optional.  Since the Android source code is

 4 open, anyone can use it to build any kind of

 5 device.  However, if a manufacturer wishes to

 6 use the Android name with their product or

 7 wants access to Android Market, they must

 8 first demonstrate that the device is

 9 compatible."  Unquote.

10 Q. Then is that basically what you were talking about before

11 in your earlier testimony?

12 A. Yes, exactly so.

13 Q. Mr. Morrill, how long have you been on the Android team?

14 A. Formally since about mid-2009 and closely working w ith

15 them since 2007.

16 Q. And so in your informal role working with them sinc e 2007,

17 you were working with the Android team when the - - when Google

18 originally announced, publicly announced Android;  is that

19 correct?

20 A. Oh, yes.  Definitely.

21 Q. And when did Google publicly announce Android?

22 A. We announced Android on November 5th, 2007.

23 Q. And do you remember reading any responses to that

24 announcement from Sun?

25 MR. NORTON:  Objection.  Beyond the scope.
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 1 MR. KWUN:  Your Honor, it's just one or two

 2 questions.

 3 THE COURT:  All right.  You're allowed -- does this

 4 mean you're not going to call him back in your ca se?

 5 MR. KWUN:  Yes, your Honor.

 6 THE COURT:  I will allow you to do that, but I'm not

 7 necessarily saying that this is without prejudice  to objection

 8 to specific questions.  

 9 But, all right.  Go ahead.

10 BY MR. KWUN:  

11 Q. So, Mr. Morrill, do you remember hearing any respon ses out

12 of Sun or learning about any responses out of Sun  in response

13 to the public announcement of Android?

14 A. Yeah.  In fact, there was a blog post by the CEO th at

15 was -- that we thought was pretty remarkable.

16 MR. KWUN:  May I approach the witness, your Honor?

17 THE COURT:  Yes.

18  (Whereupon, document was tendered  

19   to the witness.) 

20 BY MR. KWUN:  

21 Q. I have handed you Trial Exhibit 2352.  Is this the blog

22 post that you're talking about?

23 A. Yes, it is.

24 Q. And you read this blog post in early November, 2007 ?

25 A. Yes, I did.
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 1 Q. Where did you -- where was this blog post?

 2 A. This was posted to Sun's website.

 3 MR. KWUN:  Your Honor, I offer 2352 into evidence.

 4 MR. NORTON:  Objection.

 5 THE COURT:  Objection is?

 6 MR. NORTON:  403, and 401 and 402.

 7 THE COURT:  Those objections are overruled.

 8 Received.  What's the number?

 9 MR. KWUN:  2352.

10 THE COURT:  All right.  Received in evidence.

11 (Trial Exhibit 2352 received 

12  in evidence) 

13 BY MR. KWUN:  

14 Q. Who was the author of this blog post?

15 A. The author of this blog post was Jonathan Schwartz.

16 Q. I think you just said this, but just to be sure, wh at was

17 his role at Sun at the time?

18 A. He was the CEO of Sun.

19 Q. Okay.  Can you read the first two paragraphs of thi s blog

20 post?

21 A. Sure.  Title is "Congratulations Google, Red Hat an d the

22 Java Community."  

23 And then the text reads:

24 "I just wanted to add my voice to the chorus

25 of others from Sun in offering my heartfelt
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 1 congratulations to Google on the announcement

 2 of their new Java/Linux phone platform,

 3 Android.  Congratulations."

 4 "I'd also like Sun to be the first platform

 5 software company to commit to a complete

 6 developer environment around the platform as

 7 we throw Sun's NetBeans developer platform

 8 for mobile devices behind the effort.  You've

 9 obviously done a ton of work to support

10 developers on all Java-based platforms and we

11 are pleased to add Google's Android to the

12 list."  End Quote.

13 That's the first two paragraphs.  Did you want me  to

14 read more?

15 Q. Could you read the fourth paragraph?  And if you co uld

16 read a little slower for the benefit of the repor ter, that

17 would be great.

18 A. Of course.  Sorry.

19 Fourth.  Quote:  

20 "And needless to say, Google and the Open

21 Handset Alliance just strapped another set of

22 rockets to the communities' momentum - and to

23 the vision defining opportunity across ours

24 (and other) planets."

25 Q. So you said this was -- you thought this was a rath er
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 1 remarkable blog post a moment ago.  Why did you t hink it was

 2 remarkable?

 3 A. Well, internally the team, we were not privy to the

 4 details, but we knew there had been some kind of interaction

 5 with Sun around Android.

 6 But what particularly struck us was that even tho ugh,

 7 you know, that was the context, that we still hav e the CEO of

 8 Sun offering congratulations.  And what I, myself , found

 9 particularly interesting was more than that, this  actual

10 commitment of engineering resources in regards to  this NetBeans

11 product.

12 Q. So you're talking about the second paragraph of the  blog

13 post there when you say NetBeans?

14 A. Yes, exactly.

15 Q. What is NetBeans?

16 A. NetBeans is what we call an integrated development

17 environment, which is just a -- it's an engineeri ng tool that's

18 kind of the main piece of software that we used t o write

19 applications.

20 Q. So when Sun said that they were going to throw NetB eans --

21 the NetBean developer platform for mobile devices  behind the

22 effort, that meant that they were supporting?

23 MR. NORTON:  Objection.

24 BY MR. KWUN:  

25 Q. That meant that they were supporting Android?
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 1 THE COURT:  The objection is?  

 2 MR. NORTON:  Foundation.  Being asked to interpret

 3 what the document meant.

 4 THE COURT:  That's true.  Sustained.

 5 BY MR. KWUN:  

 6 Q. What did you understand that to mean ?

 7 MR. NORTON:  Objection.  Relevance, plus 401 and 402.

 8 THE COURT:  Sustained.  We're just calling for a

 9 speech.  This is just a speech.

10 No.  Next question.

11 BY MR. KWUN:  

12 Q. And this blog post, did you discuss this blog post with

13 other members of the Android team?

14 MR. NORTON:  Objection, hearsay.

15 THE COURT:  Sustained.

16 MR. NORTON:  Your Honor, we're well beyond the two or

17 three questions we were promised.

18 THE COURT:  I know.  On my fingers I can count up to

19 10, and we're past 10, and you said two or three.

20 MR. KWUN:  I'm sorry, your Honor.  No more questions.

21 MR. VAN NEST:   Your Honor, may I interpose and

22 request a brief sidebar with the court before thi s witness

23 leaves?

24 THE COURT:  Sure.

25
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 1 (Whereupon, the following proceedings 

 2  were held at side bar.) 

 3 THE COURT:  Go ahead.

 4 MR. VAN NEST:   The plaintiff has made a big deal out

 5 of claiming that Google could not show any relian ce on the

 6 statements by Mr. Schwartz.

 7 Now, we have a number of witnesses who are going to

 8 testify that they read it.  They saw it.  They di scussed it and

 9 they understood various things from it.  And that 's the only

10 way I think that we could establish reliance.  

11 Reliance is not an element of all our equitable

12 defenses, but it is of some.  And unless we have a little

13 latitude -- we don't need much with this witness,  but unless we

14 have a little latitude to allow him to discuss wh at he read,

15 how he understood it --

16 THE COURT:  What's he going to say?  Has he even said

17 that he himself relied on it?

18 MR. VAN NEST:   He hasn't yet.

19 THE COURT:  No.

20 MR. VAN NEST:   Because you haven't allowed -- what

21 he's going to testify to, I believe, is that he r ead it.  He

22 understood it as an endorsement.  He already said  that; that he

23 was impressed that they were going to put enginee ring resources

24 behind it. 

25 He discussed it with others at Google, others in the
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 1 engineering department, and that his understandin g of it was

 2 that Sun had approved Android based on statements  by the CEO.

 3 Now, Michael, is he going to say anything more th an

 4 that?

 5 MR. KWUN:  That's about it.

 6 MR. VAN NEST:   So unless I can, unless we have some

 7 way of proving that --

 8 THE COURT:  Well, what was his decision making

 9 authority in this project?

10 MR. VAN NEST:   Michael?

11 MR. KWUN:  He was responsible for the compatibility

12 testing suite and the compatibility definition do cument.

13 MR. NORTON:  Not at that time.

14 THE COURT:  Well, I think you could ask him this

15 question:  What, if any, influence did this annou ncement have

16 on your personal course of action in either seeki ng or not

17 seeking a license from Oracle, or in that case Su n?

18 MR. VAN NEST:   Sun.

19 THE COURT:  Now, probably he will answer he had

20 nothing to do with licensing.  I don't know.  Did  he?

21 MR. VAN NEST:   I think that --

22 THE COURT:  But he can -- if he had something to do

23 with licensing and can say, "Based on this, I dec ided not to

24 seek a license, I thought it was cool with Sun," okay, I can

25 see that.  But the mere fact that people are talk ing about it
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 1 in the hallways, that's not proof of reliance.

 2 There could have been somebody in the legal

 3 department knew good and well that they needed a license or

 4 not.  I don't know.  But that's -- if you're goin g to try to

 5 prove up reliance just that they are talking abou t it in the

 6 hallways, that doesn't prove much.

 7 MR. VAN NEST:   Well, your Honor, I don't disagree,

 8 but I don't think it can be limited just to those  people with

 9 decision making authority.

10 For example, there will be witnesses to say this was

11 known to us.  It was discussed with me.  They may  or may not

12 have actually read the blog post, but became awar e of it

13 through discussion at Google and relied on it.

14 Now, it's --

15 THE COURT:  How -- he can't say they relied on it.

16 MR. VAN NEST:   Mr. Morrill is not involved in

17 licensing, but I ought to at least be able to est ablish that he

18 read it and discussed it with others at Google, w ithin Google,

19 to lay the foundation for other witnesses who wil l say, "Yeah,

20 we were aware of it.  It was a big topic of discu ssion and I

21 relied on it in this way."

22 MR. NORTON:  Your Honor, the foundation for testimony

23 from other witnesses comes in through those other  witnesses

24 with respect to their knowledge and their decisio n making.  Mr.

25 Morrill can't testify as to what those other witn esses knew,
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 1 nor what they decided to do, nor what they relied  on.

 2 THE COURT:  They could testify that they knew about

 3 it through hallway discussions.

 4 MR. VAN NEST:   Yes.

 5 MR. NORTON:  That is not -- excuse me.

 6 THE COURT:  That's not hearsay.  That would be -- you

 7 know, he can testify firsthand as to what he, him self, said or

 8 what others said, not their -- not the other peop le's reliance

 9 or reactions.  I could see that distinction being  wrong.

10 MR. VAN NEST:   That's all we're trying to elicit from

11 this witness.

12 MR. NORTON:  Your Honor, it's still hearsay.

13 THE COURT:  It wouldn't be hearsay for that limited

14 purpose.

15 MR. NORTON:  If I may?  

16 Do I understand the limited purpose of the testim ony

17 is -- I'm afraid I do not understand.

18 THE COURT:  Here is the one question I will allow you

19 to ask, even though you're way beyond two or thre e.

20 You've got to be honest with me when you tell me -- I

21 would have made you bring this witness back in yo ur case if I

22 had known it was going to be 10 questions.

23 All right.  Here is the question you can ask:  Di d

24 you specifically discuss this blog with other peo ple at Google?

25 "Yes" or "no."  That's it.  And he can't say what  they said to
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 1 him in response.  He can't say they relied.  If h e starts doing

 2 that, I'm going to interrupt him and instruct the  jury to

 3 disregard what he said.

 4 So be careful and don't try to slip something in

 5 there.  That's all he can do.  Was it discussed?  Did you,

 6 yourself, participate in discussions with other p eople on this

 7 subject?

 8 MR. NORTON:  Your Honor, I understand the ruling.  I

 9 do want to note that we certainly -- we served th e

10 interrogatory.  We asked for all the bases for th eir

11 affirmative defenses and reliance on this blog po st by anyone.

12 This was never disclosed as one of the bases.  An d if your

13 Honor is going to allow this testimony --

14 THE COURT:  This is coming too late for me.  That's

15 an objection that I might have listened to earlie r, but it's

16 too late now.

17 All right.  That's the ruling.

18 MR. VAN NEST:   We understand it, your Honor.  Thank

19 you.

20 MR. NORTON:  Thank you.

21 (Whereupon, the following proceedings were 

22  held in open court, in the presence and 

23  hearing of the jury.) 

24 BY MR. KWUN:  

25 Q. Mr. Morrill, referring to this blog post, did you,
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 1 yourself, personally discuss this blog post with others on the

 2 Android team?

 3 And I just want to know whether you did discuss i t,

 4 not what the discussions were.

 5 THE COURT:  "Yes" or "no."  Go ahead.

 6 A. Yes.

 7 BY MR. KWUN:  

 8 Q. Thank you.  No further questions.

 9 THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you.

10 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

11 BY MR. NORTON:  

12 Q. Mr. Morrill, you testified that there are about 750 ,000

13 Android compatible devices activated every day, c orrect?

14 A. Yes.

15 Q. And that number does not include the additional dev ices,

16 like the Kindle Fire and the Barnes and Noble E-B ook reader

17 that you described as not defined as compatible, correct?

18 A. That's correct.

19 Q. So the number of devices that are out there that ar e --

20 actually include the Java packages that are liste d on

21 Exhibit 51 is even more than 750,000 activated ev ery day,

22 correct?

23 MR. KWUN:  Objection, foundation.

24 THE COURT:  Do you know the answer?

25 THE WITNESS:  No.
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 1 BY MR. NORTON:  

 2 Q. Now, Mr. Kwun showed you Exhibit 2352.

 3 A. He did.

 4 Q. Have you ever seen a license agreement before?

 5 A. I'm sorry.  Say again?

 6 Q. Have you ever seen a license agreement before?

 7 A. License agreement?  In what sense, for --

 8 Q. In any sense.

 9 A. I'm pretty familiar with copyright license agreemen ts for

10 OEM source software, sure.

11 Q. Exhibit 2352.  Is that a license agreement or a blo g post?

12 MR. KWUN:  Objection.  Calls for a legal conclusion.

13 THE COURT:  It's argument.  It's okay to argue, but

14 you've got to wait for the closing argument.  Thi s isn't

15 argument.

16 MR. NORTON:  Fair enough.  Thank you, your Honor.

17 May I approach the witness?

18 BY MR. NORTON:  

19 Q. I'm going to hand the witness Exhibit 245.

20  (Whereupon, document was tendered  

21   to the witness.) 

22 Q. Mr. Morrill, is this an email that you sent on May 23rd,

23 2008?

24 A. Yes.

25 Q. And you sent it to Justin Mattson, is that right?
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 1 A. That's correct.

 2 Q. And you sent it to a distribution called Advocates,  is

 3 that right?

 4 A. That's correct.

 5 Q. And that's a distribution of people who work for Go ogle?

 6 A. Yes.

 7 Q. And you sent it to a distribution called AndroidPR.

 8 That's another group of people that work at Googl e, correct?

 9 A. That's correct.  

10 Q. This is an email that you sent from your work addre ss?

11 A. I assumed so.

12 MR. NORTON:  We offer Exhibit 245.

13 MR. KWUN:  Objection, your Honor.  The exhibit was

14 never disclosed to him.

15 MR. NORTON:  It is offered in response to the door

16 opening with Exhibit 2352.

17 THE COURT:  Is 2352 listed here?

18 MR. NORTON:  The defendant disclosed Exhibit 2352.

19 We did not.

20 In response to their questions, I would like to

21 examine Mr. Morrill on the statements that appear  in Exhibit

22 245, defendants having opened the door.

23 MR. KWUN:  Your Honor, this is a May 2008 email

24 that -- 2352 is a blog post from November of 2007 .

25 MR. NORTON:  I can connect them.
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 1 THE COURT:  Go ahead.  I will let you use --

 2 MR. NORTON:  I can direct your Honor --

 3 THE COURT:  Was he at Google when he made this

 4 document?

 5 BY MR. NORTON:  

 6 Q. Mr. Morrill, you were a Google employee on May 23rd , 2008,

 7 were you not?

 8 A. I was.

 9 Q. And you were working on Android at that time, corre ct?

10 A. I would not have been formally on the team, but, ye s, I

11 would have been working in my capacity as develop er relations.

12 THE COURT:  I'm going to allow 245 in.  Go ahead.

13 (Trial Exhibit 245 received 

14  in evidence) 

15 BY MR. NORTON:  

16 Q. Mr. Morrill, if you would turn to -- let me just be  quick.

17 This is an email that you sent, correct?  Correct ,

18 Mr. Morrill?

19 A. One moment.  Let me...

20 Q. Let's just start at the first one, at the very top of the

21 page.

22 A. Yes.  The block at the top is an email I sent.

23 Q. And there is a whole chain of emails beneath that,

24 correct?

25 A. Yes.  My email was a reply to several others.
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 1 Q. And you -- when you sent this email on May 23rd, 20 08, you

 2 had all these emails in your in box, correct?

 3 A. Yes, that's correct.

 4 Q. Now, if we turn to the second page, you'll see that

 5 there -- the email from the second page on is a n ews article

 6 that appeared on CNET.com; do you see that?  Abou t halfway down

 7 the page?

 8 A. Uh-huh.

 9 Q. All right.  And then it says "May 22, 2008, 4:00 a. m.

10 PDT."  Do you see that?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. And from there on the exhibit is this article that

13 appeared on CNET, correct?

14 A. That's what it -- where it says it appeared, yes.

15 Q. All right.  Great.

16 And then if you'd turn to Page 4, please.

17 (Witness complied.) 

18 Q. This is an article about Android, is it not?

19 A. Yes, it is.

20 Q. And you see about a little than less than halfway d own the

21 page it says "Licensing Choices"?

22 A. Yes, I see that.

23 Q. All right.  And it states there:

24 "Google has been criticized for not working

25 with existing Open Source projects.  In
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 1 addition, Sun Microsystems has expressed

 2 concern that Google's development of Dalvik

 3 could fragment the Java world so that that

 4 Java software for running Android

 5 applications wouldn't work on other Java

 6 phones and vice-versa."  

 7 Do you see that?

 8 A. I do see that.

 9 Q. So you were aware on May 23rd, 2008 that Sun had ex pressed

10 concern that Android would fragment Java, correct ?

11 A. I wouldn't say that I was aware of that.

12 Q. Did you or did you not have this email?

13 A. I saw that it was a report in my in box, sure.

14 Q. And you didn't just see it.  You emailed it around to a

15 couple of groups of employees at Google, right?

16 A. I did not.  I was asked about it.

17 Q. You forwarded the entire email string to the Androi dPR

18 group, did you not, Mr. Morrill?

19 A. Yes, that's correct, I did.

20 Q. The entire email, right?

21 A. Yes.

22 Q. Including the article?

23 A. Uh-huh.

24 Q. That said Sun is concerned in May 2008 that Android  is

25 fragmenting Java, correct?
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 1 A. I forwarded an email that included that line, yes.

 2 Q. Now, when you were shown Exhibit 2352, the date on that is

 3 November 5, 2007, is that right?

 4 A. I'm sorry.  Say again?

 5 Q. Exhibit 2352, do you still have it in front of you?

 6 A. Yes.

 7 Q. The date on that is what?

 8 A. 5 November of 2007.

 9 Q. 5 November, 2007.

10 Now, on that day had Google already written most of

11 the Android platform?

12 A. I don't know actually.  I'm not sure how much of th e code

13 got rewritten after that point.

14 Q. But on November 5, 2007 Google had not released the

15 Android SDK, had it?

16 A. That's correct.  The SDK was released a week later.

17 Q. A week later.  So on November 5, 2007 the world had  not

18 yet seen the Android SDK, had not yet been releas ed by Google,

19 correct?

20 A. That's correct.

21 Q. All right.  So when Mr. Schwartz wrote his blog pos t, the

22 SDK had not yet been released, is that right?

23 A. That's correct.

24 Q. But on May 31, 2008, by that time the SDK had been

25 released, correct?
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 1 A. You said May 31?

 2 Q. 2008.

 3 A. We're referring to an email dated May 23rd, are we not?

 4 Am I looking at the right document?

 5 Q. Well, you tell me which document you're looking at.

 6 A. I'm sorry.  Say again?

 7 Q. Just so we're clear.  Mr. Kwun showed you an email dated

 8 November 5, 2007.

 9 A. Yep.

10 Q. All right.  And you called that an endorsement, rig ht?

11 A. Sure.

12 Q. And that endorsement was made before the SDK had be en

13 released, correct?

14 A. That's correct.

15 Q. All right.  And then I showed you -- I showed you

16 Exhibit 245, which showed that Sun expressed conc ern, correct?

17 A. That somebody said Sun had expressed concern, yes.

18 Q. And that document is dated May 31, 2008, right?

19 A. No --

20 Q. I'm sorry.  Now I understand.  May 23rd, 2008.

21 A. Yes, exactly.

22 Q. I apologize.

23 So May 23rd, 2008 is after the SDK was released,

24 correct?

25 A. That's correct.
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 1 Q. All right.  So after the SDK was released, you knew  that

 2 Sun had expressed concern that Android would frag ment Java,

 3 correct?

 4 A. I, again, don't remember.  I would not say that I k new.

 5 Q. But you had -- you were on notice from the email --

 6 A. Sun didn't tell me that they had concerns.  I just,  you

 7 know, had seen that other people had reported thi s.

 8 Q. Sure.  Well, you didn't have any conversations with  Sun

 9 about this at all, did you?

10 A. That's correct.

11 Q. Thank you.  No further questions.

12 RECROSS EXAMINATION 

13 BY MR. KWUN:  

14 Q. Mr. Morrill, looking at Exhibit 245.  When you -- w ith the

15 email that you wrote, what were you focused on?

16 A. I had been, as I recall, or -- well, I don't really

17 remember this email, but just from the block of t ext at the

18 top, it looks like I had been specifically asked about a

19 specific claim made about lines of code in the An droid source

20 tree.

21 Q. Was your email discussing that statement in the CNE T

22 article that you were asked about?

23 A. No.  I was not addressing any of that.

24 Q. And on May 23rd, 2008 what concerns, if any, did yo u have

25 about Sun's position with respect to Android?
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 1 A. I'm sorry.  Repeat the question?

 2 Q. On May 23rd, 2008 what concerns, if any, did you ha ve

 3 about Sun's position with respect to fragmentatio n of Java?

 4 A. I didn't really have an opinion.

 5 MR. KWUN:  No further questions.

 6 MR. NORTON:  Very briefly, your Honor.

 7 FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

 8 MR. NORTON:  If we can stick with Exhibit 245?  And

 9 stay on the first page, please.

10 (Document displayed) 

11 BY MR. NORTON:  

12 Q. Mr. Kwun asked you what you were -- why you were wr iting

13 about this particular article, correct?

14 A. I'm sorry.  Why I was writing --

15 Q. Mr. Kwun asked you why you had forwarded -- what yo ur

16 focus was --

17 A. Yes, yes.

18 Q. (Continuing) -- in forwarding this article?

19 A. Correct.

20 Q. All right.  And there was a quote attributed to you  about

21 lines of code?

22 A. Yes, that's correct.

23 Q. Thank you.

24 And you believed you had been -- your quote had b een

25 taken out of context, right?
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 1 A. I have not read the whole thing, but --

 2 Q. Well, let's just stay on the first page.  There is an

 3 email here from Mr. Rubin, right?

 4 A. Yes.

 5 Q. On the first page towards the bottom.

 6 So Mr. Rubin also received this email, correct?

 7 A. Yes.

 8 Q. And Mr. Rubin said:

 9 "I caught up with Dan at breakfast.  This

10 quote was taken out of context."

11 Right?

12 A. Yes.  It says that.

13 Q. And "this quote" refers to your statement about lin es of

14 code?

15 A. Without reading the document, I don't know what it refers

16 to.

17 Q. All right.

18 A. I mean, there were a number of quotes in the origin al

19 article.

20 Q. Is it fair to say that if you were quoted in an art icle

21 published on CNET and it got the attention of Mr.  Rubin that

22 you had been quoted incorrectly, that you would h ave read the

23 whole article to make sure that any other stateme nts that are

24 attributed to you or anyone else were right?

25 MR. KWUN:  Objection.  Calls for speculation.
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 1 THE COURT:  Would it have been your normal practice

 2 in these circumstances to have read the whole art icle?  You can

 3 either say "yes" or "no."

 4 THE WITNESS:  Yes.

 5 THE COURT:  End of story.  Let's stop.

 6 MR. NORTON:  Nothing further.  Thank you.

 7 THE COURT:  All right.  We're going to excuse this

 8 witness unless somebody -- you said we're not cal ling him back?

 9 MR. KWUN:  That's right, your Honor.

10 THE COURT:  Can this witness be excused?

11 MR. NORTON:  Yes, your Honor.

12 THE COURT:  You are excused for good.  You don't have

13 to come back.

14 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

15 (Witness excused.) 

16 THE COURT:  Go to the next witness and go about 20

17 minutes before the next break.

18 Next witness.

19 MR. NORTON:  We will play the videotaped deposition

20 of Rafael Camargo.

21 THE COURT:  How long will it about?

22 MR. NORTON:  I understand it's a 20-minute clip --

23 I'm sorry.  I understand it's much shorter now.  It's eight

24 minutes.

25 THE COURT:  Is it teed up and ready to go?
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 1 MR. JACOBS:   I'm sorry.  Before we start, there is

 2 one exhibit in the deposition, your Honor, and it 's already

 3 been admitted.

 4 THE COURT:  Great.  So is it teed up and ready to go?

 5 Yes?

 6 MR. JACOBS:   Yes.

 7 THE COURT:  All right.  But one second.

 8 I need to say to the members of the public who ar e

 9 standing back there, I need to ask you to settle down.  If you

10 want to leave, you're welcome to leave, but let's  not make a

11 distraction while the evidence is being presented .

12 So if anybody else wants to get up and go, now is  the

13 time to do it.

14 (Brief pause.) 

15 THE COURT:  Thank you.

16 I want to also say, I appreciate the members of t he

17 press getting those key boards that don't make no ise.  That's

18 been a big improvement.

19 All right.  Roll the tape.

20 WHEREUPON: 

21 RAFAEL CAMARGO,  

22 called as a witness for the Plaintiff herein, tes tified via 

23 videotaped deposition played in open court in the  presence and 

24 hearing of the jury, not reporter by the court re porter. 

25 (Time noted:  10:59 a.m.)   
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 1 MR. JACOBS:   That concludes the testimony of

 2 Mr. Camargo.

 3 THE COURT:  All right.  How long will the next

 4 witness be?

 5 MR. NORTON:  Next witness will be Dr. Mitchell, your

 6 Honor.  He will be our expert, and so we --

 7 THE COURT:  Well, this would be a good point to break

 8 then.  15 minutes.  Please remember the admonitio n.

 9 THE CLERK:   All rise.

10 (Jury exits courtroom at 11:08 a.m.) 

11 THE COURT:  Be seated.

12 MR. JACOBS:   Your Honor, I apologize.  Our next

13 witness will be Mr. Cizek.

14 THE COURT:  Mister who?

15 MR. JACOBS:   Mr. Cizek, C-I-Z-E-K.

16 THE COURT:  How long will he be?

17 MR. NORTON:  The direct will be about 25 minutes.

18 THE COURT:  All right.  Mitchell, what is Mitchell

19 testifying about?

20 MR. JACOBS:   He's testifying about APIs and about

21 what he found on investigating APIs and source co de in Android.

22 THE COURT:  We will take a 15-minute break ourselves.

23 (Whereupon there was a recess in the proceedings 

24  from 11:09 a.m. until 11:25 a.m.)  

25 THE COURT:  Please be seated.  Back to work.  All

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document967   Filed04/24/12   Page145 of 230



PROCEEDINGS   1049

 1 set?

 2 MR. JACOBS:   Your Honor, your deputy advised me that

 3 we had not moved the deposition designations into  evidence.

 4 THE COURT:  You don't have to move the designations

 5 if it has already been played to the jury.  Desig nations don't

 6 go into the jury room, but it would be good for t he clerk to

 7 have it as part of the record.

 8 MR. JACOBS:   Let's be clear that Exhibit 1064 is the

 9 designations of Rafael Camargo that have just bee n played.

10 THE COURT:  Just put it on Dawn's desk and that will

11 be for the Court of Appeals.

12 MR. JACOBS:   Thank you, your Honor.

13 (Attorney complied.) 

14 THE COURT:  All right.  All ready to go now?

15 MR. NORTON:  Yes, your Honor.

16 MR. PURCELL:   Yes, your Honor.

17 THE COURT:  All right.  I will go collect the jury.

18 (Jury enters the courtroom at 11:26 a.m.) 

19 THE COURT:  All right.  Welcome.  Be seated everyone,

20 except for the witness.

21 Mr. Norton, you may announce or call your next

22 witness.  Who will that be?

23 MR. NORTON:  We call Leo Cizek.

24 THE COURT:  How do you spell that?

25 MR. NORTON:  C-I-Z-E-K.
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 1 THE COURT:  Welcome, Mr. Cizek.  Please raise your

 2 right hand.

 3 LEO CIZEK,  

 4 called as a witness for the Plaintiff herein, hav ing been first 

 5 duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows :   

 6 THE WITNESS:  Yes, I do.

 7 THE COURT:  Thank you.  Please be seated.

 8 You need to sit this close to the microphone to m ake

 9 it work.  

10 THE WITNESS:  Is this good?

11 THE COURT:  Yes, and you can move it around.  You can

12 tilt it back.

13 Why don't you say your name?

14 THE WITNESS:  Leo Cizek.

15 THE COURT:  Perfect.  Go ahead, counsel.

16 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

17 BY MR. NORTON:  

18 Q. Good morning, Mr. Cizek.

19 A. Good morning.

20 Q. Where are you currently employed?

21 A. Oracle America.

22 Q. And how long have you been employed there?

23 A. Since January, 2010 when Oracle acquired Sun Micros ystems.

24 Q. And prior to that date, where did you work?

25 A. Sun Microsystems.
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 1 Q. How long did you work at Sun?

 2 A. Since September, 2000.

 3 Q. All right.  Now, what do you do in your job at Orac le?

 4 A. Java technology and source code licensing.  It's ba sically

 5 sales for the various versions of Java and that - - my title is

 6 account manager.

 7 Q. To what extent, if at all, was your job different w hen you

 8 were at Sun?

 9 A. Essentially the same.

10 Q. And do you work with any particular type of custome r in

11 your job in licensing sales?

12 A. Two types primarily; device manufacturers, and what  we

13 call value added providers who develop software, but then they

14 then resell to device manufacturers.

15 Q. Now, have you ever met Andy Rubin?

16 A. Yes.

17 Q. When did you first meet Mr. Rubin?

18 A. I probably met him late fall, 2001.

19 Q. And what were the circumstances under which you met  Mr.

20 Rubin?

21 A. Well, we had talked by phone before we met, but I w as

22 informed that he worked as CEO and co-founder of a company

23 called Danger, Inc. in Palo Alto and that they ha d done an

24 implementation of Java for the device they were - - had designed

25 and that they would need commercial use license a nd to achieve
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 1 compatibility before they shipped their product c ommercially.

 2 Q. Now, do you -- Mr. Rubin's role at Danger, do you k now

 3 what that role was?

 4 A. Well, he told me he was president -- at that time

 5 president and CEO and that he was one of the four  co-founders.

 6 MR. NORTON:  May I approach the witness?

 7 THE COURT:  You may.

 8  (Whereupon, document was tendered  

 9   to the witness.) 

10 BY MR. NORTON:  

11 Q. I have handed the witness Exhibit 2016.

12 Mr. Cizek, do you recognize that document?

13 A. Yes.

14 Q. And who created this document?

15 A. I did.

16 Q. And what was the purpose for which you created it?

17 A. Basically to summarize some written notes that I ha d taken

18 over the years to give a chronology of the major events that

19 happened from when I first made contact with Dang er to when we

20 closed the licensing deal.

21 Q. How do you use this form in your work, if at all?

22 A. Well, I used the predecessor to this form, which al so had

23 the handwritten notes on it.  I just used to keep  track of

24 what's going on day-to-day.  The reason I summari ze it is once

25 the deal is closed, just I think it makes sense t o be able to
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 1 recreate the history, go back and remind myself w hat happened

 2 as things change in the future.

 3 MR. NORTON:  We offer Exhibit 2016.

 4 MS. ANDERSON:  Objection, your Honor.  Relevance and

 5 403.  This relates to Danger, not to Google.

 6 THE COURT:  All right.  Those two objections are

 7 overruled.  What's the number?

 8 MR. NORTON:  2016.

 9 THE COURT:  2016.

10 Received in evidence.

11 (Trial Exhibit 2016 received 

12  in evidence) 

13 MR. NORTON:  Thank you, your Honor.

14 BY MR. NORTON:  

15 Q. Now, when you first spoke to Mr. Rubin at this time  in

16 2001, what did you tell him?

17 A. Well, I --

18 MS. ANDERSON:  Objection, your Honor, hearsay.

19 THE COURT:  Well, it depends on what it's being

20 offered for.

21 Is this being offered to prove up notice in a

22 transaction?

23 MR. NORTON:  Notice, knowledge, state of mind of the

24 person hearing the statement.

25 MS. ANDERSON:  Your Honor, if I may at this time,
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 1 there was no Google representative involved in an y of these

 2 communications.

 3 THE COURT:  Did Mr. Rubin later become part of

 4 Google?

 5 MS. ANDERSON:  He did later, your Honor, yes, but not

 6 at this time.

 7 THE COURT:  Well, this would go -- depending on how

 8 much weight the jury gives to the testimony, it w ould go to the

 9 information available to Mr. Rubin that would sub sequently have

10 been known to him and possibly have influenced hi s decision

11 making.  

12 So the testimony will be allowed.  The jury will be

13 told that this is -- you may consider this only f or -- only for

14 the purpose, it's a limited purpose, of what info rmation was

15 available to the people, if any, who heard the st atement the

16 witness is about to testify to.

17 With that limitation, objection overruled.

18 MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you, your Honor.

19 THE COURT:  Please continue.

20 BY MR. NORTON:  

21 Q. The question was:  What did you tell Mr. Rubin when  you

22 spoke to him in 2001?

23 A. Well, I explained to him my role and that the reaso n I was

24 calling him was that I had been informed that the y had done a

25 Java implementation and that there were a couple of
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 1 requirements that Sun Microsystems had for compan ies that

 2 planned to commercially ship something that incor porated a

 3 Java, Java technology.

 4 One was that they achieve compatibility, and anot her

 5 was that they enter into a commercial use license  with Sun.

 6 Q. Now, how many times did you meet with Mr. Rubin whi le he

 7 was at Danger?

 8 A. Six; six, seven, eight times, something like that.

 9 Q. And did anyone other than yourself from Sun partici pate in

10 those meetings?

11 A. Yes, depending on the meeting.  I think Vineet Gupt a was

12 with me at virtually all the meetings.  Also, Tim  Lindholm and

13 one of the Sun attorneys called in a couple of ti mes.

14 Q. And at that time who was Mr. Lindholm's employer?

15 A. Sun, Sun Microsystems.

16 Q. And what was Mr. Lindholm's role, if any, in the

17 discussions with Danger about a Java license?

18 A. His title at the time, if I remember correctly, was  chief

19 technology officer for the client systems group a t Sun.  And

20 the client systems group owned and managed the Ja va Micro

21 Edition technologies.

22 So Tim was -- because Danger had done something

23 fairly unique in their implementation of Java, we  had Tim

24 consulting with us on -- and with them, on how to  -- what would

25 be involved in terms of achieving compatibility.  So it was
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 1 primarily technical advice from Tim.

 2 Q. When did Danger release its implementation of its - - well,

 3 I'm sorry.

 4 Do you know what Danger called the device on whic h it

 5 had a Java implementation?

 6 A. Once it was released, I learned that -- two names.  The

 7 name Hiptop, which was the Danger branded name, a nd the name

 8 Sidekick, which was the T-Mobile branded name.

 9 Q. And when did Danger release its Java implementation , the

10 Sidekick or Hiptop?

11 A. I believe it was October, 2002.

12 Q. And if we look at Exhibit 2016, towards the bottom of the

13 page there is a note October 1, 2002.  "Hiptop no w available

14 via T-Mobile," under the name Cizek?

15 A. Yes, I don't know if that was the exact date that i t

16 became available.  Maybe that was a few days late r that I read

17 a second article talking about the name Sidekick.   I don't

18 recall.

19 Q. All right.  Now, when Danger released Sidekick, at that

20 time did Danger have a Java commercial use licens e from Sun?

21 A. No.

22 Q. Now, at that time had Danger taken any steps to res olve

23 Sun's concerns that the Sidekick was incompatible ?

24 A. Umm, other than having meetings with us and discuss ing

25 what would be involved, no.  I mean, they had not  -- they had
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 1 not signed the agreement that would have given th em access to

 2 the Technology Compatibility Kit.  So there reall y wasn't much

 3 they could do.

 4 Q. And the Technology Compatibility Kit, is that somet imes

 5 called the TCK?

 6 A. Yes.  TCK is the acronym.

 7 Q. What was your reaction to learn that the Hiptop Sid ekick

 8 had been released in the fall of 2002?

 9 A. Well, I was surprised and disappointed and, also,

10 concerned that now there was a non-compatible Jav a

11 implementation on the market.

12 Q. So subsequent to learning that Danger had released the

13 Sidekick, did you have any further meetings with Mr. Rubin?

14 A. Yes.  The meeting that I -- there was a particular meeting

15 where the sole focus -- other than the previous m eetings which

16 had been largely technical in nature, we had a me eting that

17 was -- the sole focus of which was the need for t hem to become

18 a licensee.

19 Q. Where did that meeting take place?

20 A. It was Danger's headquarters, which at that time we re in

21 downtown Palo Alto.

22 Q. And who attended from the Sun side at that meeting?

23 A. Vineet Gupta and myself.

24 Q. And who attended from the Danger side?

25 A. There was Andy Rubin, an in-house counsel and an ex ternal
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 1 counsel as well.

 2 Q. Now, did you or Mr. Gupta express Sun's position on  the

 3 release of the Sidekick at that meeting?

 4 A. Yes.  Mr. Gupta explained that -- you know, what --  they

 5 did not yet have the right to do what they had do ne, i.e.,

 6 release that product commercially since they didn 't have a

 7 commercial use license since, number one, they ha dn't achieved

 8 compatibility; number two, they didn't have a com mercial use

 9 license.

10 Q. And did Mr. Rubin have any response?

11 MS. ANDERSON:  Objection, your Honor, hearsay.

12 THE COURT:  Sustained.  We're getting into this for

13 purposes of the information made known to Mr. Rub in, not what

14 Mr. Rubin made known to others.

15 MR. NORTON:  Thank you, your Honor.

16 BY MR. NORTON:  

17 Q. To what extent, if any, did Mr. Gupta explain why i t was

18 that Sun was of the view that Danger required a l icense?

19 MS. ANDERSON:  Your Honor, may I request the same

20 instruction to the jury on this issue as well?

21 THE COURT:  Yes.  It's all being offered solely to --

22 solely for you to consider what information was m ade known to

23 Mr. Rubin back in 2002.

24 Please answer the question.

25 A. Well, during the discussion, at one point Mr. Gupta

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document967   Filed04/24/12   Page155 of 230



CIZEK - DIRECT EXAMINATION / NORTON   1059

 1 noticed that there was a book on the table in fro nt of him.

 2 That subject of the particular was the particular  Java

 3 technology that they had implemented called CLDC.   It's part of

 4 the Java Micro Edition.  And he opened it to the copyright page

 5 and he pointed to the copyright Page which had th e

 6 specification license for CLDC, specification lic ense

 7 agreement.  And he said, "You know, it states rig ht here that

 8 if you want to ship a product commercially based on the

 9 specification, then you need to contact Sun Micro systems and

10 license any compatibility tests or words -- TCKs that pertain

11 to that technology.

12 Q. Now, after that meeting did Danger, in fact, enter into a

13 license agreement with Sun for Java technology?

14 A. Yes.  Sometime later, but yes.

15 MR. NORTON:  May I approach?

16 THE COURT:  You may.

17 MR. NORTON:  Excuse me, your Honor.  One moment,

18 please.

19 (Brief pause.)  

20 BY MR. NORTON:  

21 Q. At the time that Danger entered into a license with  Sun

22 for Java technology, was Mr. Rubin still employed  at Danger?

23 A. Yes.  He had told me about a week before they signe d the

24 agreement --

25 MS. ANDERSON:  Objection, your Honor.  Hearsay again.
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 1 THE COURT:  The question only asked you, "Was he

 2 still employed?"  And you said, "Yes."  And that answers the

 3 question.

 4 Next question.

 5 MR. NORTON:  Thank you.

 6 May I approach?

 7 THE COURT:  Yes.

 8  (Whereupon, document was tendered  

 9   to the witness.)  

10 BY MR. NORTON:  

11 Q. I handed the witness what was previously marked as Trial

12 Exhibit 1026.

13 Do you recognize that document, Mr. Cizek?

14 A. Yes.

15 Q. And what is it, please?

16 A. It's an internal copy in the sense that part of the

17 material in it is for internal use only.  That is  a copy of an

18 executed --

19 MS. ANDERSON:  Excuse me.  Excuse me, your Honor.  I

20 apologize for interrupting, but we do not reflect  that this has

21 been admitted into evidence based on our list, 10 26, as the one

22 that was disclosed to us for use with this witnes s.

23 MR. NORTON:  Correct.  It has not been published.

24 I'm trying to lay the on foundation for it to be moved into

25 evidence.
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 1 MS. ANDERSON:  My apologies.

 2 BY MR. NORTON:  

 3 Q. So do you recognize Defendant's Exhibit 1026?

 4 A. Yes.

 5 Q. And what do you recognize it to be?

 6 A. It's an internal document that includes an executed  copy

 7 of the Sun Community Source License, or SCSL, and  including the

 8 commercial license for Danger.

 9 MR. NORTON:  We move the admission of 1026.

10 MS. ANDERSON:  We object on relevance, 403 and likely

11 to confuse the jury, particularly in this phase o f this

12 litigation, your Honor.

13 THE COURT:  May I see the exhibit?

14 MR. NORTON:  Yes, your Honor.

15 (Whereupon, document was tendered 

16  to the Court.)  

17 (Brief pause.)  

18 THE COURT:  Well, possibly counsel is correct.  So

19 we're not going to show this to the jury and it w on't be

20 admitted just yet until we can have a further con versation out

21 of the presence of the jury.  So 1026 will be in limbo for

22 awhile.  So don't show that to the jury yet.

23 MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you, your Honor.

24 THE COURT:  It's enough -- it's okay for you to say

25 that a license was entered into and move on to so mething new,
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 1 but to get into these specific details like this,  I'm beginning

 2 to see the merit in the 403 objection.

 3 MR. NORTON:  Your Honor, may I ask the witness about

 4 a specific part of the agreement that the witness  discussed

 5 with Mr. Rubin?

 6 THE COURT:  What does that have to do with what --

 7 just give me a phrase that I can focus on.

 8 MR. NORTON:  A phrase in the document or a phrase --

 9 THE COURT:  Well, I mean, so I'll know what you're

10 talking about.

11 MR. NORTON:  Sure.  The subject matter of the

12 testimony would be Mr. Cizek's discussions with M r. Rubin about

13 what Danger was agreeing to license.

14 THE COURT:  All right.  You can ask that.

15 BY MR. NORTON:  

16 Q. Mr. Cizek, to what extent, if any, did the agreemen t

17 between Sun and Danger address Danger's rights to  Oracle's

18 source code.

19 A. Well, regarding the primary technology being licens ed,

20 which was CLDC, at Mr. Rubin's request we entered  a section

21 which stated that Danger had not looked at any Su n source code,

22 or as it's called in the document original code, but source

23 code for that Java technology.

24 Q. And who requested that that clause be included in t he

25 agreement?
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 1 A. Andy Rubin.

 2 MS. ANDERSON:  Objection.  Hearsay, your Honor.

 3 THE COURT:  Well, it's proving up a transaction.  For

 4 that purpose it's not hearsay.  So that -- provin g up a

 5 transaction is never hearsay.  Overruled.

 6 So answer the question.  Did you say Mr. Rubin?

 7 THE WITNESS:  Yes, Mr. Rubin was -- he was the person

 8 that indicated that this was a requirement if we wanted to

 9 close the license agreement, yes.

10 THE COURT:  All right.  Next question.

11 BY MR. NORTON:  

12 Q. And to what extent, if any -- I'm sorry.

13 So we can be clear.  Is there a particular part o f

14 the agreement that addressed this particular issu e?

15 A. Yes.  Section 4 of Attachment F, which is the very last

16 attachment.

17 MR. NORTON:  Once again, I move the admission of

18 Exhibit --

19 THE COURT:  We're going to postpone that discussion

20 until later.

21 MR. NORTON:  I understand, your Honor.  Thank you.

22 THE COURT:  It may come in, but I want to hear about

23 this out of the presence of the jury.

24 MR. NORTON:  Thank you, your Honor.

25
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 1 BY MR. NORTON:  

 2 Q. To what extent, if any, did that section address Da nger's

 3 rights to use Sun's Java specifications?

 4 A. That Section 4 did not address that.  Was that your

 5 question?

 6 Q. It is.  Thank you.

 7 To what extent did the agreement between Sun and

 8 Danger, if any, to what extent did the agreement between Sun

 9 and Danger grant Danger the rights to use Sun's J ava

10 specifications?  

11 A. Well, that's all that it granted in the sense that since

12 it explicitly left out source code, they were lic ensing the

13 right to make commercial use of code that they de veloped that

14 used the specification, CLDC specification.

15 Q. Thank you.

16 Now, after you closed the agreement between Sun a nd

17 Danger, did you have occasion to speak with Mr. R ubin again?

18 A. Yes.

19 Q. And when you did next speak to Mr. Rubin?

20 A. After he had left Danger.  It was late 2004 or very  early

21 2005.

22 MR. NORTON:  May I approach?

23 THE COURT:  Yes.

24  (Whereupon, document was tendered  

25   to the witness.) 
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 1 BY MR. NORTON:  

 2 Q. Mr. Cizek, this is Exhibit 2001.  And if I can dire ct you

 3 to the second page of that document?  

 4 A. Uh-huh.

 5 Q. Do you see about halfway down there is an email.  I t says.

 6 "From: Andy Rubin" and "To:  Leo Cizek."

 7 Do you see that?

 8 A. "Subject Re: Java JTWI Licensing Issues."  

 9 Q. Yes.

10 A. Yes.

11 Q. And do you recognize this document?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. And can you tell us what it is, please?  Without qu oting

14 anything from it, just tell us what it is?  

15 A. It's the first email I received from Mr. Rubin afte r he

16 had become an employee of Google.  I had never se en this email

17 address before.  I knew what his previously email  address was.

18 This was basically announcing, I guess, to me tha t he

19 had -- that Google had been the company that his -- he had told

20 me that his company was going to be acquired.

21 Q. Let me just stop you there, if you don't mind.

22 MR. NORTON:  We would move the admission of

23 Exhibit 2001.

24 MS. ANDERSON:  No objection, your Honor.

25 THE COURT:  Received in evidence.
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 1 (Trial Exhibit 2001 received 

 2  in evidence) 

 3 BY MR. NORTON:  

 4 Q. All right.  Would you please read now what Mr. Rubi n wrote

 5 to you on August 4, 2005?

 6 A. Sure.

 7 "Hi Leo.  Thanks for connecting as discussed.

 8 I'd like your help getting a meeting between

 9 the Google people (myself and Tim Lindholm)

10 and Vineet Gupta.

11 "We can talk about our project, our strategy

12 and how it might be mutually beneficial to

13 work together (again).

14 Thanks, Andy."

15 Q. If we go down a little bit further on that same pag e,

16 Mr. Rubin was responding to an email from you, is  that correct?

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. And can you read that email please?

19 A. The email from me reads:

20 "Hi, Andy.  I believe you said that you had

21 an internal meeting scheduled for July 26th

22 in which you would be discussing how to

23 proceed with licensing JTWI from Sun.  When

24 convenient, could you please give me a call

25 to discuss?  Thanks, Leo."
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 1 Q. July 26, that would be July 26, 2005?

 2 A. Yes.

 3 Q. Now, there was a reference in this document to JTWI .  Can

 4 you explain what JTWI is?

 5 A. It stands for Java Technology for the Wireless Indu stry.

 6 Q. Now, after you received that email from Mr. Rubin, did

 7 you, in fact, meet with him?

 8 A. Yes.

 9 Q. And about how many times -- did you, to an extent, discuss

10 Java licensing with Mr. Rubin in those subsequent  meetings?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. And how many meetings did you have with Mr. Rubin t o

13 discuss Java licensing; you, yourself?

14 A. There were three that I personally attended.

15 Q. When was the first of those three?

16 A. Not long after the date August 4th when he sent the  email

17 requesting a meeting.  I would say a week later.

18 Q. And who attended that meeting on behalf of Sun?

19 A. Myself and Vineet Gupta.

20 Q. And do you recall who attended on behalf of Android ?

21 A. That first meeting, Andy Rubin and Tim Lindholm.

22 Q. And at that time Mr. Lindholm was employed by whom?

23 A. By Google.  

24 Q. And to what extent -- well, what did you discuss at  that

25 meeting concerning Java licensing for Android?
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 1 A. There are a couple of things brought up by Mr. Rubi n.  One

 2 was that the project that he had originally outli ned to me when

 3 he was at his previous employer, that they now fe lt that they

 4 would want to distribute to device manufacturers -- this is

 5 called Project Android by this point.  That they would want to

 6 have a distribution agreement with device manufac turers be some

 7 sort of Open Source agreement.  That was one, som ething I had

 8 not heard before.

 9 And another thing was that they were evaluating w hich

10 of the two Java Micro Edition technologies would be more

11 appropriate for what they wanted to do for this s oftware

12 platform that was focused or intended for smart p hones.

13 Q. And then did you have any further meetings -- you s aid

14 there were three meetings?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. When was the second meeting?

17 A. Sometime in November.

18 Q. And do you recall, where was that meeting?  Where d id it

19 take place?

20 A. All three meetings were in Google's corporate headq uarters

21 building campus, down in Mountain View.

22 Q. Who from Sun attended that second meeting?

23 A. In person?  Vineet Gupta and myself.

24 Q. And then on the Google side, who attended from Goog le?

25 A. In person, Andy Rubin, Brian Swetland, and a third person
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 1 whose title was Chief Open Source Officer, I thin k, with

 2 Google.

 3 Q. Thank you.

 4 To what extent, if any, was there discussion of J ava

 5 licensing for Google Android at that second meeti ng?

 6 A. Well, there was a discussion, further discussion on

 7 whether open source would be something that Sun w ould

 8 countenance as a way of licensing, having Google license to

 9 their device manufacturers.

10 There was the reiteration by Sun, Vineet and myse lf,

11 that they did need a commercial use license to pr oceed before

12 we could finalize the other topics they wanted to  discuss in

13 terms of a partnership.  And, I guess, as far as licensing

14 goes, that's about it.

15 Q. Now, there was a third meeting.  When did that thir d

16 meeting take place?

17 A. Early December 2005.

18 Q. And who attended that meeting on the Sun side?

19 A. Again, in person, Vineet Gupta and myself.  The mos t

20 important person that was not there in person but  called in was

21 Allen Brenner.

22 Q. And at that time what was Allen Brenner's role at S un?

23 A. Vice-president and general manager of client system s

24 group.

25 Q. And from the Google side?  Who attended from the Go ogle
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 1 side?

 2 A. Andy Rubin, Brian Swetland and Dan Bornstein in per son,

 3 and a number of people called in.

 4 Q. Now, to what extent did Mr. Brenner participate in the

 5 conversations at that meeting by phone?  

 6 A. Well, he sort of led a large part of the discussion .

 7 There were two things that were of concern to him .  One was

 8 that he was trying to convince Andy Rubin that th ey should use

 9 the Sun implementation of the particular technolo gy.  This is

10 now CDC, as opposed to the technology used by Dan ger.  Sun had

11 it's own optimized implementation that Mr. Brenne r was trying

12 to convince Andy Rubin to use.  That was one.

13 And then the second topic or issue on which he wa s

14 trying to change Mr. Rubin's mind, was to try and  convince him

15 not to use Open Source for licensing to the propo sed Google

16 customers.

17 Q. Okay.  Now, on the first topic, Mr. Brenner's propo sal

18 that Google use Sun's optimization of the impleme ntation of the

19 Java technology, did Mr. Rubin -- what, if anythi ng, did Mr.

20 Rubin say in response to that particular proposal ?

21 A. Well, he said there was two reasons why that could not

22 happen.  He said, first of all, that his engineer s were fairly

23 well advanced in their own implementation, indepe ndent

24 implementation of CDC, number one, and basically it was too

25 far -- they were too far ahead to turn back.
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 1 And the second reason was that there was --

 2 technically speaking, Sun's implementation wouldn 't fit their

 3 requirements.

 4 Q. Now, at that time when you were working in licensin g for

 5 Sun in 2005, at that time did Sun permit companie s to do

 6 independent implementations of its specifications ?

 7 A. Yes.  As had been done by Danger.

 8 Q. To what extent did Sun impose requirements on those

 9 independent implementations of Java technology?

10 MS. ANDERSON:  Objection.  Overbroad, your Honor.

11 THE COURT:  Overruled.  Please answer.

12 A. Basically the requirement that Sun stipulated for

13 customers making commercial use of their own inde pendent

14 implementations were the same as for customers th at used Sun's

15 source code.  That is, number one, they had to ac hieve

16 compatibility and, number two, they had to have a  commercial

17 use license in place specifying royalties.

18 BY MR. NORTON:  

19 Q. Now, after that December meeting, did you continue to have

20 any role in the discussions between Sun and Googl e concerning

21 Java licensing for Android?

22 A. No.

23 Q. After December 2005, did you have any other discuss ions

24 with anyone from Google regarding Android?

25 A. Yes.  In, I think, April of 2009, I had a discussio n where
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 1 the person from Google wanted to discuss Java Sta ndard Edition.

 2 But I brought up the subject of Android, and we d iscussed that,

 3 as well.

 4 Q. So what was the name of the person whom you spoke t o, who

 5 worked for Google?

 6 A. Martin Buccholz.

 7 Q. And what was the reason that you found yourself spe aking

 8 to Mr. Buccholz?

 9 A. Mr. Buccholz had contacted a colleague of mine, ind icating

10 that he wanted to discuss with the correct person  at Sun the

11 possibility of Google's licensing the source code  to Java

12 Standard Edition so that they could get access to  a particular

13 type of support.  Getting, like, advance notice o n security bug

14 fixes.

15 Q. Before you actually spoke to Mr. Buccholz, to what -- what

16 did you do, if anything, to prepare for that call ?

17 A. I met with Vineet Gupta, forwarding the e-mail trai l that

18 had been forwarded to me, and met with Vineet Gup ta to take his

19 advice.

20 Q. And what did you -- what did you decide to do as a result

21 of speaking to Mr. Gupta, with respect to your ph one call with

22 Mr. Buccholz?

23 A. When I called Mr. Buccholz -- this was a conference  call,

24 by the way -- I had a colleague on that line with  me, as well,

25 a systems engineer from Sun.  
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 1 I explained that Sun would be very interested in

 2 looking into the possibility of doing a source li cense

 3 agreement covering Java SE and providing just the  type of

 4 support that they were requesting.

 5 But I said that there would be something that wou ld

 6 have to be fixed, first, which is the fact that r egarding

 7 Android there was no commercial use license; and,  as we

 8 understood it, Android was shipping an incompatib le version of

 9 Java, commercially.

10 Q. What did Mr. Buccholz say in response?

11 A. Said, well, we don't need a commercial use license

12 agreement.  The Android group didn't use any Sun Java source

13 code.  They just used the Java specifications.  P lural,

14 specifications.

15 Q. And are you certain Mr. Buccholz said the Android

16 engineers had used the specifications?

17 A. Yes, because I immediately summarized the wording i n an

18 e-mail to Vineet Gupta.

19 MR. NORTON:  No further questions.

20 THE COURT:  Cross-examination.

21 MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you, Your Honor.

22                        CROSS EXAMINATION 

23 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

24 Q. It's just good afternoon, Mr. Cizek.

25 A. Good afternoon.
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 1 Q. I have to check.

 2 We met before, once before.  I'm Christa Anderson ,

 3 counsel for Google.  Good to see you.

 4 You testified earlier that you've been with Sun a nd

 5 then Oracle, now, for about 12 years.  Is that ri ght?

 6 A. (No audible response.)

 7 Q. During all the years you have worked at Sun and now

 8 Oracle, you have worked in, basically, the same r ole, as

 9 account manager.  True?

10 A. Yes.

11 Q. And as an account manager, you have been involved i n,

12 primarily, licensing discussions regarding licens ing aspects of

13 the Java platform, true?

14 A. Yes.

15 Q. Among the platforms that you've licensed over the y ears

16 are Java ME, as we've been calling it, Java SE, a nd Java EE; is

17 that correct?

18 A. Yes.

19 Q. And Java ME is Java Micro Edition, true?

20 A. (No audible response.)

21 Q. And if you would, for the court reporter --

22           (Reporter interrupts.) 

23 A. Oh.  I said yes.

24 Q. Java ME is the platform that you seek to license fo r

25 smaller devices, true?
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 1 A. Yes, it's -- actually, there's two configurations.  One

 2 for even smaller devices, and one for small but n ot so small.

 3 Q. Right.  So there's two flavors.  One flavor targeti ng what

 4 we've been calling feature phones, and another fl avor targeting

 5 smart phones, correct?

 6 A. Yes.  The higher-end one targets not only phones, i t

 7 targets embedded devices, generally.  But to the extent it

 8 targets phones it would be smart phones, yes.

 9 Q. All right.  And that's referred to as CDC, correct?

10 A. Yes.

11 Q. And in all the years that you have served as a Sun and now

12 Oracle salesman for these Java licenses, you've n ever had a

13 customer that manufactures smart phones, true?

14 A. Well, I think Danger manufactured a smart phone, wi th the

15 Sidekick.  To me, it was certainly the first smar t phone

16 targeted at consumers, as opposed to the Blackber ry, which was

17 not my customer.

18 MS. ANDERSON:  May we please play, Your Honor, page

19 32, line 14, through page 33, line 18, of the wit ness's

20 deposition?

21 THE COURT:  Hearing no objection, go ahead.

22 (Video deposition clip played in open court; not 

23 reported.) 

24 MR. NORTON:  Your Honor, for completeness, we ask

25 that the deposition be read through page 35, line  6.
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 1 THE COURT:  How many lines extra is that?

 2 MR. NORTON:  A long answer, but it's two questions.

 3 THE COURT:  Well, if it's long then you can do it on

 4 redirect.

 5 MR. NORTON:  Thank you, Your Honor.

 6 THE COURT:  Go ahead.

 7 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

 8 Q. Mr. Cizek, I would like you to take before you Exhi bit

 9 2001, which I believe your counsel placed in fron t of you.  Do

10 you have it there?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. This is an e-mail exchange you participated in with

13 Mr. Gupta, correct?

14 A. Yes.

15 Q. And you described to the jury the fact that Mr. Rub in, in

16 this e-mail exchange, had asked specifically to s et up a

17 meeting with Sun, to talk about working together,  right?

18 A. Yes.

19 Q. All right.  And, in response, in the internal excha nge at

20 Sun about the request from Mr. Rubin, Mr. Gupta e xplained to

21 you that -- that he and Jonathan Schwartz were in  the middle of

22 negotiating a larger Google deal, and discussing that with

23 Google and Jonathan Schwartz regarding a toolbar;  is that

24 correct?

25 A. Yes.
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 1 Q. All right.  And, specifically, you understood at th e time

 2 that you got this e-mail, in August of 2005, that  people senior

 3 to you at Sun wanted to have a broader relationsh ip with

 4 Google, right?

 5 A. Yes.

 6 Q. Let's take a look at Exhibit 2013.  I'm going to pl ace it

 7 before you.

 8 MS. ANDERSON:  Your Honor, may I approach?

 9 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

10 Q. There you go.

11 Exhibit 2013 before you, Mr. Cizek, is a presenta tion

12 you received via e-mail from Google, correct?

13 A. Yes.

14 MR. NORTON:  Objection.

15 THE WITNESS:  I assume that I received it via e-mail.

16 What I had saved was just the document itself.  B ut since I had

17 it, I assume I received it as an e-mail attachmen t.

18 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

19 Q. And you received it from Google, right?

20 A. Yes.

21 Q. Drawing your attention to the first page of this

22 document -- oh, excuse me.

23 MS. ANDERSON:  May I move this in evidence?  Your

24 Honor, I would like to move in evidence Exhibit 2 013.

25 MR. NORTON:  No objection.

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document967   Filed04/24/12   Page174 of 230



CISEK - CROSS  EXAMINATION /  ANDERSON   1078

 1 THE COURT:  Received in evidence.

 2 (Trial Exhibit 2013 received in evidence.) 

 3 MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you.  If it's published to the

 4 jury now.

 5 (Document displayed.) 

 6 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

 7 Q. I would like to draw your attention, Mr. Cizek, to this

 8 document.  It's entitled "Monetization Proposal,"  correct?

 9 A. Yes.

10 Q. And the first sentence of this document states, quo te:  

11 "Google is seeking partnerships with leading

12 wireless technology companies and service

13 providers to collaboratively develop an open

14 source handset platform."

15 Do you see that?

16 A. Yes.

17 Q. You understood that's what Google was interested in , in

18 talking with Sun, right?

19 A. Yes.

20 Q. Now let's take a look at Exhibit 2002.

21 MS. ANDERSON:  Your Honor, may I approach?

22 THE COURT:  Yes.

23 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

24 Q. You recognize Exhibit 2002, correct?

25 A. Yes.
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 1 Q. All right.  This, again, is an e-mail exchange you had

 2 with Mr. Gupta and Mr. Persi at Sun, in September  2005,

 3 correct?

 4 A. Yes.

 5 MS. ANDERSON:  Your Honor, I move in evidence Exhibit

 6 2002.

 7 MR. NORTON:  No objection.

 8 THE COURT:  Received.

 9 (Trial Exhibit 2002 received in evidence.) 

10 (Document displayed.) 

11 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

12 Q. This is an e-mail exchange, Mr. Cizek, that you eng aged in

13 with Mr. Gupta at Sun on the subject of Google's desire to open

14 source a platform for smart phones, right?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. And Mr. Gupta was a person senior to you at Sun, tr ue?

17 A. Well, he was senior in the sense that his title was

18 director.  And I was an original --

19 Q. Thank you.

20 A. But I didn't report to him, so in that sense we wer e

21 neither senior nor junior to each other.

22 Q. And it's correct you followed his guidance if he to ld you

23 to negotiate with someone or not regarding Google , correct?

24 A. Ultimately, I would take guidance from my direct

25 supervisor.  But if that was not contradicted by my direct
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 1 supervisor, then I would.

 2 Q. Thank you.

 3 And in the e-mail exchange you had with Mr. Gupta , in

 4 the first paragraph on the first page there, Mr. Gupta

 5 explained to you that he wanted to change the pla n for what

 6 Andy Rubin at Google wanted to do with respect to  open

 7 sourcing, right?

 8 A. Yes.

 9 Q. So in that specific paragraph he says, quote:  

10 "I want to turn this into my idea of shipping

11 their apps on our J2ME OIs instead of what

12 Andy is trying to do."

13 Right?

14 A. Yes.

15 Q. That's what he said, correct?

16 A. (Nods head.)

17 Q. And that was the effort made by Sun throughout thes e early

18 negotiations to try to change Google's mind from having an open

19 source platform, right?

20 A. Well, to the extent that they were going to use Jav a, the

21 idea was that, yes, if they wanted to use Java th en they would

22 have to use the standard -- we would hope to conv ince them to

23 use the standard licensing model for Java.

24 Q. Now, drawing your attention to the first meeting yo u

25 discussed earlier with your counsel, you had expl ained that
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 1 there were a total of three meetings you attended  with Google,

 2 right?

 3 A. Yes.

 4 Q. All right.  And, in fact, you don't remember much a bout

 5 that first meeting with Google, right?

 6 A. I remember pretty much what I just stated under oat h here,

 7 but not much more.

 8 Q. In fact, during that first discussion that you had with

 9 Mr. Rubin at Google, in August of 2005, he explai ned to you

10 that Google had not decided what technology they wanted to use

11 for Android, right?

12 A. That's true.  He said they were evaluating CDC vers us

13 CLDC, yes.

14 Q. And others, correct?  They hadn't committed to Sun,  right?

15 A. He didn't say they were evaluating anything else ot her

16 than those two technologies from Sun.  He didn't say that to

17 me.

18 Q. All right.  There was discussion during that first meeting

19 that you attended about open sourcing, true?

20 A. Yes.  Very generally, but, yes.

21 Q. And at the time you didn't completely understand th at

22 concept; is that fair?

23 A. That's true.  I did not completely understand it.

24 Q. All right.  Now, let's move on.

25 You spoke about a second meeting that you attende d,
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 1 that occurred sometime in or around October of 20 05.  Is that

 2 right?

 3 A. I think it was November, yeah.

 4 Q. Okay.  Let's take a look at Exhibit 2004.

 5 MS. ANDERSON:  May I approach, Your Honor?

 6 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

 7 Q. This is an October 27, 2005, e-mail exchange among

 8 yourself, Mr. Rubin, and Mr. Gupta, correct?

 9 A. Yes.

10 MS. ANDERSON:  Your Honor, I move this in evidence,

11 please.

12 MR. NORTON:  No objection.

13 THE COURT:  Thank you.  Received in evidence.

14 (Trial Exhibit 2004 received in evidence.) 

15 (Document displayed.) 

16 MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you, Your Honor.

17 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

18 Q. Exhibit 2004 is an e-mail exchange that actually la ys out

19 action items that arose from the second meeting t hat you

20 attended with Mr. Rubin at Google, correct?

21 A. Uhm, I believe that this is summarizing the action items

22 from the second meeting, yes.

23 Q. Right.  So we see there it says, "Action items from  last

24 meetings."  Do you see that? 

25 A. Yes.
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 1 Q. And below it there are three items listed with numb ers,

 2 and then a few others underneath it, correct?

 3 A. Yes.

 4 Q. And number one on the action items is "open source

 5 licensing model," correct?

 6 A. Yes.

 7 Q. And, again, Google wanted an open source licensing model

 8 for its new platform, correct?

 9 A. Yes.

10 Q. And below that you see there's a reference to "CLDC -HI

11 applicability (versus Google internal implementat ion.)"  Do you

12 see that?

13 A. Yes.

14 Q. In fact, what that's a reference to is the fact tha t Sun

15 wanted to sell to Google its own implementation o f an aspect of

16 Java ME, while Google wanted to use an internal i mplementation

17 that it would develop in a partnership with Sun; is that right?

18 MR. NORTON:  Objection.

19 THE COURT:  Sorry?  Is there an objection?

20 MR. NORTON:  Yes.

21 THE COURT:  What is it?

22 MR. NORTON:  I was unable to follow the question.

23 THE COURT:  What?

24 MR. NORTON:  I was unable to follow the question.

25 THE COURT:  Did you understand the question?
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 1 THE WITNESS:  I believe I did.

 2 THE COURT:  All right.  Please answer.

 3 THE WITNESS:  Google had a point of view that was --

 4 that they were leaning towards using open source,  and Sun was

 5 trying to convince them otherwise.  Yes, so, in e ssence, that's

 6 true.

 7 I'm not sure that internally Google had completel y

 8 decided that's what they wanted to do.  But, cert ainly, that's

 9 what Andy Rubin was telling us.

10 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

11 Q. All right.  Because he had proposed from the very

12 beginning -- and we saw it in that earlier exhibi t -- a

13 partnership of developing together a new platform  for mobile

14 phones, right?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. Thank you.  Let's take a look at Exhibit 2006.

17 MS. ANDERSON:  May I approach, Your Honor?

18 THE COURT:  Yes.

19 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

20 Q. Do you recognize Exhibit 2006 as an e-mail exchange  among

21 yourself, Mr. Rubin, Ms. Cole, Mr. Gupta, Ms. Gar cia, and

22 Mr. Fresko, from November of 2005?

23 A. Yes.  Some of those people were not in the meeting,  or

24 maybe called in, but, yes.

25 MS. ANDERSON:  Your Honor, I move in evidence Exhibit
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 1 2006.

 2 MR. NORTON:  No objection.

 3 THE COURT:  Thank you.  Received in evidence.

 4 (Trial Exhibit 2006 received in evidence.) 

 5 (Document displayed.) 

 6 MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you, Your Honor.

 7 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

 8 Q. Drawing your attention, Mr. Cizek, to this e-mail

 9 exchange.  This is another of the e-mail exchange s regarding

10 the Sun-Google meetings that were occurring in th e 2005-2006

11 time frame, right?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. And in this e-mail you're actually setting up some

14 meetings.  The first one was to talk about open s ource, right?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. That's what it indicates in that first -- second se ntence

17 in the paragraph, correct?

18 A. Yes.

19 Q. And then later on you said you were trying to sched ule the

20 second meeting:  

21 "Which will be a presentation/discussion by

22 Sun on the virtues of our CLDC HotSpot

23 implementation and why Google may find it to

24 be preferable to Google's developing its own

25 CLDC implementation."
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 1 Do you see that?

 2 A. Yes.

 3 Q. And, in fact, that's what was being discussed at th ese

 4 meetings, as well, right?

 5 A. Yes.

 6 Q. All right.  I would like to show you Exhibit 2008.

 7 MS. ANDERSON:  Your Honor, may I approach?

 8 THE COURT:  Yes, you may.

 9 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

10 Q. Mr. Cizek, Exhibit 2008 is a contact report that yo u

11 prepared, ultimately, as an Oracle employee regar ding Google.

12 Is that true?

13 A. Yes.

14 MS. ANDERSON:  Your Honor, I move in evidence Exhibit

15 2008.

16 MR. NORTON:  No objection.

17 THE COURT:  Received.

18 (Trial Exhibit 2008 received in evidence.) 

19 (Document displayed.) 

20 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

21 Q. Mr. Cizek, Exhibit 2008 is a contact report that yo u

22 notate on from time to time in the course of your  work as an

23 account manager at Sun and then Oracle, right?

24 A. Yes.

25 Q. And this has been sort of an ongoing document that has had
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 1 things added to it over the years at Sun and then  Oracle?

 2 A. Yes.

 3 Q. This particular contact report specifically relates  to

 4 Google, true?

 5 A. Yes.

 6 Q. And we see here on the top left side a reference to  Google

 7 and Andy Rubin regarding Android, right?

 8 A. Yes.

 9 Q. All right.  And then drawing your attention down, i n a

10 section that's entitled, "Note/history."

11 MS. ANDERSON:  If we could get that up, please.

12 Thank you.

13 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

14 Q. This is a place where you've made notations by date  of

15 various events, right?

16 A. Yes.

17 Q. All right.  And these are notations you've made, fr om time

18 to time, in the course of your work communicating  with Google

19 on behalf of Sun, right?

20 A. Right.  As I stated regarding the Danger notes, I t ook

21 handwritten notes.  And then, from time to time, when I ran out

22 of paper I would drastically summarize them and p rint them

23 in -- and type them in and print them out, which is what I did

24 to create this.

25 Q. And then on May 25th, 2006, in the notes history se ction
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 1 you have an entry there regarding Android communi cations.

 2 Fair?  Google communications regarding Android, r ight?

 3 A. Yes.

 4 Q. All right.  And in this particular entry you stated ,

 5 quote:  

 6 "After many meetings, including Alan Brenner,

 7 it was agreed that the two companies cannot

 8 come to a meeting of minds on how to work

 9 together re CDC-HI and open source."

10 Is that right?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. And that's, in fact, what happened on or about May of

13 2006, right?

14 A. Well, that's what I was told.

15 Q. That's what you understood was the state of Sun-Goo gle

16 discussions at the time?

17 A. Based on what I was told, yes.

18 Q. And you were told that by people that you understoo d had

19 knowledge at the company, correct?

20 A. Yes.

21 Q. Including Mr. Gupta, right?

22 A. Yes.

23 Q. Let's take a look at Exhibit 2009.

24 MS. ANDERSON:  Your Honor, may I approach?

25 THE COURT:  Yes, you may.
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 1 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

 2 Q. Exhibit 2009 is an e-mail exchange among yourself a nd

 3 Mr. Gupta, from March of 2007, right?

 4 A. Yes.

 5 MS. ANDERSON:  Your Honor, I move in evidence Exhibit

 6 2009.

 7 MR. NORTON:  No objection.

 8 THE COURT:  Thank you.  Received.

 9 (Trial Exhibit 2009 received in evidence.) 

10 (Document displayed.)

11 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

12 Q. All right.  Mr. Cizek, this e-mail exchange, which goes on

13 from -- for several pages, arises out of a newspa per or press

14 article concerning a statement about Google's pla ns to design a

15 mobile phone.  Is that right?

16 A. Yes.

17 Q. And that's referenced on the fifth page of this 11- page

18 exhibit, correct?

19 A. Yes.

20 MS. ANDERSON:  It's the second paragraph there, Ben,

21 at the top.

22 THE WITNESS:  Yes.

23 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

24 Q. Thank you.

25 Now, in this e-mail exchange you had discussions
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 1 internally with Mr. Gupta about the subject, righ t?

 2 A. Yes.

 3 Q. And, in fact, you wanted to contact Google, specifi cally

 4 Mr. Rubin, to talk about this development; is tha t right?

 5 A. Yes.

 6 Q. And Mr. Gupta told you to hold off; is that right?

 7 A. Yes.

 8 Q. All right.  He told you to wait and he'd let you kn ow if

 9 you had the green light to talk to Google about l icensing Java

10 platform; is that right?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. And in the course of this e-mail exchange -- the ve ry top

13 e-mail, Ben, of the first page here -- we see the  first

14 paragraph that Mr. Gupta wrote.  Do you see that?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. All right.  And in this first paragraph on Exhibit 2009,

17 Mr. Gupta explained, quote:  

18 "What we have been discussing will probably

19 lead to bigger SMI stuff - maybe like

20 Armstrong- so we will need to be grounded in

21 our expectations ... but I will try to see

22 how we can manage both, including our

23 commercial interests."

24 Do you see that?

25 A. Yes.
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 1 Q. In fact, that's what he told you.  He told you to h old off

 2 because they're trying to work on bigger stuff wi th Google; is

 3 that right?

 4 A. Yes.

 5 Q. And you followed Mr. Gupta's instruction, right?

 6 A. Yes.

 7 Q. Take a look at Exhibit 2010.

 8 MS. ANDERSON:  Your Honor, apologize.  May I

 9 approach?

10 THE COURT:  Yes.

11 MS. ANDERSON:  Sorry.

12 THE COURT:  I'll explain to the jury, at some point,

13 why is it that the lawyers ask to approach.  I be t you're

14 wondering that over there.  I'm going to tell you  in due

15 course.

16 (Laughter) 

17 THE COURT:  Courthouse secret.

18 But I don't want to interrupt Ms. Anderson, so

19 continue on.

20 MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you, Your Honor.

21 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

22 Q. Exhibit 2010 is an e-mail exchange among yourself,

23 Mr. Gupta, and Mr. Persi, from April of 2007, cor rect?

24 A. Yes.

25 MS. ANDERSON:  Your Honor, I move in evidence Exhibit
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 1 2010.

 2 MR. NORTON:  No objection.

 3 THE COURT:  It's received.

 4 (Trial Exhibit 2010 received in evidence.) 

 5 (Document displayed.)

 6 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

 7 Q. Mr. Cizek, this is a continuation of the e-mail exc hange

 8 we were just looking at in the last exhibit; is t hat right?

 9 A. Yes.

10 Q. And drawing your attention on the first page of Exh ibit

11 2010, a little past halfway down the middle of th at first page,

12 it says "Vineet Gupta," and then below it, it say s

13 "April 2007."  Do you see that?

14 A. Yes.

15 Q. So you, in fact, followed up with Mr. Gupta in Apri l of

16 2007, to find out if it was okay for you to conta ct Google

17 about Java licensing; is that right?

18 A. Yes.  There's no date.  It says "Leo Cizek wrote."

19 Sometime before April 2nd, I wrote an e-mail to V ineet saying,

20 "Any update on this?"  Yes.

21 Q. And, in response, Mr. Gupta told you, "You need to

22 continue waiting."  Right above there.  There you  go.  Isn't

23 that right?

24 A. Yes.

25 Q. And, specifically, what you were hoping to talk to Google

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document967   Filed04/24/12   Page189 of 230



CISEK - CROSS  EXAMINATION /  ANDERSON   1093

 1 about was the subject that you wrote about in the  paragraph

 2 just above there; is that right?

 3 A. Yes.

 4 Q. Okay.  You explained to Mr. Gupta that you had hope d to

 5 schedule a meeting with Andy, in order to, quote:   

 6 "Discuss the advantages to Google of becoming

 7 a commercial use licensee of Java ME for the

 8 Google phone versus the disadvantages of

 9 going open source."

10 Do you see that?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. And you also recognized you thought it was a longsh ot

13 because you knew Google was intent on developing an open source

14 platform, right?

15 A. Well, actually, what I was referring to here was th e fact

16 that Sun -- yes.  I guess so, yeah.

17 Q. Thank you.

18 And above that, again, Mr. Gupta told you to hold

19 off, right?

20 A. Yes.

21 Q. And that's because there were bigger discussions go ing on,

22 beyond you, at Sun about the relationship with Go ogle and

23 broadening it, correct?

24 A. Well, he had said that in a previous e-mail.  That may

25 have still been the case here.  I don't know.
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 1 Q. You understood that was still the case, right?

 2 A. I only knew that he was waiting to hear from Rich G reen

 3 before giving me the green light to go and contac t Andy.

 4 That's all I know.

 5 Q. Okay.  Now, while Sun executives like Mr. Gupta wer e

 6 telling you to hold off on pursuing discussions w ith Google

 7 about Java licensing, Sun did want you to continu e to discuss

 8 things with Google on other fronts and other deal s, correct?

 9 A. Yes.

10 Q. And, in fact, in or around 2007-2008, you negotiate d with

11 Google the Sun Office deal, where Google would di stribute a

12 product called StarOffice, right?

13 A. Yes.

14 Q. And that's -- StarOffice is something like Microsof t

15 Office, but a Sun version, correct?

16 A. Yes.  It's not a Java technology.  It was -- at tha t time

17 we were also dealing with some other products, an d StarOffice

18 was one of them, yes.

19 Q. All right.  And, in fact, the biggest deal that you  ever

20 had negotiated was the toolbar deal with Google, right?

21 A. Well, there were two toolbar deals, yeah.

22 Q. Very substantial financially for you, right?

23 A. Were, indeed, yes.

24 Q. And they had nothing to do with Android, true?

25 A. That's true.
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 1 Q. They were an arrangement under which when someone

 2 downloaded a particular Java-related product, a p op-up bar

 3 would show up inviting them to download the Googl e Toolbar; is

 4 that right?

 5 A. Yes.  To the extent that customers were downloading  the

 6 free version of Java that was available on the In ternet, that

 7 ad would pop up.

 8 Q. And, again, that went on for several years, that de al with

 9 Google, right?

10 A. Yes.

11 Q. And throughout your career, that was the single lar gest

12 deal you had with any of your customers on an ann ual basis,

13 right?

14 A. Uhm, yes.

15 Q. Let's turn, now, to Exhibit 2019.

16 MS. ANDERSON:  Your Honor, may I approach?

17 THE COURT:  You may.

18 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

19 Q. Exhibit 2019 is an e-mail from you to Mr. Lehrbaum,  copied

20 to Mr. Harris, dated October 2007, correct?

21 A. Yes.

22 MS. ANDERSON:  Your Honor, I move in evidence Exhibit

23 2019.

24 MR. NORTON:  No objection.

25 THE COURT:  Received.
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 1 (Trial Exhibit 2019 received in evidence.) 

 2 (Document displayed.)

 3 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

 4 Q. And, so, in the same time period of 2007 and 2008, when

 5 you were discussing other deals with Google, incl uding the

 6 StarOffice deal, you also reached out or sought t o reach out to

 7 Google on other fronts, correct?

 8 A. Yes.

 9 Q. All right.  And this is an e-mail exchange that you  had

10 with a Mr. Lehrbaum.  Who is Mr. Lehrbaum?

11 A. He is a former employee of Sun Microsystems and Ora cle,

12 who at the time was in marketing in the client sy stems group.

13 So regarding JavaFX as it pertained to mobile.

14 Q. All right.  And you sent this e-mail to Mr. Lehrbau m

15 because you had a conference call scheduled with Google for the

16 following Monday, correct?

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. And in that conference call your goal would be to t ry to,

19 quote:  

20 "Uncover potential revenue opportunities and

21 Adsense for search agreement, for example,

22 around JavaFX mobile."

23 Right?

24 A. Yes.

25 Q. This is another example where you, acting on behalf  of
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 1 Sun, were reaching out to Google to try to find o ther ways to

 2 generate revenue.  Had nothing to do with licensi ng Java ME,

 3 right?

 4 A. Well, in this case, yes.  Yes.

 5 Q. I would like to show you Exhibit 2021.

 6 MS. ANDERSON:  Your Honor, may I approach?

 7 THE COURT:  Yes.

 8 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

 9 Q. Exhibit 2021 is an e-mail exchange among Mr. Zandma n,

10 Mr. Harris, Mr. Genewich, and yourself, dated Nov ember 2007,

11 correct?

12 A. Yes.

13 MS. ANDERSON:  Your Honor, I move in evidence Exhibit

14 2021.

15 MR. NORTON:  No objection.

16 THE COURT:  Received in evidence.

17 (Trial Exhibit 2021 received in evidence.) 

18 (Document displayed.)

19 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

20 Q. Mr. Cizek, who is Tom Harris?

21 A. He's a systems engineer now with Oracle, who was at  that

22 time with Sun.  Systems engineer in the Java sale s group.

23 Q. Okay. and you sent this e-mail in November of 2007 --

24 excuse me.  Let me strike that.  I apologize.

25 This was an e-mail exchange that you received in
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CISEK - CROSS  EXAMINATION /  ANDERSON   1098

 1 November of 2007, which included a discussion fro m Mr. Harris,

 2 correct?

 3 A. Yes.

 4 Q. And that starts a little bit past halfway down the first

 5 page of Exhibit 2021, right?

 6 A. Yes.

 7 Q. All right.  Generally speaking, in this discussion

 8 Mr. Harris is talking about APIs in various parag raphs related

 9 to various companies, correct?

10 A. Yes.

11 Q. Drawing your attention to the second page of this e xhibit,

12 Mr. Harris proposes some ideas that may work.  St arting about

13 halfway down that second page.  Do you say that?

14 A. Yes.

15 Q. And among the other ideas that Mr. Harris proposed to you

16 was, quote:  

17 "Once we fully understand the Android

18 distribution SDK, propose a custom Google WTK

19 incorporating the Android Distro APIs if JME

20 compatible along with OpenSocial APIs."

21 Right?

22 A. Yes.

23 Q. And then Mr. Harris goes on to talk about, in that last

24 bullet, that he -- commenced with the words "disc uss

25 internally."  Do you see that?

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document967   Filed04/24/12   Page195 of 230



CISEK - CROSS  EXAMINATION /  ANDERSON   1099

 1 A. Yes.

 2 Q. Mr. Harris talks about, quote:  

 3 "If Sun's CSG wants to leverage Google APIs

 4 for these specific types of apps it may

 5 play."   

 6 Do you see that?

 7 A. Yes.

 8 Q. All right.  In November of 2007, were you the Googl e

 9 account representative --

10 A. Yes.

11 Q. -- for Sun?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. And so --

14 A. Well, for -- for Java related and, as we've seen, s ome

15 other products, such as StarOffice, but, yeah.

16 Q. So it didn't surprise you to have received an e-mai l

17 exchange in Exhibit 2021, in light of the fact th at it

18 discussed Android, correct?

19 A. Right, yes, correct.

20 THE COURT:  How much more do you have, Ms. Anderson?

21 MS. ANDERSON:  I'm very close to finished, Your

22 Honor.  Just a few more questions.

23 Your Honor, may I approach?

24 THE COURT:  Yes.

25
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 1 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

 2 Q. I would like to show you Exhibit 2026.

 3 A. Thank you.

 4 Q. Thank you.

 5 Mr. Cizek, this is an e-mail from you to

 6 Mr. Lehrbaum, copied to Mr. Periakaruppan, Mr. Ha rris, and

 7 Mr. Singh, from May of 2008, correct?

 8 A. Yes.

 9 Q. Who is Mr. Lehrbaum?

10 A. As I identified before, he was, at that time, an em ployee

11 of Sun, and was in marketing, in the client syste ms group.

12 Q. And, again, you're participating in this exchange b ecause,

13 among other things, you are a Google -- a represe ntative for

14 Google related to Java, right?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. All right.  And then drawing your attention below, in the

17 e-mail exchange, where it says "Jacob Lehrbaum wr ote," do you

18 see that?

19 A. Yes.

20 Q. Isn't it true that in this e-mail Mr. Lehrbaum expr essed

21 to you the view that Google's Android was a poten tially

22 dangerous competitor.  Is that right?

23 A. Yes.

24 MS. ANDERSON:  All right.  If I had not done so, Your

25 Honor, I move in evidence Exhibit 2026.
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 1 MR. NORTON:  No objection.

 2 THE COURT:  2026 is received.

 3 (Trial Exhibit 2026 received in evidence.) 

 4 MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you.

 5 (Document displayed.) 

 6 BY MS. ANDERSON:  

 7 Q. Mr. Cizek, you described during your testimony earl ier

 8 that you had a total of three conversations with Google

 9 representatives regarding Android; is that right?

10 A. Yes.

11 Q. And in each of the conversations you described they  were

12 among business people, not lawyers, correct?

13 A. Yes.

14 Q. And in each of those conversations there was no

15 discussion, whatsoever, of copyrights that Sun ma y claim to

16 have, correct?

17 A. Not in any meeting I was at, correct.

18 Q. Thank you.

19 MS. ANDERSON:  No further questions, Your Honor.

20 THE COURT:  Thank you, Ms. Anderson.

21 Mr. Norton.

22                       REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

23 BY MR. NORTON:  

24 Q. Mr. Cizek, Ms. Anderson asked you about your person al

25 smart phone clients.
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CISEK - REDIRECT / NORTON   1102

 1 Do you recall that?

 2 A. Yes.

 3 Q. Were there Java licensees for smart phones other th an your

 4 clients?

 5 A. Well, yes.

 6 Q. And can you give us some examples?

 7 A. The best known one -- I don't think the term smart phone

 8 was used in those days -- was the Blackberry.  Re search in

 9 Motion, which became -- is now my account, but I didn't close

10 it.  And they become a licensee in 2000, many yea rs ago.

11 Q. Now, Ms. Anderson showed you a number of documents dated

12 in the 2007 time period.  Do you recall that?

13 A. Yes.

14 Q. All right.  If we can look -- I'm sorry, the timeli ne

15 disappeared.  Excuse me.

16 MR. JACOBS:   I'll get it.

17 BY MR. NORTON:  

18 Q. Before I do that, then, let's go back to 2005.

19 Would you look at Exhibit 2004, which should be a mong

20 those that Ms. Anderson gave you.  It's on the sc reen to your

21 right.

22 A. Oh, okay.  That's fine.

23 Q. Now, if we go down to the third paragraph of Mr. Gu pta's

24 e-mail, he states:

25 "I have dropped AI's ..."  
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 1 Those are action items?

 2 A. Yes.

 3 Q. (As read:) 

 4 "... 4, 5, 6 and 7 as they were either Sun

 5 internal AIs, or they morph into business

 6 model and overall licenses that will need to

 7 be put in place."

 8 A. Yes.

 9 Q. What understanding, if any, did you have as to whet her

10 whatever decision Google made, a license would st ill be

11 necessary?

12 A. Well, that was always my understanding.  And what's

13 written here seems to be consistent with that.  A nd they seemed

14 to agree, as well, because we went and spent a lo t of time

15 discussing how we could get there.

16 Q. And then Ms. Anderson showed you the action item nu mber 2

17 on this document, which was, "CLDC-HI applicabili ty versus

18 Google internal implementation."

19 What understanding, if any, did you have as to

20 whether one, both, or neither of those two altern atives would

21 require a license?

22 A. Well, my understanding is that either would require  a

23 license.  As I think I stated previously, whether

24 implementation is done independently or with the -- the use of

25 Sun source code, the licensing requirements are e ssentially the
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 1 same.

 2 Q. All right.  Now, at some time -- sorry.  So you als o have

 3 Exhibit 2021; is that right?

 4 A. Up on the screen?

 5 Q. It is.

 6 A. Okay, yes.

 7 Q. All right.  This is another one of the documents Ms .

 8 Anderson showed you.  And she noted, as she went through it,

 9 there's a reference in there to OpenSocial APIs.

10 Do you see that at the bottom of the -- of the

11 exhibit?  Actually, we need to scroll down a litt le bit for

12 you.  I'm sorry.

13 A. Yes.

14 Q. All right.  Do OpenSocial APIs, did you understand that to

15 have anything to do with Android?

16 A. I understood that it had nothing to do with Android .  It's

17 something entirely separate.  At least that was m y

18 understanding.  I don't -- I don't know much abou t them.  I

19 just -- the context leads me to believe they are totally

20 separate.

21 Q. All right.  And then this document is dated Novembe r 11,

22 2007; is that right?

23 A. Yes.

24 Q. Okay.  If we turn to the second page, which has an e-mail

25 from some date prior -- go down to the middle -- it says,

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document967   Filed04/24/12   Page201 of 230



CISEK - REDIRECT / NORTON   1105

 1 "Ideas that may work."

 2 A. Yes.

 3 Q. And then it says, "Once we fully understand the And roid

 4 Distro SDK."  

 5 What understanding, if any, did you have in

 6 November 11, 2007, as to what the Android Distro or SDK was?

 7 MS. ANDERSON:  Objection.  Foundation.

 8 THE COURT:  Understanding calls for hearsay.

 9 Sustained.

10 BY MR. NORTON:  

11 Q. Did you have any understanding --

12 THE COURT:  Same thing.  Would just be somebody's --

13 this is a witness affiliated with you, so we can' t get into

14 hearsay.

15 MR. NORTON:  Your Honor --

16 THE COURT:  He has to have direct, personal

17 knowledge.

18 MR. NORTON:  I'm trying --

19 BY MR. NORTON:  

20 Q. What did you mean by the phrase, "Once we fully und erstand

21 the Android Distro SDK"?

22 MR. VAN NEST:   Objection.  Foundation.

23 Mischaracterizes the document.

24 THE COURT:  Is this something you wrote?

25 THE WITNESS:  I believe it was not.  I believe this
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 1 was wording probably from Tom Harris.  If I had t he whole

 2 document, I could check.

 3 THE COURT:  Sustained.

 4 MR. NORTON:  I'll move on.

 5 THE COURT:  I would like to finish this witness

 6 today.

 7 MR. NORTON:  Yes.

 8 BY MR. NORTON:  

 9 Q. Did you ever tell Mr. Rubin that he could do -- tha t

10 Google could do an independent implementation of Java

11 technology without a license?

12 A. Without a commercial use license?  No, I never told  him

13 that.

14 MR. NORTON:  No further questions.

15 MS. ANDERSON:  No questions, Your Honor.

16 THE COURT:  May Mr. Cizek be excused?  I'm going

17 to -- I hear no objection.  You are free to go.

18 THE WITNESS:  Okay.

19 THE COURT:  You are not subject to recall.  Thank

20 you.  Have a great weekend.

21 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.  You too.

22 (Witness excused) 

23 THE COURT:  Well, I'm going to say this.  It's been a

24 long week.  It's 20 minutes until 1:00.  We're go ing to give

25 you a few minutes extra off today, and we're not going to start
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 1 a new witness.  You know why?  Because I promise you if we did,

 2 they would just repeat it all on Monday morning b ecause they --

 3 on the theory that you forgot it over the weekend .  So there's

 4 no point in starting a brand-new witness.

 5 And I want to say a few things about, I'm serious

 6 when I say no research about the case.  No resear ch about the

 7 lawyers.  No research about these products.  You must stay away

 8 from all that until the case is over, and then yo u'll be free

 9 to go back and see what you were missing.

10 No -- no looking at news programs, radio programs ,

11 news articles, blogs.  I don't know what I'm leav ing out, but

12 you get the general idea.

13 Please don't talk to your loved ones or friends a bout

14 this case.  Keep an open mind until the very end.

15 I think we're pretty close to being on track.  I

16 don't -- I don't think we've fallen behind.  And so there we

17 go.  Any other admonitions before the break for t he weekend?

18 MR. VAN NEST:   I don't believe so, Your Honor.  Thank

19 you.

20 MR. JACOBS:   No, Your Honor.

21 THE COURT:  You all have a great weekend.  We'll see

22 you back here the normal time Monday morning.

23 THE CLERK:   All rise.

24 (Jury out at 12:43 p.m.) 

25 THE COURT:  All right.  Please be seated.
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 1 All right.  Timewise, I hope you're all trying to

 2 keep track yourself because if I do a material --  I don't have

 3 a fancy computer.  This is what I have (indicatin g.)

 4 (Laughter) 

 5 THE COURT:  This is a pencil.  Pencil and columns.

 6 So if you think I'm off by ten minutes or more, y ou let me

 7 know.  But I have 560 minutes have been used by p laintiff; 329

 8 minutes used by defendant.

 9 Now, 17 hours of your time, that's what -- you ha ve

10 17 hours for this phase, each side.  So that's 1, 020.

11 So that means that, Oracle, you've used now more than

12 half your time and you need to save some time for

13 cross-examination.   

14 And at this rate it looks like Google will be put ting

15 some time in the bank unless they use up a lot mo re time.

16 And so Oracle over there don't -- you know, if th ey

17 wind up getting more time than you in the patent phase or the

18 other phases, then look back.

19 I question what that last witness added to this c ase.

20 You know, you lawyers have good reasons for what you did, but

21 to my mind that was not a necessary witness.  So don't come

22 back and say to me, oh, that was not a good use o f the jury's

23 time.  So if you want to use your time on that wh en you run out

24 of time, that's going to be the end of it.  There 's no more

25 extensions.
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 1 Now, maybe I'll be surprised and find that there was

 2 some -- some wonderful nugget lurking there that went right by

 3 me.

 4 Okay.  I have a few more -- at least one more

 5 question, and this is for -- a variation of the s ame question

 6 for both sides.

 7 Let me start with Mr. Van Nest.

 8 I'm confused a bit on -- I have heard two things that

 9 may be inconsistent but may be completely reconci lable, and so

10 something is not registering with me right.

11 Sometimes I hear you say that the source code was  all

12 done by Google in a clean room, the implementatio ns -- to use

13 that word.  Other times I hear you say no, it was  done by

14 somebody called Apache.

15 And so how can it be in a clean room and you can say

16 that and they -- for all we know, Apache plagiari zed it.  So

17 which was it?  Was it done by Apache or it was do ne by Google?

18 MR. VAN NEST:   Well, no.  What I've said, Your Honor,

19 is both.  What I've said is that the source code and the

20 libraries was either written by -- from scratch b y Google or

21 using open source projects and other contribution s.

22 Remember when I went through the stack in the

23 opening, that Android platform, and I showed that  this came

24 from open GL and this came here?  They did use a lot of other

25 open source and, in connection with the core libr aries, a lot
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 1 of that did come from Apache.  So Apache had an i mplementation,

 2 their own independent implementation of Java.

 3 THE COURT:  How do we know it was independent?  Has

 4 anyone vetted that to see if the lines match up?

 5 MR. VAN NEST:   Well, yeah.  I mean, absolutely.

 6 These guys have (indicating).  They hired an expe rt, whom

 7 you're about to hear from.  And then they hired s ome other

 8 folks to scrutinize every single line, every line  in every file

 9 in the Android libraries.  And they came up with 12 files.

10 You've heard about those before.  Two of them wer e Timsort and

11 those others.  Those are the other only files tha t they came up

12 with.

13 And I think their expert -- is he in the room?  I

14 guess I can't ask him to leave, but I think they did a

15 comprehensive review of every line.  And they cam e up with nine

16 lines of code by Mr. Bloch and a few other hundre d lines in

17 these other miscellaneous files that never made i t on a phone.

18 So there's no dispute about that.

19 But you're right, Google didn't write every word of

20 the source code from scratch.  Some of it they to ok from open

21 source and freely available technology, as I've b een telling

22 the jury.

23 THE COURT:  All right.  Now, that helps me

24 understand.  Thank you.

25 So, Mr. Jacobs, let me ask you.  After your -- we 're
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 1 going to hear from your expert.

 2 Is it true what Mr. Van Nest said, that after goi ng

 3 through millions of lines of code, that's what it  comes down

 4 to, in terms of direct copying, putting aside the  37 -- 37

 5 declarations and the -- and the structure sequenc e and

 6 organization?

 7 MR. JACOBS:   Putting aside the 37 packages of

 8 application programming interfaces, we have -- wh at we have

 9 accused is in that list we gave you of copying.  What we have

10 accused of copying is what we have in that list w e gave you.

11 In addition, we will demonstrate that the

12 documentation is, in many cases, paraphrased, in the sense that

13 I use the word; that is, small substitutions or m oving around

14 of text apparently intended to disguise the copyi ng.

15 In addition, the clean room is typically an

16 affirmative put on by the defendant.  The defenda nt establishes

17 that we set up a set of procedures and guidelines  to limit the

18 materials that were used during the development p rocess and,

19 critically, to limit the kinds of people who are employed on

20 the development process.

21 And so when we say they didn't have a clean room,

22 what we're saying is they've never shown, and we can prove that

23 they failed to establish, those kind of guideline s or

24 procedures to develop independently an implementa tion.

25 THE COURT:  But -- okay.  I appreciate the
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 1 explanation, but when -- is it Dr. Mitchell?

 2 MR. JACOBS:   Dr. Mitchell, yes.

 3 THE COURT:  When he testifies on cross-examination,

 4 I'm assuming, I don't know, he will admit that he  tried his

 5 best to find as many lines, and the only lines he  found were

 6 those nine and those files that were word for wor d.  Right?

 7 MR. JACOBS:   I don't think he will -- I think that is

 8 what he will say, yes.

 9 THE COURT:  All right.  So --

10 MR. JACOBS:   But I would --

11 THE COURT:  -- what difference does it make whether

12 there was a clean room or not a clean room?  That 's question

13 number one.

14 Question number two is, even if there was a clean

15 room for the half that didn't come from Apache --  I'm assuming

16 it's half, I don't know what it really was -- if -- I guess I

17 don't understand Google's argument that you could  just go

18 out -- if somebody is out there possibly misusing , like Apache

19 possibly was -- I don't know that they were, but if there was a

20 debate over Apache and you just start using what Apache put out

21 there, how can you say that that absolves you of any

22 wrongdoing?

23 You step into their shoes.  If Apache was in the

24 wrong, then you step into their shoes.  I don't g et that

25 argument.  And if half of it came from Apache, wh at good does
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 1 it do you to put in a clean room?  Because the ot her half is

 2 already -- if it's infected, it's already infecte d.

 3 So I don't know why you keep making this big poin t

 4 out of Apache.  Tell me -- help me out what that.

 5 MR. VAN NEST:   There's a couple points, Your Honor.

 6 Maybe I need to be a little more clear.  One is t hat

 7 Mr. Mitchell and his crew, they looked at Apache too.  There's

 8 no question that Apache is clearly an independent

 9 implementation just like Google.  They didn't use  any source

10 code either.  So that's step one in the analysis.

11 They went out and did their own -- in 2005, did t heir

12 own independent implementation, and these guys ha ve checked

13 that out and they couldn't find any copying in Ap ache either.

14 So -- but our primary position on Apache is that,

15 number one, the source code wasn't copied either by Google or

16 by Apache from Java.  And that's not been establi shed.  Except

17 for these few miscellaneous trivial files and Mr.  Bloch

18 testified about his nine lines yesterday, that's -- that's all

19 independently done.

20 We, Google, licensed from Apache the right to

21 distribute the Apache code, which they used, in A ndroid under

22 the Apache license.  Our point about Apache is si mply that

23 Apache, like GNU, was known to Sun and operating out there in

24 the market -- you know, had this platform availab le.

25 Sun may or may not have had disputes with them, b ut
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 1 Apache never took a license.  And they operated f or five, six,

 2 seven years all the way through 2010, 2011.  And our point is

 3 that the Apache fight, whatever it was, it wasn't  about whether

 4 you can use APIs or not.

 5 This API thing is an invented-after-the-fact deal  by

 6 Oracle.  This is all made up.  None of these peop le were

 7 talking about APIs back then.  Rubin was trying t o buy

 8 technology from Sun, and that's what they were ne gotiating as

 9 part of an overall partnership.  And when that fe ll -- that's

10 what you just heard from Cizek.

11 THE COURT:  All right.  Did the Apache have the 37

12 APIs?

13 MR. VAN NEST:   It had those and more.  And under the

14 Apache license, Apache said you can use all of th em, some of

15 them, none of them.

16 THE COURT:  What was then the -- at the time that

17 Google acquired those rights under a license with  Apache, what

18 I'm somehow understanding is there was a cloud ov er Apache in

19 the form of a dispute with Sun or with Oracle.  I 'm not sure

20 which.

21 MR. VAN NEST:   Well, it -- 

22 THE COURT:  But -- wait, wait.  What was that dispute

23 as it was publicly known?

24 MR. VAN NEST:   What it was, as I understand and the

25 evidence will develop further, was that Apache wa nted to call
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 1 itself Java compatible.

 2 In other words, they wanted a full license so the y

 3 could say, We are Java, rather than, We're Apache  using the

 4 Java language.  And there was a fight about wheth er they could

 5 get it.

 6 And Oracle and Google and the whole industry wrot e

 7 Sun and said they ought to get that right.  And S un, for

 8 whatever reason, said no, we're not going to do t hat.  And so

 9 Apache kept operating under -- always the way the y had.  The

10 source code was out there.

11 And what Mr. Schwartz will say -- has said in his

12 deposition was, the fight with Apache was over th e right to

13 call themselves Java.  If they didn't want to use  the word

14 "Java" in their product, you know, they didn't wa nt to brand it

15 Java, then fine.  The code was available.  They c ould

16 distribute the code.  There was no -- no issue ab out the code.

17 What Mr. Schwartz will say is the beef was, can y ou

18 call yourself Java compatible?  I'm not going to let you do

19 that.  Just like Android, we don't call ourselves  Java

20 compatible either.

21 THE COURT:  Mr. Schwartz was at which company?

22 MR. VAN NEST:   Sun.  He was the CEO of Sun.  And he

23 was fully aware of Apache, fully aware of Android , fully aware

24 of GNU.  And his view was, if you don't want to c all yourselves

25 Java, if you don't want our trademark, fine.  Tha t's the point.
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 1 And we want to work with people.  We don't sue ou r customers.

 2 As you just heard from Mr. Cizek, Google was a bi g

 3 customer of Sun.  So Google and Sun were doing bu siness all the

 4 time.  And they were doing business day by day.  And you'll

 5 hear testimony, Your Honor, about Mr. Schwartz ta lking to

 6 Mr. Schmidt and -- about a lot of things, includi ng Android.

 7 Mr. Schwartz wanted to build some products on top  of

 8 Android just like Mr. Ellison tried to do.  And a ll this was

 9 all out in the open and everybody knew who was us ing what APIs.

10 And none of this API thing came up til after Orac le

11 bought the company and tried to get into the mark et and

12 couldn't.  Now, all of a sudden, these APIs are a  huge deal.

13 And that's why, Your Honor, this is the fundament al

14 issue.  The problem that we're all having is this  copyright

15 claim they have is a little crazy.  It's the sele ction,

16 structure and organization.  I mean, come on.  No ne of the

17 engineers talk about that.  None of the business people ever

18 talked about that.  That's a lawyer-made-up argum ent for this

19 case, because they didn't copyright any such thin g.

20 And I'm terribly worried from the verdict forms t hat,

21 you know, what they want to do is they want to ch op down the

22 size of their copyright so it custom fits what th ey now claim

23 we're using.  Everybody's known what we've been u sing for

24 years.  They never got a copy on anything like se lection,

25 structure and organization.  And Mr. Jacobs admit ted that the
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 1 other day.

 2 THE COURT:  Now, I know that's what you argue, and

 3 maybe in the long-run you're right, maybe you're not.  I am not

 4 going to decide right away this -- whether the co pyright

 5 extends to protecting the structure.

 6 I am going to let that go to the jury without

 7 prejudice to taking it away depending on how it c omes out.  But

 8 I want this case to go up to the Court of Appeals  on a record

 9 where we don't have to come back and retry it, if  I'm wrong or

10 right, depending on which way it were to come out .

11 And I want, also, the Court of Appeals to have th e

12 maximum number of options.  So even if you're rig ht -- and I'm

13 not saying that you're right about it, but even i f you are

14 right, the jury -- we're going to get a verdict o n the

15 structure, sequence, and organization probably in  two weeks.

16 MR. VAN NEST:   I'm totally with you.  Your Honor, I'm

17 with you on that.  And I know you wouldn't decide  until you've

18 seen our Sunday 3 o'clock briefing on this anyway .  I know

19 that.

20 But my point is --

21 THE COURT:  Even after that.  Even after that.

22 MR. VAN NEST:   I know, Your Honor.

23 THE COURT:  I feel like -- I think we ought to try to

24 create a record -- this is going to go up on appe al.  I would

25 like to have a record for the benefit of the appe llate judges
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 1 that will give them the most information and the most field

 2 of -- you know, whichever way they want to go on these issues

 3 of SSO, I want to give them the best record I can .

 4 MR. VAN NEST:   I -- I'm totally with you on that,

 5 Your Honor.  My point was directed to the issue t hat we talked

 6 about a little earlier today, which is, what do y ou compare it

 7 to?

 8 It can't be that a copyright owner, who gets a

 9 copyright on an entire platform, can then later f igure out what

10 it is --

11 THE COURT:  We're working on that.

12 MR. VAN NEST:   Yeah.

13 THE COURT:  I'm thinking about it.  I'm doing my own

14 research.  My law clerks are helping me.  But unl ike these law

15 firms here, I on have a limited staff.  So Sunday  at 3:00, I'll

16 be very interested in it.

17 And that basic issue is, what is the comparison m ade

18 against?  What is the copyrighted work?

19 MR. VAN NEST:   Right.

20 THE COURT:  And does Mr. Jacobs have the right to

21 take a pair of scissors and cut out of the copyri ght the SSO

22 and say this is what they infringe as opposed to the other

23 15 million lines of code?  I don't know the answe r to that.

24 That's where you lawyers come in.

25 MR. VAN NEST:   Thank you, Your Honor.  I didn't have
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 1 anything else.

 2 THE COURT:  Anything else by the other side?

 3 MR. JACOBS:   I think Your Honor's expression was apt.

 4 There was a cloud over Apache.  And this may be a n important

 5 aspect of the instructions to work on.  Google to ok Apache

 6 as -- stepped into their shoes is exactly right.

 7 There's no immunity for Google if Apache code

 8 implements the APIs in the Apache core libraries that Google

 9 adopted, the fact that they got it from Apache ha s no bearing

10 on this unless there is some affirmative defense to

11 infringement, which we believe they will not be a ble to prove.

12 THE COURT:  But was the cloud one that had the words

13 API -- 37 APIs floating up there in the sky or wa s the cloud

14 one that was over, don't use Java, that's our tra demark?  I

15 don't know.

16 MR. JACOBS:   It was very much the former, Your Honor.

17 There's absolutely nothing about the trademark.  Jonathan

18 Schwartz will have a very interesting examination  and

19 cross-examination or.

20 You may recall that on the examination of Mr. Blo ch

21 yesterday, I asked him whether he was aware of th e

22 communication from Apache in which they threw in the towel and

23 moved Harmony, which is the project from which th ese core

24 libraries come, into the attic.

25 And in that message, in that official communicati on
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 1 from Apache, they said, We recognize that the spe cifications

 2 are proprietary.  And that has nothing to do with  the

 3 trademark.  That has to do with the API specifica tions that

 4 Apache based its implementation on.  So Apache, w hen they threw

 5 in the towel, they knew it was all about these sp ecifications.

 6 And we'll show you an e-mail from Mr. Rubin in wh ich

 7 Mr. Rubin acknowledges that Sun's APIs are copyri ghted and you

 8 have to take the TCK.  So this is no new issue.  And that was

 9 the point of the Danger discussion.

10 THE COURT:  Well, but when they said the APIs, did

11 they say -- does the phrase "structure, sequence,

12 organization" --

13 MR. VAN NEST:   No.

14 THE COURT:  -- is that anywhere in there?

15 MR. JACOBS:   No.  

16 THE COURT:  Here's what happened.  They used

17 different implementing code.  And so was the figh t over whether

18 you could use the APIs with the original Sun code  or was it --

19 or was Sun saying you can't even use our APIs wit h brand-new

20 code?

21 MR. JACOBS:   The latter, Your Honor.  Very much the

22 later, because that was the whole point of the Ap ache dispute.

23 Apache is a nonprofit, a group of companies come together and

24 they decide to create what they articulate as an independent

25 implementation conforming to the Java specificati ons.
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 1 So if Apache's goal had been achieved, there woul d

 2 have been yet another one of these compatible imp lementations

 3 out there, which we've heard discussed in the tri al, in which

 4 the code is uniquely written -- hold the thought of this, you

 5 know, what this -- what this box means in terms o f code

 6 (indicating).  Hold it, separate that issue out.

 7 Apache says, We're going to write an independent

 8 implementation of the Java specification top to b ottom.  And

 9 then we are going to get a TCK from Sun and we ar e going to

10 pass the TCK and we will even be able to say now we are

11 compatible.

12 And Sun says, You can have a TCK, but that TCK is

13 going to have a field of use restriction to deskt ops and

14 servers.

15 And Apache says, You can't do that.  And the memb ers

16 of the JCP, including, you heard, Oracle at the t ime, on the

17 buy side instead of the sell side.  When Oracle w as trying to

18 protect itself, as you heard from Oracle witnesse s, against the

19 decay of Sun, Oracle was backing this independent

20 implementation as well.

21 And these companies went to Sun and said, We thin k

22 you should grant us a TCK with a broad field of u se, take away

23 the field of use restrictions, because we want Ap ache

24 Harmony -- now, compatible -- fully-compatible Ap ache Harmony

25 to be able to use -- to be able to be used on all  kinds of

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document967   Filed04/24/12   Page218 of 230



PROCEEDINGS   1122

 1 devices.  And Sun said no.  And Sun executives sa id no.  And

 2 Sun executives publicly said no.

 3 And so Apache Harmony had this ongoing disagreeme nt.

 4 Ultimately, that disagreement gets resolved when Oracle,

 5 exercising more energetic leadership, gets the Op enJDK project

 6 moving along more aggressively, and IBM and other  companies

 7 that were backing in part Apache Harmony say, no more Apache

 8 Harmony, we're going to work on OpenJDK, which is  under the

 9 GPL.

10 And that's when Apache Harmony throws in the towe l --

11 or that's when Apache Foundation throws in the to wel, writes

12 the letter to Oracle which says we recognize your

13 specifications are proprietary, and puts the Harm ony project in

14 the attic.

15 And we could lay all this out.  It's really all i n

16 public documents, Your Honor.

17 THE COURT:  I think -- I hope the evidence does lay

18 it all out on both sides.  I like to hear this.  It helps me

19 absorb the evidence.  But if these points are imp ortant in the

20 trial, I hope both sides prove up your respective  views.

21 MR. JACOBS:   You bet.

22 THE COURT:  So, Mr. Van Nest, what -- since

23 Mr. Jacobs has -- says that you're totally wrong,  I'll give you

24 the last word.  What's your view about what was o n the cloud?

25 MR. VAN NEST:   Well, the evidence is going to show,
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 1 Your Honor, that from Mr. Schwartz's perspective he told people

 2 you can ship Harmony, you just can't call it Java .

 3 This -- what's not particularly relevant and not in

 4 the evidence and not in any of the discovery is w hat Mr. Jacobs

 5 just told you.  All that's happened recently.

 6 All that stuff with Apache, Oracle has gone over and

 7 they want to basically shut down the JCP.  The op en source

 8 isn't helping them anymore now that they own Java .  Right --

 9 open source was great when they were out there as  a

10 beneficiary, but now that they're on the other si de they're not

11 in favor of open source anymore.  That's all happ ened in the

12 last year.

13 THE COURT:  At the moment that Google took its

14 license, what year was that?  From Apache.

15 MR. VAN NEST:   Well, probably 2007 or '8.  Somewhere

16 in there.

17 THE COURT:  All right.  At the time that happened,

18 had Mr. Schwartz said it's okay to ship --

19 MR. VAN NEST:   Yes.

20 THE COURT:  -- and just don't call it Java?

21 MR. VAN NEST:   Yes.  Yes.

22 THE COURT:  Is that in writing?

23 MR. VAN NEST:   Yes.

24 THE COURT:  Really?  What exhibit is that?

25 MR. VAN NEST:   Well, I showed an excerpt from it in

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document967   Filed04/24/12   Page220 of 230



PROCEEDINGS   1124

 1 the opening.  I'd have to go back and make refere nce.  But I

 2 showed an excerpt from it in the opening.  It's a  statement --

 3 what I showed in the opening was an excerpt from a press

 4 release where Mr. Schwartz said you can ship as l ong as you

 5 don't call it Java.  Harmony can ship today.

 6 THE COURT:  Calling it Java, even your own code

 7 starts off Java.

 8 MR. VAN NEST:   That's different.  I mean branding.

 9 Everybody -- everybody that's using -- as you kno w, everyone

10 that's implementing a Java-based library has got to use that or

11 you can't run --

12 THE COURT:  So you mean?

13 MR. VAN NEST:   I mean -- yes, I mean -- or, you know,

14 publicizing that you're Java compatible, you have  the blessing

15 of Sun and you're Java compatible and you get the  brew cup and

16 all that.

17 Now, were there other issues in Apache?  I'm sure

18 there were.  But let me just clarify.  Our main p itch on the

19 Apache point is that people like these engineers have been

20 using these APIs for years without any complaint.

21 You've now heard Mr. Lindholm say it.  You heard,  I

22 believe, Mr. Swetland said it.  You're going to h ear a lot more

23 people say it, that they all understood that, you  know, you

24 could use the APIs, they're part of using the lan guage.

25 And what you can't do is copy the source code in the
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 1 libraries.  That's why people are told -- and you 're right,

 2 what's the point of clean room one way or the oth er as long as

 3 now that we know none of the source code is from Sun, now the

 4 job got done.  Maybe it wasn't done perfectly, bu t it got done.

 5 Because Apache doesn't have any copied code in th eir libraries

 6 and neither does Google, with, you know, these tr ivial

 7 exceptions.

 8 So our main point on Apache is not that, you know ,

 9 the Apache license absolves us of all -- any guil t that would

10 be there.  That's not the point of that.  The poi nt is that

11 Apache was out there operating, offering this ope n source

12 license.  Everybody knew what it was.  Everybody knew what the

13 dispute was.

14 Google operated under Apache and operated openly and

15 disclosed what it was doing to Sun.  And as you j ust heard from

16 Cizek, Sun's attitude was, well, we got to keep d ealing with

17 Google, let's find some other ways to make money and maybe

18 eventually Google will buy our device.  They'll b uy our -- our

19 virtual machine and they'll buy J2ME and let's fi nd some sales

20 opportunities.

21 Once it was clear that Google didn't want to part ner

22 with Sun because they wanted to go open source, S un said fine.

23 Everybody knew what was happening.  And then peri odically,

24 later on, Sun came back and said, hey, how about buying our

25 product instead of using yours?  So Cizek did tha t.  Others did
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 1 that.

 2 That's what Mr. Ellison was doing in 2010 when he

 3 talked to Eric Schmidt.  How about using our virt ual machine

 4 and -- you know, boots faster, runs faster, it's all better.

 5 So nothing was hidden or secret.  That's the poin t.

 6 THE COURT:  Let me -- one last question, just about

 7 the drill for next week.

 8 Is Dr. Mitchell your last witness?

 9 MR. JACOBS:   No, Your Honor.  We will probably call

10 Andy Rubin.

11 THE COURT:  Then will he be your last witness?

12 MR. JACOBS:   Probably, Your Honor.  We'll be doing

13 our final notifications this weekend, but I think  we'll

14 probably finish with Mr. Rubin and turn the case over to them.

15 THE COURT:  On Monday?

16 MR. JACOBS:   Yes.  We may have some deposition stuff

17 to do that'll be brief.

18 THE COURT:  And Dr. Mitchell, how long will he be?

19 MR. JACOBS:   Well, I haven't been doing -- honestly,

20 Your Honor, I haven't been that great at estimati ng the amount

21 of cross-examination time that's been done.

22 THE COURT:  No, on direct.

23 MR. JACOBS:   Probably an hour and a half.  

24 THE COURT:  You'll be ready to go on Monday, I hope?

25 MR. VAN NEST:   Your question? 
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 1 THE COURT:  With your -- start your case.

 2 MR. VAN NEST:   That's the first I'm hearing of it,

 3 but we'll be ready to go.  We'll be ready to go.

 4 THE COURT:  Do you think you're going to use all of

 5 your time?

 6 MR. VAN NEST:   I'm not sure.  We're going to be

 7 meeting this afternoon and over the weekend and w e'll figure it

 8 out.  But right now we've used about a third of o ur time.  I

 9 think we're roughly on target, but there's a lot to put in.

10 MR. BABER:   Your Honor, may I just ask on behalf of

11 Bob Lee, remember we interrupted his examination.

12 THE COURT:  You have to bring him back.  

13 MR. BABER:   Start with him first thing Monday

14 morning?

15 THE COURT:  We'll start with him first thing Monday.

16 MR. JACOBS:   Yes, thank you for the reminder.

17 THE COURT:  Thank you for reminding me.  That's

18 exactly right, yeah.

19 MR. VAN NEST:   We have some witness issues next week,

20 but I'll try to work those out with Mr. Jacobs.  We may have to

21 shuffle people around a little bit, but we've bee n pretty good

22 at that.

23 THE COURT:  I have this thought about the case, that

24 about two-thirds of this case should be very clos e to being

25 stipulated to, though maybe a slight fuzziness on  the
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 1 stipulations.  And about one-third of it is in co ntroversy, on

 2 just the copyright part.

 3 So I'm not asking you to stipulate to anything.  I'm

 4 sure that you wouldn't do that.  But what I can a sk you to do

 5 is think of ways to help the jury understand what  is genuinely

 6 controverted.

 7 And -- I'll give you an example.  Oracle has made  a

 8 lot out of the fact that the word we got to get a  license or

 9 take a license from Sun was used in various e-mai ls over the

10 last ten years.  And I can understand that and I' m not in any

11 way being critical of Oracle for putting that in.   I think good

12 for you, you got that evidence.  That helps you.

13 But it is -- it's one kettle of fish to say we ne ed a

14 license because we're going to use their source c ode and their

15 implementation and another when the program is sw itched to

16 we're not even going to use their implementation,  we're going

17 to do our own implementation so we don't have to go and get a

18 license.

19 And I -- so I worry some that the jury may get th e

20 impression that these statements about needing a license are

21 not taking those important differences into accou nt.

22 The best I can say on that is that there are good

23 lawyers on both sides.

24 Mr. Van Nest, you'll just have to explain that in

25 your closing.
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 1 But it does seem to me that this is something tha t

 2 the lawyers could come closer to presenting in a way where

 3 you're on the same page on that, so that when it does go to the

 4 jury we are teeing up for them the points that ar e genuinely in

 5 dispute and those that should be conceded or clos e to conceded

 6 are, you know, conceded.

 7 I can point to examples on both sides.  I am not

 8 picking on Oracle here.  I can definitely point t o examples on

 9 both sides on this one.

10 All right.  I find this to be one of the toughest

11 things I've ever had to do.  The law is tough.  I t's not like

12 the -- this is harder than a patent case because this copyright

13 part on the computer thing is not settled.  And t hen the facts

14 are very hard.  So this is a tough problem for th e judge.

15 So here's what you should do, this being Friday.

16 After 4 o'clock -- it's not 4 o'clock yet, but yo u should go

17 back to your hotel and have a double --

18 (Laughter) 

19 THE COURT:  -- a double single-malt Scotch.  That's

20 what I'm trying to say.

21 MR. JACOBS:   If you could issue that order, Your

22 Honor, I think it would help.

23 (Laughter) 

24 MR. VAN NEST:   I was just about to duck in the face

25 of another briefing assignment.
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 1 THE COURT:  You're so ordered.  So you can do that.

 2 (Laughter) 

 3 THE COURT:  We will break at this point, and see you

 4 back here 7:30, Monday morning.

 5 MR. VAN NEST:   Thank you, Your Honor.

 6 MR. JACOBS:   Thank you very much, Your Honor.

 7 (At 1:16 p.m. the proceedings were adjourned unti l 

 8 Monday, April 23, 2012, at 7:30 a.m.) 

 9 - - - - - 
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 1 I  N  D  E  X  

 2  
PLAINTIFF'S WITNESSES                             PAGE    VOL.  

 3  
Summary by Mr. Jacobs     929     5 

 4 Summary by Mr. Van Nest                          937     5 

 5  

 6 SWETLAND, BRIAN   
(SWORN) 946 5  

 7 Direct Examination by Mr. Norton                  946     5 
Cross Examination by Ms. Anderson 958 5  

 8 Redirect Examination by Mr. Norton 970 5  
Recross Examination By Ms. Anderson 973 5  

 9   

10 LEE, BOB   
(SWORN) 979 5  

11 Direct Examination by Mr. Jacobs 980 5  

12   

13 MORRILL, DANIEL   
(SWORN) 999 5  

14 Direct Examination by Mr. Norton 1000 5  
Cross Examination by Mr. Kwun 1017 5  

15 Redirect Examination by Mr. Norton 1035 5  
Recross Examination Resumed by Mr. Kwun 1043 5  

16 Further Redirect examination by Mr. Norton 1044 5  

17   

18 CAMARGO, RAFAEL  
Videotaped Deposition Played - Not Reported      10 47     5 

19   

20 CIZEK, LEO   
(SWORN) 1050 5  

21 Direct Examination by Mr. Norton                 1050     5 
Cross Examination by Ms. Anderson 1073 5  

22 Redirect Examination by Mr. Norton 1101 5  

23  

24

25
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 1  
E X H I B I T S  

 2  
 

 3 TRIAL EXHIBITS                       IDEN   VOL    EVID   .  
 

 4 13 954 5  
23 957 5  

 5 45.1, 45.2, 45.3 924 5  
46.20, 46.21, 46.22, 46.23 924 5  

 6 46.24, 46.25, 46.26, 46.27, 46.28 924 5  
149 952 5  

 7 245 1038 5  
281 990 5  

 8 314 958 5  
405 986 5  

 9 741, 767, 770, 771, 773, 862 924 5  
748, 749, 751, 752, 753 923 5  

10 1030, 1031, 1032, 1033, 924 5  
1034, 1035, 1036, 1037 924 5  

11 1038, 1039, 1040 924 5  
2001 1066 5  

12 2002 1079 5  
2004 1082 5  

13 2006 1085 5  
2008 1086 5  

14 2009 1089 5  
2010 1092 5  

15 2013 1078 5  
2016 1053 5  

16 2019 1096 5  
2021 1097 5  

17 2026 1101 5  
2301 1023 5  

18 2352 1026 5  
2800, 2801, 2802 923 5  

19 3341, 3342, 3343, 3344, 3345 923 5  
3346, 3347, 3348, 3349 923 5  

20  

21  

22   

23

24

25

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document967   Filed04/24/12   Page229 of 230



 

 

CERTIFICATE OF REPORTERS 

         We, KATHERINE POWELL SULLIVAN and DEBRA L.  PAS, 

Official Reporters for the United States Court, Nor thern 

District of California, hereby certify that the for egoing 

proceedings in C 10-3561 WHA,  Oracle America, Inc., vs. Google, 

Inc.,  were reported by us, certified shorthand reporters , and 

were thereafter transcribed under our direction int o 

typewriting; that the foregoing is a full, complete  and true 

record of said proceedings at the time of filing.   

        /s/ Katherine Powell Sullivan        

Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR #5812, RPR, CRR 
 U.S. Court Reporter 

 

 

        /s/ Debra L. Pas                     

Debra L. Pas, CSR #11916, RMR CRR 

 

 Friday, April 20, 2012    

 

                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR                       Katherine Powell Sullivan, CSR, CRR, RPR
                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR                                       Debra L. Pas, CSR, CRR, RMR

       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659       Official Reporters - US District Court - 415-794-6659

Case3:10-cv-03561-WHA   Document967   Filed04/24/12   Page230 of 230


